
 
 

AGENDA 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

Meeting to be conducted in a hybrid model – 
Zoom link added on January 8, 2026 

 
Wednesday, January 14, 2026, 12:00 p.m. 

UWCD Headquarters, First Floor, Board Room 
1701 N. Lombard Street, Oxnard, CA 93030 

 
BOARD MATTERS 

Normally, Action (Motion) Items will be considered and acted upon separately; Consent Items will 
be considered and acted upon collectively, although a Consent Item may be considered and acted 
upon separately; and Information Items will be considered separately without action. The Board of 
Directors in its discretion may change the order of agenda items. 
 
To access the meeting remotely: Join the Zoom meeting live at: 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85863745941?pwd=tTY9rota17FwkU2Ke0IskrSbsKqapa.1 
(Meeting ID: 858 6374 5941; Passcode: 810729) 
 
To request to speak on an item, use the chat function to notify the host by including the Agenda Item 
Number in your comment. The Clerk of the Board will announce public speakers and you will be unmuted 
to speak. All rules of procedure and decorum apply for in-person attendees and those participating 
remotely. 
 
Teleconferencing Locations: 4748 Chicago Ave. S #15, Minneapolis, MN 55407 
                      2055 Kalia Road, Honolulu, Hawaii 96815 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
1. FIRST OPEN SESSION 12:00 P.M. 

 
1.1 Public Comment 

Members of the public may address the Board on any matter on the 
Executive (Closed) Session agenda or on any non-agenda item within the 
jurisdiction of the Board. All comments are subject to a five-minute time limit. 

 
1.2 Executive (Closed) Session 

The Board will discuss matters outlined in the attached Executive (Closed) 
Session Agenda (Exhibit A). 

 
2. SECOND OPEN SESSION AND CALL TO ORDER 1:00 P.M. 
 

2.1 Pledge of Allegiance 
 

2.2 Public Comment 
Members of the public may address the Board on any item on the Consent 
Calendar or on any non-agenda item within the jurisdiction of the Board. No 
action will be taken by the Board on any non-agenda item. All comments 
are subject to a five-minute time limit. 

Board of Directors 
Lynn E. Maulhardt, President 
Catherine Keeling, Vice President 
Gordon Kimball, Secretary/Treasurer  
Keith Ford  
Mohammed Hasan 
Steve Huber 
Rachel Jones 

 
General Manager 
Mauricio Guardado 

 
Legal Counsel  
David D. Boyer 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/85863745941?pwd=tTY9rota17FwkU2Ke0IskrSbsKqapa.1






UWCD Board of Directors Meeting Agenda 

January 14, 2026 

Page4 

through December 31 , 2024. 

4. MONTHLY REPORTS BY DEPARTMENT

4.1 

4.2 

4.3 

4.4 

Operations and Maintenance Department Monthly Report 
Craig Morgan, Chief Operations Officer 
Information Item 

Summary report and presentation provide an overview of activities across 
the District's facilities, including Santa Felicia Dam and hydroplant, Piru, 
Saticoy, and El Rio Groundwater Recharge facilities, Freeman Diversion, 
Pleasant Valley and Pumping Trough Pipeline systems, and the Oxnard 
Hueneme Pipeline system. It covers operational plans, water diversion and 
delivery metrics, water quality, fish ladder operations, major maintenance 
and repairs, project updates, and safety and training matters. 

Recreation Department Monthly Report 
Bernard Riedel Jr., Senior Park Ranger 
Information Item 

Summary report and presentation on monthly activities of the Recreation 
Department, including but not limited to the Lake Piru Recreation Area, 
encompassing camping and boating policies at the lake; operations and 
activities; financing and status of facility improvement projects; maintenance 
activities; security issues; and emergency response activities. 

Water Resources Department Monthly Report and Update on 
Activities of Local Groundwater Sustainability Agencies (GSAs) 
Dr. Bram Sercu, Water Resources Supervisor 
Information Item 

Summary report and presentation summarize key activities of the Water 
Resources Department, including groundwater modeling updates, reservoir 
releases, State Water Project imports, support for diversion and recharge 
operations, groundwater condition assessments, contributions to water 
supply and sustainability projects, and outreach efforts. It also highlights 
engagement with Groundwater Sustainability Agencies, advisory 
committees, and other regional stakeholders. 

Administrative Services Department Monthly Report 
Josh Perez, Chief Human Resources Officer and Brian Zahn, Chief 
Financial Officer 
Information Item 

Summary report and presentation outline key activities of the Administrative 
Services Department, including budget development, financial 
performance, accounting procedures, potential debt issuance, and 
investment updates. It also covers capital improvement programs, human 
resources and safety, property and facility management, records 
administration, groundwater extraction statements, risk management, 



UWCD Board of Directors Meeting Agenda 

January 14, 2026 
Page 5 

4.5 

4.6 

4.7 

contract oversight, policy and governance matters, and support for Board 
and staff operations. 

Public Outreach and External Affairs Department Monthly Report 
Tara Mulally, Public Outreach and External Affairs Manager 
Information Item 

Summary report and presentation highlight key activities led by the Public 
Outreach and External Affairs Manager, including implementation of 
strategic communications plans, media and social media management, 
development of outreach materials, coordination of community events, 
stakeholder engagement, legislative and intergovernmental affairs, public 
education initiatives, brand and messaging oversight, and support for Board 
and staff outreach efforts. 

Engineering Department Monthly Report 
Robert Richardson, Engineering Manager 
Information Item 

Summary report and presentation on the monthly activities of the 
Engineering Department, including but not limited to water resources, 
planning efforts and department programs impacting the District such as 
project design and construction; dam safety; FERC license compliance; 
Freeman Diversion; recycled water; pipeline operations and various 
engineering analysis. 

Environmental Services Department Monthly Report 
Marissa Caringella, Environmental Services Manager 
Information Item 

Summary report and presentation cover the Environmental Services 
Department's key activities, including regulatory and environmental issues, 
monitoring programs, water releases and increased State Water imports, 
Freeman Diversion operations, FERC license compliance, 
Endangered Species Act actions, CEQA and NEPA compliance, and 
support for environmental and cultural permitting for District projects. 

5. MOTION ITEM

5.1 Indemnification Agreement by and between United Water 
Conservation District and Costco Wholesale Corporation 
Motion 

Authorize the General Manager to execute the Indemnification Agreement 
by and between United Water Conservation District and Costco Wholesale 
Corporation related to the Pleasant Valley Pipeline facility near Springville 
Drive in the City of Camarillo. 



UWCD Board of Directors Meeting Agenda 

January 14, 2026 
Page 6 

5.2 Permanent Access Easement from Costco Wholesale Corporation for 
the Pleasant Valley Pipeline 
Motion 

Authorize the General Manager to sign and record the Permanent Access 
Easement granted by Costco Wholesale Corporation related to the 
Pleasant Valley Pipeline facility near Springville Drive in the City of 
Camarillo. 

6. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

7. ADJOURNMENT

All testimony given before the Board of Directors is recorded. Materials, which are non-exempt public records and are 
provided to the Board of Directors to be used in consideration of the above agenda items, including any documents 
provided subsequent to the publishing of this agenda, are available for inspection at the District's offices at 1701 N. 
Lombard Street, Suite 200, Oxnard CA 93030 during normal business hours. 

The Americans with Disabilities Act provides that no qualified individual with a disability shall be excluded from 
participation in, or denied the benefits of, the District's services, programs or activities because of any disability. If you 
need special assistance to participate in this meeting, or if you require agenda materials in an alternative format, please 
contact the District Office at (805) 525- 4431. Notification of at least 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the District 
to make appropriate arrangem ts. 

This agenda was posted Thursday, January 8, 2026, at 3:30 p.m. at the United Water 
Conservation District Headquarters, Oxnard, CA and www.unitedwater.org. 

Tara Acosta, Clerk of the Board 





STAFF REPORT 

To: UWCD Board of Directors 

Through: Mauricio Guardado, General Manager 

From: Tara Acosta, Executive Assistant/Clerk of the Board 

Date: December 19, 2025 (January 14, 2026, meeting) 

Agenda Item:   2.5 Election of Officers 
Motion Item 

Staff Recommendation: 
Accept nominations and elect officers for 2026. 

Discussion: 
The Board’s Policies and Procedures establishes January as the month for annual 
election of officers. Traditionally, the Board has taken nominations for the offices of 
President, Vice President, and Secretary/Treasurer of the Board and has voted and 
announced the results of the election immediately following the close of nominations for 
each position.  

In accordance with the Policies and Procedures, no Director may serve for more than two 
consecutive one-year terms in any one of the three Board offices.  

The Board’s Policies and Procedures also fix the regular February Board meeting as the 
time the Board President makes committee assignments and assignments of District 
representatives to outside organizations for the year. As the District’s Standing 
Committees may be reorganized for the year ahead, any Director who wishes to state 
a preference for committee assignments should inform the Board President before the 
February meeting. A 2025 committee roster is attached. The Board President may 
only serve on the Executive Committee. No action on committee assignments will 
be made at the January 14, 2026 Board Meeting. 

Fiscal Impact 
There is no fiscal impact for this motion. 

Attachment(s): 
A – 2025 Roster of Standing Committees and Appointments 



2025 ROSTER OF COMMITTEES 
Effective February 12, 2025 

 STANDING COMMITTEES 

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 
[GM]  
Overall responsibility for Governance Issues and 
HR/Personnel policies 

President: Lynn Maulhardt 
Vice President: Catherine Keeling 
Secretary/Treasurer: Gordon Kimball 

Meets as necessary 

ENGINEERING & OPERATIONS COMMITTEE 
[AGM, AGM, Chief Operations Officer]  
Projects, Operations, Permits, Planning, 
Equipment, Dam Safety, Facilities   

Chair: Catherine Keeling 
Gordon Kimball 
Keith Ford 

Meets first Thursday of the month 

FINANCE & AUDIT COMMITTEE 
[AGM, CFO]  
Budgets, Rates, Audit, Appropriations, Policies, and 
Grant Administration; HR/ Risk Management and IT 

Chair: Steve Huber 
Catherine Keeling 
Rachel Jones  

Meets nine days before the Regular Board Meeting 

WATER RESOURCES COMMITTEE  
[AGM]  
Groundwater, Surface Water, Water Quality and 
Modeling, Overdraft, Seawater Intrusion, 
Replenishment, FCGMA, GSAs  

Chair: Gordon Kimball 
Mohammed Hasan 
Steve Huber 

Meets first Tuesday of the month 

 UWCD REPRESENTATIVES 

COALITION OF LABOR, AGRICULTURE 
AND BUSINESS OF VENTURA COUNTY 
(CoLAB) 

Lynn Maulhardt 
Mauricio Guardado 
Anthony Emmert 

FILLMORE AND PIRU BASINS GSA 
Gordon Kimball 
Anthony Emmert 

FOX CANYON GROUNDWATER 
MANAGEMENT AGENCY 

Lynn Maulhardt  
Alternate: Keith Ford 

MOUND BASIN GSA 
 Catherine Keeling 

VENTURA COUNTY AWA 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Steve Huber  
Alternate: Rachel Jones 

VENTURA COUNTY AWA 
WATER ISSUES COMMITTEE 

Mohammed Hasan 

VENTURA COUNTY SPECIAL DISTRICTS 
ASSOCIATION 

Mohammed Hasan 

  VENTURA WATER COMMISSION 
       Mohammed Hasan 

REGIONAL DEFENSE PARTNERSHIP 
Steve Huber 
Alternate: Mauricio Guardado 

ATTACHMENT A



STAFF REPORT 

To: UWCD Board of Directors 

Through: Mauricio Guardado, General Manager 

From: Tara Acosta, Executive Assistant/Clerk of the Board 

Date: January 6, 2025 (January 14, 2026, meeting) 

Agenda Item:   2.6 Board Members’ Activities Reports 
Information item 

Recommendation: 
Receive and file information regarding meeting participation provided by each of the 
Board of Directors through monthly activities reports (per diems). 

Discussion:  
This item is provided on the agenda of each regular meeting in order to allow Directors to 
report on non-agenda activities such as: 

1. UWCD Committee Participation – Committee Chair to report on Committee’s
objectives and actions to the Board.

2. Meetings, workshops, conferences, and functions attended during the previous
month on behalf of the District.

3. Possible conflicts the Directors might have with respect to issues on the agenda.

Attachment(s): 
Director’s Monthly Activity Reports 



























STAFF REPORT 

To: UWCD Board of Directors 

Through: Mauricio Guardado, General Manager 

From: Tara Acosta, Executive Assistant/Clerk of the Board 

Date: January 6, 2026 (January 14, 2026, meeting) 

Agenda Item:   2.7 General Manager’s Report 
Information item 

Recommendation: 
The General Manager will present information on his activities of possible interest to the 
Board and that may have consequences to the District. 

Discussion: 
The General Manager’s primary responsibility is to ensure that the policies and directions 
of the Board of Directors are adhered to as he oversees and manages the efforts of the 
department managers and their staff in the day-to-day operation and administration of the 
District. These efforts are to be consistent with the District’s Mission Statement and within 
the fiscal constraints set by the Board of Directors.  

The District’s managers provide detailed monthly updates to the Board of Directors which 
outline projects’ statuses, accomplishments, issues of concern, project planning, etc. The 
monthly General Manager’s report provides an opportunity for the General Manager to 
discuss issues that may impact the efforts of the separate departments as they pursue 
their defined goals and objectives. The report also provides the Board with information on 
the District’s efforts and involvement in local, regional and state-wide issues. 

Finally, the monthly General Manager’s report offers the Board of Directors an overview 
of how their policies and directions are being administered through discussion of the work 
plan and efforts of the General Manager.  



STAFF REPORT 

To: UWCD Board of Directors 

Through: Mauricio Guardado, General Manager 

From: Tara Acosta, Executive Assistant/Clerk of the Board 

Date: December 19, 2025 (January 14, 2026, meeting) 

Agenda Item:   2.8 Staff Service Awards 
Ceremonial Item 

Staff Recommendation: 
Acknowledge employees with tenure beginning at five years of service. 

Discussion: 
This item appears on the January agenda each year to acknowledge and honor UWCD 
staff members who have achieved significant tenure milestones with the District, 
beginning at fives years of service and continuing in five-year increments thereafter.   



STAFF REPORT 

To: UWCD Board of Directors 

Through: Mauricio Guardado, General Manager 
Anthony A. Emmert, Assistant General Manager 

From: Brian H. Zahn, Chief Financial Officer 

Date: January 5, 2026 (January 14, 2026, meeting) 

Agenda Item:   2.9 Financial Report Presentation 
   Information Item 

Staff Recommendation:  
Receive a presentation from the Certified Public Accountant Ryan Domino Partner at LSL 
of the District’s Annual Financial Audit for Fiscal Year 2024-25. 

Discussion:  
Annually the District is required to have a financial audit performed by a third-party public 
accounting firm to attest to the financial statements of the District. LSL is the current public 
accounting firm under contract to audit the Districts financials. 

Ryan Domino, Partner at LSL, is going to present the findings for the FY2024-25 audit. 

Attachments: None. 



STAFF REPORT 

To: UWCD Board of Directors 

Through: Mauricio Guardado, General Manager 

From: Tara Acosta, Executive Assistant/Clerk of the Board 

Date: January 6, 2026 (January 14, 2026, meeting) 

Agenda Item:   3.1 Approve the Minutes for the December 10, 2025 Regular 
Meeting and the January 5, 2026 Special Meeting 
Motion 

Recommendation: 
Approve the minutes. 

Attachment(s):  
December 10, 2026 Regular Meeting Minutes and the January 5, 2026 Special Meeting 



MINUTES 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

Wednesday, December 10, 2025, 12:00 p.m. 
UWCD Headquarters, First Floor, Board Room 

1701 N. Lombard Street, Oxnard, CA 93030 

ROLL CALL 

Present: Directors Ford, Hasan, Huber, Jones, Keeling, and Maulhardt 

Absent: Kimball (arrived at 12:10 p.m.) 

1. FIRST OPEN SESSION 12:00 P.M.

1.1 Public Comment: None. 

1.2 Executive (Closed) Session: 12:04 p.m. 
The Board will discuss matters outlined in the attached Executive (Closed) 
Session Agenda (Exhibit A). 

2. SECOND OPEN SESSION AND CALL TO ORDER 1:08 P.M.

2.1 Pledge of Allegiance: Director Maulhardt

2.2 Public Comment: None.

2.3 Approval of Agenda

Action: M/S/C (Ford/Huber) to approve the Agenda. 

Vote: Ayes: Ford, Hasan, Huber, Jones, Keeling, Kimball, and 
Maulhardt; Noes: None. 

2.4 Oral Report Regarding Executive (Closed) Session 

District Legal Counsel David Boyer stated there was no reportable action. 

2.5 Board Members’ Activities Report 

Received and filed. 

2.6 General Manager’s Report 

Received and filed. 

Board of Directors 
Lynn Maulhardt, President 
Catherine Keeling, Vice President 
Gordon Kimball, Secretary/Treasurer  
Keith Ford  
Mohammed Hasan 
Steve Huber 
Rachel Jones 

General Manager 
Mauricio Guardado 

Legal Counsel 
David D. Boyer 



UWCD Board of Directors Meeting Minutes 
December 10, 2025 
Page 2 

. 

3. CONSENT CALENDAR

Action: M/S/C (Keeling/Kimball) to approve the Consent Calendar.

Vote: Ayes: Ford, Hasan, Huber, Jones, Keeling, Kimball, and Maulhardt; 
Noes: None; Absent: None. 

3.1 Approve the Minutes for November 12, 2025, Regular Meeting 

Approved the minutes. 

3.2 Groundwater Basin Status Report 

Received and filed. 

3.3 Investment Monthly Reports for October 2025 

Received and filed. 

4. MONTHLY REPORTS BY DEPARTMENT

4.1 Operations and Maintenance Department Monthly Report 

Chief Operations Officer Craig Morgan gave a PowerPoint presentation; 
received and filed.  

4.2 Recreation Department Monthly Report 

Senior Park Ranger Bernard Riedel, Jr. gave a PowerPoint presentation; 
received and filed. 

Park Ranger Bernard Riedel let the Board know that he added information to 
his presentation on the Pot Hole Trail which Director Maulhardt had asked 
about during the previous Board meeting.  

4.3 Water Resources Department Monthly Report and Update on 
Activities of Local Groundwater Sustainability Agencies 

Water Resources Supervisor Dr. Bram Sercu gave a PowerPoint 
presentation; received and filed.   

Director Huber stated that at the most recent ACWA Event – the 
groundwater policy meeting had a lot of good information that came out of 
it. Bram stated he would take a look at that.  



UWCD Board of Directors Meeting Minutes 
December 10, 2025 
Page 3 

4.4 Administrative Services Department Monthly Report 

Chief Financial Officer Brian Zahn and Chief Human Resources Officer 
Josh Perez gave a PowerPoint presentation; received and filed. 

Director Jones inquired about low emission vehicles. 

Director Keeling acknowledged the recent notice regarding discontinuation 
of the electric metering option. Expressed appreciation to United for 
including resources for farmers and pumpers, noting this reflects United’s 
commitment to collaboration and its role as a valuable community 
resource. Also commended the inclusion of Spanish-language information. 

Director Kimball suggested that future meter communications highlight 
potential cost savings associated with the current change, as some 
customers may have been overpaying under the previous electric 
metering option. 

4.5 Public Outreach and External Affairs Department Monthly Report 

Public Outreach and External Affairs Manager Tara Mullaly gave a 
PowerPoint presentation; received and filed. 

4.6 Engineering Department Monthly Report 

Engineering Manager Robert Richardson gave a PowerPoint presentation; 
received and filed. 

4.7 Environmental Services Department Monthly Report 

Environmental Services Manager Marissa Caringella and Environmental 
Scientist Evan Lashly gave a PowerPoint presentation; received and filed.  

5. MOTION ITEM

No motion items to approve.

6. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

From the General Manager:



UWCD Board of Directors Meeting Minutes 
December 10, 2025 
Page 4 

• Legislative Update: Testified on the ESA Amendment Act of 2025. The
Resource Committee will mark it up this week; then it moves to the
House and Senate. Full update expected early in the year.

• Pending Decisions: Awaiting outcomes on variance approvals, critical
habitat designation, and the 5K/1K run at Lake Piru.

• Navy Partnership Opportunity: Positive meeting with the Admiral in
San Diego. Navy is interested in an internal services agreement with
United to ensure fair contractor and engineering costs. We agreed to
explore this further.

7. ADJOURNMENT

The meeting was adjourned at 2:33 p.m.

I certify that the above is a true and correct copy of the minutes of the UWCD Board of 
Directors meeting of December 10, 2025. 

ATTEST: ___________________________________ 

     Gordon Kimball, Board Secretary 

ATTEST: ____________________________________ 

     Tara Acosta, Clerk of the Board 



UWCD Board of Directors Meeting Minutes 
December 10, 2025 
Page 5 

EXHIBIT A 
EXECUTIVE (CLOSED) SESSION AGENDA 

1. LITIGATION

1.1 CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – ANTICIPATED LITIGATION
Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(2) and Government Code 
Section 54956.9(e)(1) (two matters). 

1.2 CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION 
Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d)(1) (four matters). 

A. Wishtoyo Foundation, et al v. United Water Conservation District,
U.S. District Court for the Central District of California, Case No.2:16-
cv-03869 GHK (PLAx).

B. OPV Coalition v Fox Canyon Groundwater Management Agency,
Superior Court of the State of California, County of Ventura, Case
No. 56-2021-00555357-CU-PT-VTA; Complaint for Comprehensive
Groundwater Adjudication of the Oxnard Groundwater Subbasin
(No. 4-004.02) and Pleasant Valley Subbasin (No. 4-006) Pursuant
to Sections 830, Et Seq. of the Code of Civil Procedure; Declaratory
Relief; Quiet Title; and Petition for Writs of Mandate.

C. United Water Conservation District v United States, U.S. Court of
Federal Claims, Case No. 22-542L; Complaint for Just
Compensation under the 5th Amendment.

D. United Water Conservation District v. California Fish and Game
Commission, a California Public Agency, Superior Court of
California, Los Angeles County (Central District), Case No.
25STCP01671; Petition for Writ of Mandate challenging the
Commission’s determination to list O’mykiss as endangered under
the California Endangered Species Act.



ATTACHMENT TO MEETING MINUTES 
10-DEC-2025 UWCD Board of Directors Meeting 2025-12-10



ATTACHMENT TO MEETING MINUTES 
10-DEC-2025 UWCD Board of Directors Meeting 2025-12-10



ATTACHMENT TO MEETING MINUTES 
10-DEC-2025 UWCD Board of Directors Meeting 2025-12-10



ATTACHMENT TO MEETING MINUTES 
10-DEC-2025 UWCD Board of Directors Meeting 2025-12-10



ATTACHMENT TO MEETING MINUTES 
10-DEC-2025 UWCD Board of Directors Meeting 2025-12-10



ATTACHMENT TO MEETING MINUTES 
10-DEC-2025 UWCD Board of Directors Meeting 2025-12-10



ATTACHMENT TO MEETING MINUTES 
10-DEC-2025 UWCD Board of Directors Meeting 2025-12-10



ATTACHMENT TO MEETING MINUTES 
10-DEC-2025 UWCD Board of Directors Meeting 2025-12-10



ATTACHMENT TO MEETING MINUTES 
10-DEC-2025 UWCD Board of Directors Meeting 2025-12-10



ATTACHMENT TO MEETING MINUTES 
10-DEC-2025 UWCD Board of Directors Meeting 2025-12-10



ATTACHMENT TO MEETING MINUTES 
10-DEC-2025 UWCD Board of Directors Meeting 2025-12-10



ATTACHMENT TO MEETING MINUTES 
10-DEC-2025 UWCD Board of Directors Meeting 2025-12-10



ATTACHMENT TO MEETING MINUTES 
10-DEC-2025 UWCD Board of Directors Meeting 2025-12-10



ATTACHMENT TO MEETING MINUTES 
10-DEC-2025 UWCD Board of Directors Meeting 2025-12-10



ATTACHMENT TO MEETING MINUTES 
10-DEC-2025 UWCD Board of Directors Meeting 2025-12-10



ATTACHMENT TO MEETING MINUTES 
10-DEC-2025 UWCD Board of Directors Meeting 2025-12-10



ATTACHMENT TO MEETING MINUTES 
10-DEC-2025 UWCD Board of Directors Meeting 2025-12-10



ATTACHMENT TO MEETING MINUTES 
10-DEC-2025 UWCD Board of Directors Meeting 2025-12-10



ATTACHMENT TO MEETING MINUTES 
10-DEC-2025 UWCD Board of Directors Meeting 2025-12-10



ATTACHMENT TO MEETING MINUTES 
10-DEC-2025 UWCD Board of Directors Meeting 2025-12-10



ATTACHMENT TO MEETING MINUTES 
10-DEC-2025 UWCD Board of Directors Meeting 2025-12-10



ATTACHMENT TO MEETING MINUTES 
10-DEC-2025 UWCD Board of Directors Meeting 2025-12-10



ATTACHMENT TO MEETING MINUTES 
10-DEC-2025 UWCD Board of Directors Meeting 2025-12-10



ATTACHMENT TO MEETING MINUTES 
10-DEC-2025 UWCD Board of Directors Meeting 2025-12-10



ATTACHMENT TO MEETING MINUTES 
10-DEC-2025 UWCD Board of Directors Meeting 2025-12-10



ATTACHMENT TO MEETING MINUTES 
10-DEC-2025 UWCD Board of Directors Meeting 2025-12-10



ATTACHMENT TO MEETING MINUTES 
10-DEC-2025 UWCD Board of Directors Meeting 2025-12-10



ATTACHMENT TO MEETING MINUTES 
10-DEC-2025 UWCD Board of Directors Meeting 2025-12-10



ATTACHMENT TO MEETING MINUTES 
10-DEC-2025 UWCD Board of Directors Meeting 2025-12-10



ATTACHMENT TO MEETING MINUTES 
10-DEC-2025 UWCD Board of Directors Meeting 2025-12-10



ATTACHMENT TO MEETING MINUTES 
10-DEC-2025 UWCD Board of Directors Meeting 2025-12-10



ATTACHMENT TO MEETING MINUTES 
10-DEC-2025 UWCD Board of Directors Meeting 2025-12-10



ATTACHMENT TO MEETING MINUTES 
10-DEC-2025 UWCD Board of Directors Meeting 2025-12-10



MINUTES 
SPECIAL BOARD MEETING 

Monday, January 5, 2026, 10:45 a.m. 
Board Room, UWCD Headquarters  

1701 N. Lombard Street, Oxnard, CA 93030 

This is a special meeting of the Board of Directors called in accordance with  
Government Code 54956. Other than the listed agenda items, no other business will be 

considered by the Board of Directors. 

ROLL CALL 

Present:  Directors Ford, Hasan, Huber, Jones, Keeling, Kimball, Maulhardt 

Absent: None 

1. OPEN SESSION: 10:45 a.m.

1.1 Pledge of Allegiance: Director Maulhardt 

1.2 Public Comment: None 

1.3 Adoption of Resolution 2026-01 Ratifying the Proclamation of Local 
Emergency – Lake Piru Recreation Area 
Motion 

The General Manager announced that prior to the Resolution speakers, 
water reports on the most recent storm would be given to the Board.  

Maryam Bral gave a water report on the Santa Felicia Dam. Bram Sercu 
gave a water report on the Freeman Diversion.  

Bernard Riedel and Tony Huynh spoke to the specifics included in the 
proclamation/resolution regarding the local emergency that happened in 
the Lake Piru Recreation area.  

Director Hasan suggested that next time, after a storm, it may be helpful to 
have some visual photos of the damage/debris. He also mentioned that a 
trip to United locations would be beneficial for new board members. 

Director Kimball wanted to thank United staff for all the work that went on 
behind the scenes when the storm occurred. Director Keeling also wanted 
to make sure the staff was appreciated by the board for all their efforts. 

Board of Directors 
Lynn Maulhardt, President 
Catherine Keeling, Vice President 
Gordon Kimball, Secretary/Treasurer  
Keith Ford 
Mohammed Hasan 
Steve Huber 
Rachel Jones 

General Manager 
Mauricio Guardado 

Legal Counsel 
David D. Boyer 



UWCD Special Board of Directors Meeting Minutes 
January 5, 2026 
Page 2 

Action: M/S/C (Huber/Kimball) to approve a Resolution ratifying the 
proclamation of local emergency – Lake Piru recreation area. 

RESOLUTION NO. 2026-01 

Vote: Ayes: Ford, Huber, Hasan, Jones, Keeling, Kimball, and 
Maulhardt; Noes: None; Absent: None 

2. ADJOURNMENT

The meeting was adjourned at 11:15 a.m.

I certify that the above is a true and correct copy of the minutes of the UWCD Special 
Board of Directors meeting of January 5, 2026. 

ATTEST: ____________________________________________ 
Gordon Kimball, Board Secretary 

ATTEST: ____________________________________________ 
Tara Acosta, Clerk of the Board 



STAFF REPORT 

To: UWCD Board of Directors 

Through: Mauricio E. Guardado, Jr., General Manager 
Maryam Bral, Assistant General Manager 
Bram Sercu, Water Resources Supervisor 

From: Kathleen Kuepper, Hydrogeologist 
Luke Bryden, Associate Hydrologist 

Date: December 29, 2025 (January 14, 2025, meeting) 

Agenda Item:   3.2  Hydrologic Conditions Monthly Report 
  Informational Item 

Staff Recommendation: 
The Board will receive and file the Monthly Hydrologic Conditions Report for the District 
for the month of November 2025.  

Summary: 
Diversions, Recharge and Ag Pipeline Deliveries for Month of November 2025* 

Activity Amount (acre-feet) 
Total Diversions at Freeman Diversion 9,328 
Lloyd-Butler Mutual Water Company surface water use NA 
Recharge to Saticoy basins (metered + unmetered) 4,112 
Recharge to Noble and Rose basins 1,420 
Recharge to El Rio basins 3,464 
Total Ag Pipeline Deliveries of water diverted at 
Freeman 332 

Total Ag Pipeline Deliveries of water pumped from  
Saticoy Well Field 0 

Recharge to Piru spreading grounds 0 
*Provisional data. Final data are made available in the September Hydrologic Conditions Report of each water year.

Groundwater Basin Available Storage at End of Month of November 2025 
Basin Available Storage (acre-feet) 

Oxnard Forebay 26,300 

Precipitation for Month of November 2025 
Location Precipitation (inches) 

Lake Piru 7.73 
Santa Paula 7.67 
El Rio 5.79 



November 2025 Hydrologic Conditions Report
2025/26 Water Year

December 29, 2025

UWCD November 2025 Hydrologic Conditions Report 1

Note: This report may contain provisional data until final review at the end of the water year.



Precipitation

UWCD November 2025 Hydrologic Conditions Report

District-wide percent of normal precipitation = 354

D
D
D
D
D
D
D
D
D
d

D
D
D
D
D
D
D
D
D
d

2

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

PRECIP IN
NOVEMBER

CUMULATIVE FOR
WATER YEAR

2025/26

7.67

9.11

2.01 2.38

PR
EC

IP
IT

AT
IO

N 
(IN

CH
ES

)

SANTA PAULA #245

Current year
Historical Average

0

5

10

15

PRECIP IN
NOVEMBER

CUMULATIVE FOR
WATER YEAR

2025/26

7.73

10.56

2.57 2.95

PR
EC

IP
ITA

TI
O

N 
(IN

CH
ES

)

LAKE PIRU #160

Current year
Historical Average

0

2

4

6

8

10

PRECIP IN
NOVEMBER

CUMULATIVE FOR
WATER YEAR

2025/26

5.79

6.63

1.76
2.11

PR
EC

IP
IT

AT
IO

N 
(IN

CH
ES

)

EL RIO #239

Current year

Historical Average



UWCD November 2025 Hydrologic Conditions Report 3

Lake Piru Storage and Outflow

Castaic Lake releases to 
downstream water users (DWU) Pyramid Lake releases to UWCD

0

10,000

20,000

30,000

40,000

50,000

60,000

70,000

80,000

90,000
Oc

t-2
5

No
v-2

5

De
c-2

5

Jan
-26

Fe
b-2

6

M
ar-

26

Ap
r-2

6

M
ay

-26

Jun
-26

Jul
-26

Au
g-2

6

Se
p-2

6

Oc
t-2

6

St
or

ag
e (

ac
re

-fe
et

) Cumulative flows passing Santa Felicia Dam for 
water year 2025/26 =   15,400 A-F

Monthly water release =   470 A-F

Maximum Storage

-1,000

0

1,000

2,000

3,000

4,000

5,000

6,000

7,000

8,000

9,000

10,000

N
ov

-2
4

D
ec

-2
4

Ja
n-

25

F
e

b-
2

5

M
a

r-
2

5

A
pr

-2
5

M
a

y-
25

Ju
n-

25

Ju
l-2

5

A
ug

-2
5

S
ep

-2
5

O
ct

-2
5

N
ov

-2
5

A
cr

e-
Fe

et

Balance Natural Flows (+ Owed to UWCD/- Owed to DWR)

Pyramid Lake Imported Water by UWCD

Pyramid Lake Natural Inflow

Pyramid Lake Total Outflow

-1,000

0

1,000

2,000

3,000

4,000

5,000

6,000

7,000

8,000

9,000

10,000

N
ov

-2
4

D
ec

-2
4

Ja
n-

25

F
e

b-
2

5

M
a

r-
2

5

A
pr

-2
5

M
a

y-
25

Ju
n-

25

Ju
l-2

5

A
ug

-2
5

S
ep

-2
5

O
ct

-2
5

N
ov

-2
5

A
cr

e-
Fe

et

Balance Natural Flows (+ Owed to DWU/- Owed to DWR)
State Water Imports
Castaic Lake Natural Inflows
Castaic Lake Total Outflow

Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep
Hydro Plant Outflow (Acre-Feet) 0 0
Cumulative Hydro Plant Outflow (A-F) 0 0



UWCD November 2025 Hydrologic Conditions Report 4

Locations of Key Wells, 
Monthly Groundwater Elevation Monitoring



Groundwater Elevation Records – Piru Basin

UWCD November 2025 Hydrologic Conditions Report 5

Well 04N18W29M02S (29M2)

Well 04N19W25M01S (25M1)

400
420
440
460
480
500
520
540
560
580
600
620
640

Oct-2016 Oct-2018 Oct-2020 Oct-2022 Oct-2024 Oct-2026

Last 10 Years Reference Elevation -29M2= 636.7 feet
Reference Elevation -29C1= 663.03 feet

29M2 well dry 
29C1 data from 1/15 to 6/17

29M2 last data on 11/25/2025

400
420
440
460
480
500
520
540
560
580
600
620
640

1925 1945 1965 1985 2005 2025 2045

Complete Record 1926 to1971, wel l -30G2 R.P.= 628.8 feet
1968 to present, well -29M2 R.P.= 636.7 feet

460
480
500
520
540
560
580
600

Oct-2016 Oct-2018 Oct-2020 Oct-2022 Oct-2024 Oct-2026

Last 10 Years Reference Elevation = 582.02 feet

last data on 11/25/2025

460
480
500
520
540
560
580
600

1925 1945 1965 1985 2005 2025 2045

Complete Record Reference Elevation = 582.02 feet



UWCD November 2025 Hydrologic Conditions Report 6

Well 04N20W24C02S (24C2)

Groundwater Elevation Records – Fillmore Basin

340

360

380

400

420

440

Oct-2016 Oct-2018 Oct-2020 Oct-2022 Oct-2024 Oct-2026

Last 10 Years

last data on 11/25/2025

Well 03N20W02A01S (2A1)

340

360

380

400

420

440

1950 1960 1970 1980 1990 2000 2010 2020 2030

Complete Record 1978 to 2014, wel l 23Q2, R.P. = 513.99 feet
2015 to 2019, wel l 23N1, R.P. = 559.00 feet

2019 to present, well 24C2, R.P. = 497.02 feet

300

320

340

360

380

Oct-2016 Oct-2018 Oct-2020 Oct-2022 Oct-2024 Oct-2026

Last 10 Years Reference Elevation = 376.61 feet

last data on 11/25/2025

300

320

340

360

380

1950 1960 1970 1980 1990 2000 2010 2020 2030

Complete Record Reference Elevation = 376.61 feet



UWCD November 2025 Hydrologic Conditions Report 7

Groundwater Elevation Records – Santa Paula Basin

Groundwater Elevation Records – Mound Basin
Well 02N22W09K04S (9K4)

Well 03N21W16K01S (16K1)

160

180

200

220

Oct-2016 Oct-2018 Oct-2020 Oct-2022 Oct-2024 Oct-2026

Last 10 Years Reference Elevation = 237.31 feet

last data on 11/25/2025

160

180

200

220

1920 1940 1960 1980 2000 2020

Complete Record Reference Elevation = 237.31 feet

-40

-20

0

20

40

60

80

Oct-2016 Oct-2018 Oct-2020 Oct-2022 Oct-2024 Oct-2026

Last 10 years Reference Elevation = 244.49 feet

last data on 11/25/2025

-40

-20

0

20

40

60

80

1945 1955 1965 1975 1985 1995 2005 2015 2025 2035

Reference Elevation = 244.49 feetComplete Record



UWCD November 2025 Hydrologic Conditions Report 8

Well 02N22W22R02S (22R2)

Groundwater Elevation Records – Oxnard Basin, Forebay 

Wells 02N22W12R01S (12R1), 02N22W12R04S (12R4), and 02N21W07M04S (7M4)

-40
-20

0
20
40
60
80

100
120
140

1930 1950 1970 1990 2010 2030

Complete Record

Note:  Well 12R1 was destroyed in 2014 and replaced with well 12R4.  When well 12R4 goes 
dry at approximately 9 ft msl, well 7M4 is used to measure groundwater level. 

-12R1; RP = 134.19 ft; - 7M4; RP = 142.84 ft; -12R4; RP = 137.11 ft

-40
-20

0
20
40
60
80

100
120
140

Oct-2016 Oct-2018 Oct-2020 Oct-2022 Oct-2024 Oct-2026

Last 10 Years

last data on 11/25/2025

-12R1; RP = 134.19 ft; - 7M4; RP = 142.84 ft; -12R4; RP = 137.11 ft

Note:  Well 12R1 was destroyed in 2014 and replaced with well 12R4.  When well 12R4 goes dry at
approximately 9 ft msl, well 7M4 is used to measure groundwater level. 

-60
-40
-20

0
20
40
60
80

100

Oct-2016 Oct-2018 Oct-2020 Oct-2022 Oct-2024 Oct-2026

Last 10 Years Reference Elevation -22R2 = 93.09 feet

last data on 11/25/2025

-60
-40
-20

0
20
40
60
80

100

1930 1950 1970 1990 2010 2030

Complete Record
1931 to 2004, wel l -22R1, RP = 93.6 feet

2004 to present, well -22R2, RP = 93.09 feet



UWCD November 2025 Hydrologic Conditions Report 9

LAS well 01N22W13D03S (13D3)

UAS Well 01N22W02A02S (2A2)

Groundwater Elevation Records – Oxnard Basin

-60

-40

-20

0

20

40

60

Oct-2016 Oct-2018 Oct-2020 Oct-2022 Oct-2024 Oct-2026

Last 10 Years Reference Elevation = 60.73 feet 

last data on 11/25/2025

-60

-40

-20

0

20

40

60

1945 1955 1965 1975 1985 1995 2005 2015 2025 2035

Complete Record
1948 to 1994, wel l 1P1, R.P.= 51.7  feet

1995 to present, well2A2, R.P.= 60.73 feet

-160
-140
-120
-100

-80
-60
-40
-20

0
20

Oct-2016 Oct-2018 Oct-2020 Oct-2022 Oct-2024 Oct-2026

Last 10 Years Reference Elevation = 42.04 feet

last data on 11/25/2025

-160
-140
-120
-100

-80
-60
-40
-20

0
20

1945 1955 1965 1975 1985 1995 2005 2015 2025 2035

Complete Record Reference Elevation= 42.04 feet



UWCD November 2025 Hydrologic Conditions Report 10

Groundwater Elevation Records – eastern Oxnard/Pleasant Valley 
Basin Boundary Area

Groundwater Elevation Records – Pleasant Valley Basin 

-180
-160
-140
-120
-100

-80
-60
-40
-20

0
20
40
60

Oct-2016 Oct-2018 Oct-2020 Oct-2022 Oct-2024 Oct-2026
02N21W34G05S (UAS) 02N21W34G02S (LAS)

Reference Elevation = 92.45 feetLast 10 Years

last data on 11/25/2025

LAS Well 01N21W16P10S (16P10)

-180
-160
-140
-120
-100

-80
-60
-40
-20

0
20

Oct-2016 Oct-2018 Oct-2020 Oct-2022 Oct-2024 Oct-2026

Last 10 Years 2006 to 6/2022, well -15J4 R.P.= 29.69 feet
7/2022 to present, well -16P10S R.P.= 26.1 feet

last data on 11/25/2025

-180
-160
-140
-120
-100

-80
-60
-40
-20

0
20

1945 1955 1965 1975 1985 1995 2005 2015 2025 2035

Complete Record 1948 to 2006, wel l -15Q2, R.P.= 21.47 feet
2006 to 6/2022, wel l -15J4 R.P.= 29.69 feet

7/2022 to present, well -16P10S R.P.=25.56 feet

-180
-160
-140
-120
-100

-80
-60
-40
-20

0
20
40
60

1990 2000 2010 2020 2030
02N21W34G05S (UAS) 02N21W34G02S (LAS)

Reference Elevation = 92.45 feetComplete Record

PV Nested Monitoring Wells



UWCD November 2025 Hydrologic Conditions Report 11

Groundwater Elevation Records – Coastal Nested Monitoring Wells

-140
-120
-100

-80
-60
-40
-20

0
20

1990 2000 2010 2020 2030
1N/22W-36K9 (UAS) 1N/22W-36K5 (LAS)

DP Groundwater Elevations

CM3 A1 CM4

DP

-80
-60
-40
-20

0
20
40
60
80

Coastal Groundwater Elevation Transect, Upper Aquifer SystemA

Mugu 
Canyon

A'

sea level

Hueneme
Canyondata on 11/25/2025

MP CM3 A1
CM4

DP

-140
-120
-100

-80
-60
-40
-20

0
20

Coastal Groundwater Elevation Transect, Lower Aquifer SystemA

Mugu 
Canyon

A'
sea level

Hueneme
Canyon

data on 11/25/2025

-60
-40
-20

0
20
40

1990 2000 2010 2020 2030

A1 Groundwater Elevations

1N/22W-20J8 (UAS) 1N/22W-20J4 (LAS)

-60
-40
-20

0
20
40

1990 2000 2010 2020 2030
1N/23W-1C5 (UAS) 1N/23W-1C2 (LAS)

CM3 Groundwater Elevations



UWCD November 2025 Hydrologic Conditions Report 12

Cumulative deliveries by system Cumulative deliveries by source/type

Cumulative Water Deliveries, acre-feet  (Water Year 2025/26)

Monthly Water Deliveries, acre-feet  (Water Year 2025/26) 

0

500

1,000

1,500

2,000

2,500

Oc
t

No
v

De
c

Ja
n

Fe
b

M
ar Ap
r

M
ay Ju
n Ju
l

Au
g

Se
p

Pleasant Valley Pipeline
Pumping Trough Pipeline
Oxnard-Hueneme Pipeline

0

500

1,000

1,500

2,000

2,500

3,000

3,500

4,000

O
ct

N
ov

D
ec Ja
n

Fe
b

M
ar Ap
r

M
ay Ju
n Ju
l

Au
g

Se
p

Total Surface Water Delivery (PTP, PV, c-cust)
Total Groundwater Delivery (PTP, OH, Sat)
Total Delivery (surface water, groundwater)

Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep
PV Pipeline (surface water) 530.7 138.9
PV Pipeline (Saticoy well field) 1.3 0.0
Total to Pleasant Valley Pipeline 532.0 138.9

PTP (surface water) 755.9 193.0
PTP (PTP 1-5) 67.0 8.4
PTP (OH-12/13) 0.0 0.0
PTP (Saticoy well field) 3.0 0.0
Total PTP 825.8 201.4

C-customers (surface water) 0.0 0.0
Saticoy Well Field (groundwater) 4.3 0.0
O-H Pipeline (groundwater) 1,019.8 999.2

Total Surface Water Delivery 
(PTP, PV, c-cust) 1,286.6 331.9

Total Groundwater Delivery 
(PTP, OH, Sat) 1,091.1 1,007.6

Total Delivery 
(surface water, groundwater) 2,377.6 1,339.5

Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep
PV Pipeline (surface water) 530.7 669.6
PV Pipeline (saticoy well field) 1.3 1.3
Total to Pleasant Valley Pipeline 532.0 670.9

PTP (surface water) 755.9 948.8
PTP (PTP 1-5) 67.0 75.4
PTP (OH-12/13) 0.0 0.0
PTP (Saticoy well field) 3.0 3.0
Total PTP 825.8 1,027.2

C-customers (surface water) 0.0 0.0
Saticoy Well Field (groundwater) 4.3 0.0
O-H Pipeline (groundwater) 1,019.8 2,019.0

Total Surface Water Delivery 
(PTP, PV, c-cust) 1,286.6 1,618.4

Total Groundwater Delivery 
(PTP, OH, Sat) 1,091.1 2,098.7

Total Delivery 
(surface water, groundwater) 2,377.6 3,717.1



UWCD November 2025 Hydrologic Conditions Report 13

Monthly diversion and recharge totals by facility, 2025/26, in acre-feet

Cumulative diversion at Freeman, and distribution to recharge facilities

Cumulative diversion and recharge totals by facility, 2025/26, in acre-feet

0

5,000

10,000

15,000

20,000

25,000

Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep

Ac
re

-F
ee

t

Freeman Diversion Saticoy Spreading (metered + unmetered) El Rio Spreading Noble/Rose Spreading

Month Piru Spreading
Freeman 
Divers ion

Saticoy Spreading 
(metered + unmetered)

El  Rio Spreading
Noble/Rose 
Spreading

LBMWC 
Water Use

Oct 0 10,654 4,313 3,994 1,050 10
Nov 0 9,328 4,112 3,464 1,420
Dec
Jan
Feb
Mar
Apr
May
Jun
Jul

Aug
Sep

Month Piru Spreading
Freeman 
Divers ion

Saticoy Spreading 
(metered + unmetered)

El  Rio Spreading
Noble/Rose 
Spreading

LBMWC 
Water Use

Oct 0 10,654 4,313 3,994 1,050 10
Nov 0 19,981 8,425 7,458 2,469
Dec
Jan
Feb
Mar
Apr
May
Jun
Jul

Aug
Sep



UWCD November 2025 Hydrologic Conditions Report 14

Monthly 2025/26 diversion at Freeman, 
compared to average monthly diversions (1991-2025) 

Monthly 2025/26 pipeline deliveries (surface water deliveries), 
compared to average monthly pipeline deliveries (1991-2025) 

Cumulative diversion at Saticoy and Freeman Diversion, in acre-feet

0

2,000

4,000

6,000

8,000

10,000

12,000

Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep

F
re

e
m

a
n

 D
iv

e
rs

io
n

 (
A

F
)

Average Monthly Diversions 1991-2025 2025/26 Monthly

0

500

1,000

1,500

2,000

Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep

P
ip

e
li

n
e

 D
e

li
ve

ri
e

s 
(A

F
)

Average Monthly Deliveries 1991-2025 2025/26 Monthly

0
500,000

1,000,000
1,500,000
2,000,000
2,500,000
3,000,000
3,500,000
4,000,000
4,500,000

Jan-25 Jan-35 Jan-45 Jan-55 Jan-65 Jan-75 Jan-85 Jan-95 Jan-05 Jan-15 Jan-25

C
um

. S
at

ic
oy

/F
re

em
an

 D
iv

er
si

on

Cumulative Saticoy/Freeman Diversion Cumulative Freeman Diversion (1991 to Present)

4,197,586 Acre-Feet

2,096,780 Acre-Feet



UWCD November 2025 Hydrologic Conditions Report 15

Santa Clara River water quality near Los Angeles/Ventura County line

Piru Creek water quality below Santa Felicia Dam

Water Quality

0
200
400
600
800
1000
1200
1400
1600
1800
2000
2200
2400

0
20
40
60
80

100
120
140
160
180
200
220
240

Oc
t-2

1

Ja
n-

22

Ap
r-2

2

Ju
l-2

2

Oc
t-2

2

Ja
n-

23

Ap
r-2

3

Ju
l-2

3

Oc
t-2

3

Ja
n-

24

Ap
r-2

4

Ju
l-2

4

Oc
t-2

4

Ja
n-

25

Ap
r-2

5

Ju
l-2

5

Oc
t-2

5

Ja
n-

26

Ap
r-2

6

Ju
l-2

6

Oc
t-2

6

TO
TA

L D
IS

SO
LV

ED
 SO

LID
S 

(M
G/

L)

NI
TR

AT
E 

AS
 N

 an
d 

CH
LO

RI
DE

 (M
G/

L)

Nitrate as N
Chloride
TDS

Last 5 Years

0
200
400
600
800
1000
1200
1400
1600
1800
2000
2200
2400

0
20
40
60
80

100
120
140
160
180
200
220
240

Oc
t-2

1

Ja
n-

22

Ap
r-2

2

Ju
l-2

2

Oc
t-2

2

Ja
n-

23

Ap
r-2

3

Ju
l-2

3

Oc
t-2

3

Ja
n-

24

Ap
r-2

4

Ju
l-2

4

Oc
t-2

4

Ja
n-

25

Ap
r-2

5

Ju
l-2

5

Oc
t-2

5

Ja
n-

26

Ap
r-2

6

Ju
l-2

6

Oc
t-2

6

TO
TA

L D
IS

SO
LV

ED
 SO

LID
S 

(M
G/

L)

NI
TR

AT
E 

AS
 N

 an
d 

CH
LO

RI
DE

 (M
G/

L)

Nitrate as N
Chloride
TDS

Last 5 Years



UWCD November 2025 Hydrologic Conditions Report 16

Santa Clara River water quality near Fillmore Fish Hatchery

Santa Clara River water quality at Freeman Diversion

Water Quality

No 
SCR 
flow

0
200
400
600
800
1000
1200
1400
1600
1800
2000
2200
2400

0
20
40
60
80

100
120
140
160
180
200
220
240

O
ct

-2
1

Ja
n-

22

Ap
r-

22

Ju
l-2

2

O
ct

-2
2

Ja
n-

23

Ap
r-

23

Ju
l-2

3

O
ct

-2
3

Ja
n-

24

Ap
r-

24

Ju
l-2

4

O
ct

-2
4

Ja
n-

25

Ap
r-

25

Ju
l-2

5

O
ct

-2
5

Ja
n-

26

Ap
r-

26

Ju
l-2

6

O
ct

-2
6

TO
TA

L 
DI

SS
O

LV
ED

 S
O

LI
DS

 (M
G

/L
)

N
IT

RA
TE

 A
S 

N
 a

nd
 C

HL
O

RI
DE

 (M
G

/L
) Nitrate as N

Chloride

TDS

Last 5 Years

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

1400

1600

1800

2000

2200

2400

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

180

200

220

240

O
ct

-2
1

Ja
n-

22

Ap
r-

22

Ju
l-2

2

O
ct

-2
2

Ja
n-

23

Ap
r-

23

Ju
l-2

3

O
ct

-2
3

Ja
n-

24

Ap
r-

24

Ju
l-2

4

O
ct

-2
4

Ja
n-

25

Ap
r-

25

Ju
l-2

5

O
ct

-2
5

Ja
n-

26

Ap
r-

26

Ju
l-2

6

O
ct

-2
6

TO
TA

L 
DI

SS
O

LV
ED

 S
O

LI
DS

 (M
G

/L
)

N
IT

RA
TE

 A
S 

N
 a

nd
 C

HL
O

RI
DE

 (M
G

/L
)

Nitrate as N
Chloride
TDS

Last 5 Years

No 
SCR 
flow



UWCD November 2025 Hydrologic Conditions Report 17

Water quality of Upper Aquifer System wells, El Rio well field

Water Quality

0
200
400
600
800
1000
1200
1400
1600
1800
2000
2200
2400

0
5

10
15
20
25
30
35
40
45
50
55
60

Oc
t-2

1

Ja
n-

22

Ap
r-2

2

Ju
l-2

2

Oc
t-2

2

Ja
n-

23

Ap
r-2

3

Ju
l-2

3

Oc
t-2

3

Ja
n-

24

Ap
r-2

4

Ju
l-2

4

Oc
t-2

4

Ja
n-

25

Ap
r-2

5

Ju
l-2

5

Oc
t-2

5

Ja
n-

26

Ap
r-2

6

Ju
l-2

6

Oc
t-2

6 TO
TA

L D
IS

SO
LV

ED
 SO

LID
S 

AN
D 

CH
LO

RI
DE

 (M
G/

L)

NI
TR

AT
E 

AS
 N

  (
M

G/
L)

Nitrate as N
TDS
Chloride

Last 5 Years



UWCD November 2025 Hydrologic Conditions Report 18



UWCD November 2025 Hydrologic Conditions Report 19



UWCD November 2025 Hydrologic Conditions Report 20



UWCD November 2025 Hydrologic Conditions Report 21



To:  

Through:

From: 

Date: 

STAFF REPORT 

UWCD Board of Directors 

Mauricio Guardado, General Manager 
Anthony A. Emmert, Assistant General Manager 

Brian H. Zahn, Chief Financial Officer 
Sara Guzman, Finance Supervisor 

December 22, 2025 (January 14, 2026, meeting) 

Agenda Item: 3.3 Investment Monthly Report for November 2025  
Information Item

Staff Recommendation: 
Review the most current investment report for the month ending November 30, 
2025. 

Discussion: 
None. Informational only. 

Fiscal Impact: 
As shown.  

Attachments:  
Combined Investment Monthly Report for November 2025 



Weighted Avg Diversification
Days to Percentage

Investment Recap G/L Balance Maturity of Total
Citizens Business Bank 4,398,265 1 8.33%
Petty Cash 5,400 1 0.01%
County Treasury 4,415 1 0.01%
LAIF Investments 48,368,094 1 91.64%
Total Cash, Cash Equivalents and Securities 52,776,174 100.00%

Investment Portfolio w/o Trustee Held Funds 52,776,174 
Trustee Held Funds -
Total Funds 52,776,174 

Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) Beginning Balance Deposits (Disbursements) Ending Balance
51,368,095 (3,000,000) 48,368,095         

Interest Interest
Earned YTD Received YTD Qtrly Yield

525,083 1,033,846 4.34%

Mauricio Guardado, General Manager Date Certified

Anthony Emmert, Assistant General Manager Date Certified

Brian H. Zahn, Chief Financial Officer Date Certified

United Water Conservation District
Monthly Investment Report

November 30, 2025

All District investments are shown above and conform to the District's Investment Policy.  All investment transactions during this period are included in this repor
Based on budgeted cash flows the District appears to have the ability to meet its expenditure requirements for the next six months.

F:\Reporting\Monthly Board Reports\Banking Balances & Investment Report  -  FY 25-26.xlsx

ATTACHMENT



United Water Conservation District
Cash Position

November 30, 2025

Fund Total Composition Restrictions/Designations

General/Water Conservation Fund: Revenue collected for district operations

General/Water Conservation (8,856,966)             (25,937,456) Includes General,  Rec & Ranger, Water Conservation
4,962,000 Reserved for legal expenditures
3,704,964 Designated for replacement, capital improvements, and environmental projects
8,413,526 Supplemental Water Purchase Fund

General CIP Funds 23,703,732            23,703,732 Appropriated for capital projects
15,167,274            15,167,274 Reserved for CIP Projects

Special Revenue Funds: Revenue collected for a special purpose
State Water Project Funds 6,575,019              6,575,019 Procurement of water/rights from state water project

Enterprise Funds: Restricted to fund usage
.

Freeman Fund (2,091,205)             (2,091,205) Operations, Debt Service and Capital Projects
- Designated for replacement and capital improvements
- Reserved for legal expenditures

Freeman CIP Fund 6,469,314              6,469,314 Appropriated for capital projects
OH Pipeline Fund 1,471,817              1,471,817 Delivery of water to OH customers
OH CIP Fund 3,323,642              3,323,642 Appropriated for capital projects
OH Pipeline Well Replacement Fund 165,932 165,932 Well replacement fund

PV Pipeline Fund 1,139,125              1,139,125 Delivery of water to PV customers
PV CIP Fund 260,070 260,070 Appropriated for capital projects

PT Pipeline Fund 8,458,597              8,458,597 Delivery of water to PTP customers
PT CIP Fund (3,010,177)             (3,010,177) Appropriated for capital projects

Total District Cash & Investments 52,776,174            52,776,174

F:\Reporting\Monthly Board Reports\Monthly Cash Position reports    FY 25-26.xlsx



To: 

Through: 

From: 

Date: 

       STAFF REPORT 

UWCD Board of Directors 

Mauricio Guardado, General Manager 
Anthony A. Emmert, Assistant General Manager 

Brian H. Zahn, Chief Financial Officer 

December 23, 2025 (January 14, 2026, meeting) 

Agenda Item:   3.4  Fiscal Year 2025-2026 First Quarter Financial Report  
(July 1, 2025 – September 30, 2025) 

   Information Item 

Staff Recommendation:  
Review the Fiscal Year 2025-26 First Quarter Financial Reports for the period of July 1, 
2025, through September 30, 2025.

Discussion:  
The District prepares quarterly financial reports for each quarter which provide an analysis 
of District operations through the end of each quarter to highlight variances and for 
fiscal accountability.   

This report represents three months of financial information for District operations for Q1 
fiscal year 2025-26 (25 percent of the total fiscal year).  Included in this report are budget to 
actual comparisons to date for District revenues, expenditures, and water deliveries, as well 
as discussion of any significant variances. This report is based on unaudited financial data 
and, therefore, is subject to revision as staff makes any necessary adjustments that may 
occur during the year.   

While some funds appear to have some savings potential, adjustment recommendations 
may not be made at this time because the potential savings may be the result of delays in 
timing and, therefore, may not materialize.  

Staff currently offer no recommendations for budget adjustments. 

Attachments:   
A – CIP Status FY2025-26 First Quarter Financial Reports 
B – FY2025-26 First Quarter Financial Reports 



Board of Directors 
  Lynn E. Maulhardt, President 
  Catherine P. Keeling, Vice President 
  Gordon Kimball, Secretary/Treasurer 
  Keith Ford 
  Mohammed A. Hasan 
  Steve Huber 
  Rachel Jones 

General Manager 
  Mauricio Guardado 

Legal Counsel 
  David D. Boyer January 14, 2026 

Board of Directors 
United Water Conservation District 

Subject: First Quarter Fiscal Year 2025-2026 Financial Reports 

Dear Board Members: 

Enclosed for your review are the United Water Conservation District’s (District) Fiscal Year 
(FY) 2025-2026 First Quarter Financial Reports. These reports represent three months of 
financial information for District operations as well as Capital Improvement Project (CIP) 
updates (July 1 through September 30, 2025). 

The report focuses primarily on the operating funds of the District and corresponding CIP 
funds: 

 General/Water Conservation Fund
 Recreation and Ranger Activities Sub-fund
 Freeman Fund
 Oxnard/Hueneme Pipeline (OHP) Fund
 Pleasant Valley Pipeline (PVP) Fund
 Pumping Trough Pipeline (PTP) Fund
 State Water Import Fund
 Overhead Fund

Staff provides the Board's Finance and Audit Committee with monthly cash position and 
pipeline delivery activities reports throughout the fiscal year. Quarterly financial reports are 
submitted to the Board to provide information on the financial status of the District and to 
assure the Directors and District customers that staff is operating within the parameters of 
the annual adopted budget, including any supplemental appropriations. At the end of each 
fiscal year, an outside certified public accounting firm performs an independent financial 
audit to test staff's financial reporting accuracy and internal controls. It is staff's responsibility 
to ensure that the Board has received adequate financial information throughout the year so 
that there are no surprises, and so that fiscally prudent decisions can be made when the 
Board is asked to consider approval of budgeted and unbudgeted expenditure requests. 

This report compares the revenues and budget appropriations for the fiscal year-to-date with 
data to provide the Board and District customers with a preliminary financial view (subject to 
audit adjustments at year-end). The following discussion will provide a summary of the 
District’s projected revenues and approved spending plan compared to what actually 
occurred throughout the fiscal year. It also provides an update on approved and funded CIPs. 

ATTACHMENT A



UWCD Board of Directors 
First Quarter Fiscal Year 2025-2026 Financial Reports  
Page 2 

OPERATING FUNDS 

Narrative and graphical analyses are provided by fund (and the Recreation sub-fund) on the 
pages following the CIP Status. 

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM STATUS 

A one-page summary of the District’s current five-year CIP appears along with Benchmark 
Interest Rates as part of Attachment B.  As of September 30, 2025, all CIP expenditures are 
within the total amount appropriated by the Board. 

The majority of the CIPs that have been funded are currently underway, either in the planning, 
design, or construction stages of the project. Please refer to the end of the CIP status section 
for a list of acronyms.  

 Well Replacement Program (CIP # 8000)
Staff worked with prospective firms on redevelopment options for Well No. 17.

 Freeman Diversion Expansion (CIP # 8001)
Staff continued to meet with the Design Team from GEI and NHC and with United’s
technical advisors to advance the conceptual design of the Freeman Fish Passage and
Diversion Improvement Project. Staff coordinated with the Design team and Technical
Advisors regarding the conceptual design and estimated costs.

 Santa Felicia Dam Outlet Works Rehabilitation (CIP # 8002)
The District’s Board of Directors authorized the General Manager to execute an
agreement with GEI Consultants, Inc. for Bid Phase Services related to the SFD Outlet
Works Improvement Project in the amount of $1,295,214. Staff continued to coordinate
with regulators and stakeholders in preparation for construction bidding. During this time,
NMFS issued a biological opinion for the SFD SIP that the proposed action is not likely
to jeopardize the continued existence of endangered Southern California steelhead or
destroy or adversely modify designated critical habitat for the species. Staff submitted an
HMGP sub-application to Cal OES for the Outlet Works Improvement Project with a
requested Federal share amount of $17.4 million.

 Santa Felicia Dam Spillway Improvement Project (CIP # 8003)
There are no major updates to report.

 Freeman Conveyance System Upgrade – Freeman to Ferro Recharge Basin (CIP #
8018)
o Three Barrel Culvert Replacement:
 There are no major updates to report.

o Inverted Siphon Replacement:
 This project is complete, and there are no updates for this time period.



UWCD Board of Directors 
First Quarter Fiscal Year 2025-2026 Financial Reports  
Page 3 

o Vineyard Avenue Crossing:
 Staff received the final geotechnical report. Additionally, Staff submitted the

Vineyard Crossing IRWM Prop. 1 Round 2 progress report No. 7.

 Extraction Barrier and Brackish Water Treatment (CIP # 8019)
Staff submitted SARs to NBVC Staff for Phase 1A (remaining field activities supporting
the design work) and Phase 1B (approval of the 30% design). Staff met with NBVC
environmental subject matter experts on the 30% design. Additionally, a workshop was
held with O&M Staff to discuss future operations and maintenance of the Phase 1 project.

 Rice Avenue Overpass Pumping Trough Pipeline (CIP # 8021)
There are no major updates to report.

 Pumping Trough Pipeline Metering Improvement Project (CIP # 8022)
Staff installed a new meter at PTP No. 145. Still pending are installations at PTP No.
144, 154, and 156 (easements are required). Staff submitted a request for amendment
to DWR related to the AgWUE grant, requesting a reduction from 62 to 57 meters and a
time extension through January 2026.

 State Water Interconnection (CIP # 8025)
Staff continue to coordinate with City of Ventura (City) Staff on project design and
schedule matters. According to the latest updates provided by the City, the construction
phase is expected to start in 2026 and be completed in 2028.

 Asset Management System – CMMS System (CIP # 8041)
The District’s consultant, HDR, completed final deliverables related to the Asset
Management Pilot Project focused on the OH Pipeline and El Rio Disinfection Facility
including the Asset Management Data Management Plan, Asset Data Gap Analysis,
Maintenance Plans, Asset Registers, OH Pipeline CCTV Review and Condition
Assessment Action Plan, and an Implementation Roadmap for the larger Asset
Management/CMMS Effort.

 Pumping Trough Pipeline Recycled Water Connection – Laguna Road Pipeline (CIP
# 8043)
Staff continued planning efforts with the City of Oxnard and PVCWD for short-term
operational testing for recycled water deliveries through the new Laguna Road Recycled
Water Pipeline.

 SCADA Hardware Update (CIP # 8046)
Staff prepared a project plan and launched an Alarm Notification System Upgrade. This
project will transition operations staff from the WIN-911 system to the Ignition Alarm
Notification system from Inductive Automation. Additionally, Staff received the first
security containers that will house and protect industrial control system equipment.



UWCD Board of Directors 
First Quarter Fiscal Year 2025-2026 Financial Reports  
Page 4 

 Lake Piru Recreation Area Pavement Maintenance Program (CIP # 8047)
Staff prepared cost estimates for areas requiring asphalt rehabilitation.

 Main Supply Pipeline Sodium Hypochlorite Injection Facility (CIP # 8053)
There are no updates to report.

 Lake Piru Campground and Recreation Area Renovations (CIP # 8055)
Staff, along with the consultant, Stantec, reviewed options and costs for the LOG
bathroom replacement and rehabilitation due to a history of significant maintenance.
Additionally, Staff continued to work on concepts for the rehabilitation of the Lake Piru
WTP.

 Oxnard Hueneme Pipeline Low-Flow Upgrade (CIP # 8056)
This project has been postponed until further notice.

 Piru Early Warning System Replacement (CIP # 8058)
Dam siren upgrade was completed at the Piru Spreading Grounds. Additionally, Staff
briefed the Piru Neighborhood Council and initiated interagency outreach efforts with the
Piru community between the District and Sheriff’s Office of Emergency Services.

 Oxnard Hueneme Well No. 13 Rehabilitation (CIP # 8059)
Staff worked with prospective firms on a scope of work for redevelopment of Well No.
13.

 OH Well 14 Energy Efficiency Upgrades (CIP # 8060)
o Staff continued to work on planning efforts and logistics for the replacement of the

variable frequency drive.
o Staff worked with prospective firms on a scope of work for the rehabilitation of Well

No. 14.

 El Rio Office Rehabilitation (CIP # 8061)
There are no major updates to report.

 OHP Gas Booster Replacement Project A (CIP # 8062)
There are no major updates to report.

[This space is intentionally left blank.] 



UWCD Board of Directors 
First Quarter Fiscal Year 2025-2026 Financial Reports  
Page 5 

Acronym Index 

Acronym Definition
AgWUE Agricultural Water Use Efficiency  
BOC Board of Consultants 
Cal Am California American Water  
CIP Capital Improvement Plan 
CMAR Construction Manager at Risk 
CMMS Computerized Maintenance Management System 
DWR California Department of Water Resources 
EBB Extraction Barrier and Brackish 
ESA Environmental Science Associates 
GEI GEI Consultants
HDR HDR Consultants, Inc. 
HMGP Hazard Mitigation Grant Program 
IRWM Integrated Water Management Plan 
K/J Kennedy Jenks Consultants 
LOG Lower Olive Grove 
LPRA Lake Piru Recreation Area 
NAVFAC Naval Facilities Engineering Systems Command  
NBVC Naval Base Ventura County  
NMFS National Marine Fisheries Service 
NHC Northwest Hydraulic Consultants 
O&M Operations and Maintenance 
OH Oxnard Hueneme
OHP Oxnard-Hueneme Pipeline
PDB Progressive Design-Build
PTP Pumping Trough Pipeline 
PVCWD Pleasant Valley County Water District 
PVP Pleasant Valley Pipeline 
SAR Site Approval Request 
SFD Santa Felicia Dam 
SIP Safety Improvement Plan 
SME Subject Matter Expert 
WR Water Resources
WTP Water Treatment Plant/Project 



UWCD Board of Directors 
First Quarter Fiscal Year 2025-2026 Financial Reports  
Page 6 

CASH POSITION AND INVESTMENTS OF THE DISTRICT 

As of September 30, 2025, the District had a total of $56.5M in cash and investments. As 
noted in the cash position report, some of the District’s resources are readily available for 
use, while other funds have restrictions that limit how they can be used. The District must 
adhere to any legal, bond, or contractual restrictions placed on funds. However, some 
restrictions are based on Board designations and can be redirected for other uses if the 
Board so determines. 

The District’s cash, cash equivalents and securities held in the various accounts as 
compared to the prior year are as follows: 

Sep-25 Sep-24 
Citizens Business Bank  $         5,600,197  $         3,261,947 
Petty Cash  $                5,400  $                5,400 
County Treasury  $                4,415  $                1,884 
LAIF Investments  $       50,843,012  $       29,759,145 
     Total  $       56,453,024  $       33,028,376 

Any restrictions on the remaining $56.5M are listed in this report.  If you have any questions 
regarding this report on the financial position, please let me know.  

Respectfully submitted, 

Brian H. Zahn 
Chief Financial Officer 



FY 2025-26 First Quarter Financial Review 
July 1, 2025, through September 30, 2025 

25% of Fiscal Year Completed 

Page 1 of 19 

General/Water Conservation Fund 

Revenue Status v. Budget 
 Revenue received through First Quarter totals $2M, which is $2.1M (51%) below plan. This

shortfall is predominantly due to delayed receipt of awarded grant funding.
 Groundwater Revenue reflects adjustments from the prior fiscal year. The first billing of FY

2025-26 will be completed in February 2026.
 Water Delivery $13K (1%) above Plan, despite deliveries of 194 AF under projection, driven

by an increase in rates.
 Earnings on Investments are $24K (17%) over Budget, due to higher interest earnings from

increased LAIF deposits.

ATTACHMENT B



FY 2025-26 First Quarter Financial Review 
July 1, 2025, through September 30, 2025 

25% of Fiscal Year Completed 

Page 2 of 19 

 Other Revenue is down ($2.06M), mainly from Grant Revenue shortfall of 1.6M (100%)
from delayed SCRCB Grant payment for the Phase 1 Pumping of Coastal Brackish
Groundwater Wells Project. Additionally, delayed WIFIA loan proceeds contributed $583K
to budget underrun.

 Property Taxes received in the first quarter are under plan by $81K due to timing differences
but are expected to pick up later in the fiscal year.

 Lake Piru Revenue is higher than budgeted by $149K (60%) mainly due to FEMA relief
payments received for the Marina replacement project.

Revenue Status v. Prior Year 
 First quarter revenue was $19K (1%) higher than the previous fiscal year, primarily due to

receipt of the grant payments in the 2024-25 FY.
 Grant Revenue in the first quarter is $99K lower than the prior fiscal year, mainly due to

delayed Grant reimbursements and the initiation of two additional grants for Phase 1
Pumping Coastal Brackish GW Project and Flood Diversion and Recharge Enhancement
Project.

 Water Delivery Revenue is $189K (18%) higher in the current fiscal year, mainly due to an
increase in rates. However, there were 961 AF less delivered in 2025-26.

 Offsetting the increase were Earnings on Investments, which were $100K lower in the
current fiscal year due to higher interest earnings in FY 2024-25.

Appropriation/Expenditure Status v. Budget 
 Total Expenditures were $15.9M, $3.9M (20%) under Plan, largely due to Operating

Expenditures being $2M (46%) below Budget. Operating Expenditures underspending is
largely attributed to savings In Professional Fees from Fund 050.

 Professional Fees are $1.3M under Budget due to funds for legal services related to OPV,
FERC, and Takings Claim being underutilized ($506K) but expected to pick up later in the
fiscal year. Environmental Services savings of $482K were mainly from delays in studies
for State Water Import. Public Relations Outreach and Education was less than projected
by $116K. Outreach efforts should increase throughout the remainder of the fiscal year.

 Offsetting the savings in the first quarter are insurance renewal costs ($501K) as they are
budgeted throughout the year but paid up front.

 Maintenance Expenditures reflect $319K in underspending, with saving resulting from
FEMA reimbursement in Fund 020.

 Salaries and Benefits ($2.4M) are over plan ($589K) due to upfront payments for
CALPERS unfunded liability and property liabilities for the 2025-26 fiscal year.

 Budgeted Principal ($92K) and Interest payments ($90K) related to 2020 COP Payments
are budgeted as expenses but paid directly to liability.



FY 2025-26 First Quarter Financial Review 
July 1, 2025, through September 30, 2025 

25% of Fiscal Year Completed 

Page 3 of 19 

Appropriation/Expenditure Status v. Prior Year 
 Expenditures are $4.9M (45%) higher in the current fiscal year largely due to higher

Transfers-Out ($3.9M) for Capital Improvement Projects.
 Personnel Cost are also $434K greater in the current fiscal year, stemming from a Board

approved 3% COLA increase and annual merit increase.
 Operating Expenditures savings ($424K) in the first quarter, are up 22% compared to last

year. Largely attributed to FEMA reimbursement received to Fund 020, totaling $332K.
 Maintenance Costs in the current fiscal year are $187K lower than FY 2024-25. This is due

in part to funds received from FEMA for the damage at Lake Piru.
 Higher Insurance Expense ($176K) in current fiscal year compared to FY 2024-25.
 Capital Outlay also lower in the current fiscal year by $234K, which is attributed to S&I

improvements and expenses for the Lake Piru Marina Replacement Project.

Fund Balance 
 The projected ending undesignated working capital balance for FY 25-26 is approximately

$1.449M.
 The District’s reserve policy requires an undesignated balance of $4M for this fund, which

is not expected to be met.



FY 2025-26 First Quarter Financial Review 
July 1, 2025, through September 30, 2025 

25% of Fiscal Year Completed 

Page 4 of 19 

Recreation Sub-Fund 

Revenue Status v. Budget 
 Operational Revenue in the First Quarter is over Budget by $173K (68%), which is mainly

due to higher than anticipated Lake Piru Revenue related to Camping, concessions at the
Condor Point Store, Day Use Fees, and increased Boat Rentals. Collectively, these
activities contributed approximately $150K of the total favorable variance.

Revenue Status v. Prior Year 
 Compared to the first quarter of FY 2024–25, revenues decreased by $2K (less than 1%),

due to decreased camping reservations and boat revenue in Current Year from
maintenance work being completed at the Lake.



FY 2025-26 First Quarter Financial Review 
July 1, 2025, through September 30, 2025 

25% of Fiscal Year Completed 

Page 5 of 19 

Appropriation/Expenditure Status v. Budget 
 Total Expenditures were $3M, $271K (8%) under Budget due to lower Operating

Expenditures ($188K), and Personnel Costs ($88K).
 Salary ($62K) and Benefits ($26K) Costs savings are due to temporary staffing being

utilized for Landscaping and Social Media functions.
 Professional Fees ($3K) resulted in savings of $25K from less than expected use of legal

services ($10K), Sherifs Department Contract Services being under-utilized and Marketing
& Advertising savings due to new inhouse Outreach position.

 Maintenance ($165K) below Plan due to reimbursement payment received from FEMA,
offsetting first quarter expenses of $62K.

 Savings are slightly offset by insurance costs ($56K) due to increased liability premiums
for the year.

Appropriation/Expenditure Status v. Prior Year 
 Expenditures are $1.9M (191%) higher in the current fiscal year, predominantly due to

Transfers out for CIP projects ($1.9M).
 Capital Outlay ($27K) higher in fiscal year 2025-26 for Capital Improvement Projects.
 Contributing to increase is Miscellaneous Expense ($53K), mainly related to Costs of

Goods Sold, which was higher in FY 2025-26 due to purchases of ice, merchandise, and
inventory for Condor Point Store.

 Personnel Costs ($316K) also are higher ($62K) in the current fiscal year compared to first
quarter of FY 2024-25.

 Offsetting increase is Operating Expenditures which are $76K (26%) lower compared to
the previous fiscal year.



FY 2025-26 First Quarter Financial Review 
July 1, 2025, through September 30, 2025 

25% of Fiscal Year Completed 

Page 6 of 19 

Freeman Diversion Fund (Zone B) 

Revenue Status v. Budget 
 Revenue received for the First Quarter was $956K, which is over the Plan by $27K (3%). This

was mainly driven by an increase of $47K (240%) in Earnings on Investments due to LAIF
interest, as well as $9K (15 AF) in Water Deliveries over three pipelines.



FY 2025-26 First Quarter Financial Review 
July 1, 2025, through September 30, 2025 

25% of Fiscal Year Completed 

Page 7 of 19 

 Another contributing factor is a groundwater billing adjustment in the amount of $5K.
 Offsetting the increase in revenue is a decrease in late fee charges of $18K (68%) as well as

delayed grant revenue this quarter.

Revenue Status v. Prior Year 
 Current-year revenue is $61K (6%) lower than the previous fiscal year, primarily due to a

$157K (15%) decrease in Water Delivery Revenue, driven by a lower extraction rate and 938
AF less water delivered in the current fiscal year. There is also a decline in late fees revenue
of $11K (57%) compared to last year.

 The decline in revenue was partially offset by a $56K (525%) increase in investment earnings
due to higher LAIF interest.

Appropriation/Expenditure Status v. Budget 
 Total year-to-date expenditures are $4.8M, which is $535K (10%) below budget. This variance

is primarily attributable to under-utilized operating expenditures of $574K (53%), and capital
outlay of $21K (67%).

 Within operating expenses, professional fees are under $364K due to delayed billing for legal,
consulting, and environmental services. These costs are expected to catch up in the next
quarter.

 Maintenance expenditures show savings of $57K, partially due to FEMA reimbursement
assistance and delays in equipment maintenance. Projects and maintenance delays also
resulted in lower expenses for permits and licenses, equipment rent and lease, and water
chemical treatment, generating additional savings of $38K.

 These operational savings are partially offset by insurance expenses that are $115K higher
due to timing differences.

 Overhead costs are also under plan by $109K. Principal payments related to the 2020 COP
and the Interfund Loan are below planned, as these items are budgeted as expenses but paid
directly to liabilities.

 Offsetting the savings are salaries and benefits, which are $64K over budget. This variance is
primarily driven by benefits costs, which are $89K higher in CalPERS Classic retirement. This
increase is partially offset by $25K in salary savings.

Appropriation/Expenditure Status v. Prior Year 
 Compared to the first quarter of the prior fiscal year, total expenditure in the current fiscal

year increased by $873K (22%).
 The primary driver of the increase is Transfers-Out for Capital Improvement Projects $693K

(21%) in the current fiscal year.
 Salaries and Benefits are higher by $51K compared to the prior year, due to the approved

Board 2% COLA increase, and annual merit increase.



FY 2025-26 First Quarter Financial Review 
July 1, 2025, through September 30, 2025 

25% of Fiscal Year Completed 

Page 8 of 19 

 A significant increase in Operational Expenditure this year of $119K (31%) due to
maintenance expenses related to CAL OES reimbursement assistance in the prior fiscal
year. Current maintenance expenses are $36K higher due to credits recorded last year.
Also higher in current fiscal year are Insurance by $29K due to higher insurance premiums,
and overhead costs by $99K.

 These increases were partially offset by lower professional fees this fiscal year by $25K
mostly related to delayed billings expected to be received next quarter. Miscellaneous
expenses are also associated with various refunds, yielding $5K in savings. Other areas
reflecting savings this fiscal year include office expenses ($3K), small tools ($4K), and
safety supplies ($3K).

Fund Balance 
 The projected ending undesignated working capital balance for FY 2025-26 is

approximately $1.5M.
 The District’s reserve policy requires an undesignated balance of $1.5M which is expected

to be met.



FY 2025-26 First Quarter Financial Review 
July 1, 2025, through September 30, 2025 

25% of Fiscal Year Completed 

Page 9 of 19 

Oxnard Hueneme Pipeline Fund 

Revenue Status v. Budget and v. Prior Year 
 Total Revenue for the First Quarter reached $2.77M, surpassing budget expectations by

$298K (12%).
 Budget surplus is mainly attributed to Water Deliveries, which exceeded the budget by

$259K and the planned AF amount by 431 AF. Compared to the previous year, Water
Deliveries increased by $202K due to rising rates. Despite this increase in revenue, the



FY 2025-26 First Quarter Financial Review 
July 1, 2025, through September 30, 2025 

25% of Fiscal Year Completed 

Page 10 of 19 

actual deliveries were relatively stable, with only 39 AF less delivered compared to last 
year.  

 Earnings on Investments enhanced the budget surplus during the First Quarter, providing
$58K and surpassing the expected amount by $50K (596%). In comparison to last year,
this represents an increase of $32K (125%), credited to a rise in deposits to LAIF.

 Fox Canyon Revenue was also above plan by $7K, due to higher water deliveries than
forecasted. However, deliveries fell short of last year's levels, resulting in a $19K decline
compared to the previous year.

 Additional revenue from Late Fees contributed an additional $7K to the budget surplus.

Appropriation/Expenditure Status v. Budget and v. Prior Year 
 Total Expenditures for the First Quarter were $3.5M, reflecting a favorable variance of

$745K (18%), below the budgeted amount.
 Utilities are down by $287K due to a timing delay in Edison invoices, representing a $34K

decrease from FY 2024-25.
 Maintenance costs came in lower than anticipated by $87K, primarily due to lower

expenses in equipment and structure upkeep, however, this is expected to pick up later in
the year. This represents a $29K decrease from the previous year, largely because annual
services for chlorine equipment and generator maintenance were deferred and completed
in Q1 of last year.

 Water Chemicals expenses were $51K under budget due to reduced treatment chemical
purchases, reflecting a $12K decline from FY 2024-25.

 Miscellaneous expenses came in $18K under budget due to a prorated refund for unused
software. Excluding the refund, expenses were comparable to last year, but the overall total
was $17K lower than last year's figures.

 Permit and Licensing expenses were $15K below plan in the first quarter.
 Insurance expenses partially offset savings by $37K due to a SDRMA payment made in

July 2025 but budgeted throughout year. However, compared to the previous year,
insurance costs have decreased by $68K.

 Fuel expenses have been consistently higher, exceeding Q1 projections by $2.5K and
above the FY 2024-25 budget by $3.6K.

 Contractual Services  reflected a savings of $15K, primarily due to lower expenses in Water
Quality Analysis, which are anticipated to increase later in the year. Additionally, there was
reduced demand for IT Consulting, largely resulting from savings in alarm software
licensing fees.

 Overhead costs are $67K below plan and have decreased by $36K year-over-year.
 Principal payments were $65K below projections as 2020 COP payments were budgeted

as expenses but paid directly against liability.
 Capital Outlay fell short of expectations by $293K (84%) due to delays in replacing OH

Pipeline valves, improving gas engine piping, and other purchases for OH Structures and



FY 2025-26 First Quarter Financial Review 
July 1, 2025, through September 30, 2025 

25% of Fiscal Year Completed 

Page 11 of 19 

Improvements. Compared to the previous year, Capital Outlay has increased by $10.5K, 
attributed to the August acquisition and installation of security data center containers for El 
Rio and Saticoy. 

 Personnel Costs offset savings, coming in above plan by $151K (55%). This was primarily
due to the CalPERS unfunded liability payment made in July 2025, with expenses evenly
allocated throughout the year. Additional work on the OH Pipeline systems also contributed
to the salary expense surplus.

 Total expenditures rose by $2.2M (163%) year-over-year, primarily driven by a $2.3M
increase in Transfers-Out associated with ongoing Capital Improvement Projects.

Fund Balance 
 The projected ending undesignated working capital balance for FY 25-26 is approximately

$1.2M.
 The District’s reserve policy requires an undesignated balance of $1.2M for this fund which

is expected to be met.



FY 2025-26 First Quarter Financial Review 
July 1, 2025, through September 30, 2025 

25% of Fiscal Year Completed 

Page 12 of 19 

Pleasant Valley Pipeline Fund 

Revenue Status v. Budget and v. Prior Year 
 Revenue for the first quarter totaled $126K, which is $25K (24%) over the year-to-date

budget. This performance was primarily driven by other revenues up by $26K (2,122%)
due to Fox Canyon pumping fees. LAIF investment earnings contributed an additional $5K
over plan, reflecting a (66%) positive variance due to higher interest rates and favorable
fund balances throughout the year. Water Delivery for the first quarter totaled 1,855 AF
versus the budgeted 2,048 AF, a difference of 193 AF, and only $4K (4%) below budget.

 Compared to the prior fiscal year, overall revenue is down $17K (12%), driven primarily by
a $40K decrease in Water Delivery revenue—a difference of 759 AF less water being
delivered in the current fiscal year. Other variances include a minor year-over-year



FY 2025-26 First Quarter Financial Review 
July 1, 2025, through September 30, 2025 

25% of Fiscal Year Completed 

Page 13 of 19 

decrease in investment earnings (-$3K, or 19%), contributing to the overall revenue 
decline. 

Appropriation/Expenditure Status v. Budget and v. Prior Year 
 Total expenditures through Q1 were $102K, coming in $85K (45%) under budget. Several

key categories contributed to this positive variance: Personnel Costs were $56K (61%)
under budget, driven by staff vacancies, lower benefit costs, and payroll savings due to
timing and classification differences.

 Operating Expenditures under budget by $17K (26%), largely due to savings in
maintenance of $9K which is expected to pick up later in the year.

 Capital Outlay came in under budget by $11K (59%), due to delay in Structures and
Improvements expenditures, however, expenses expected to pick up in coming months.

 Transfers Out remained aligned with budget at $9K, supporting planned capital projects
and infrastructure reserves.

 Compared to the same period in the prior fiscal year, total expenditure is down by $4K
(4%), driven primarily by reduced materials and supplies and contractual services
spending.

Fund Balance 
 The projected ending undesignated working capital balance for FY 25-26 is approximately

$692K.
 The district’s reserve policy requires a $329K minimum undesignated balance which is

expected  to be met.



FY 2025-26 First Quarter Financial Review 
July 1, 2025, through September 30, 2025 

25% of Fiscal Year Completed 

Page 14 of 19 

Pumping Trough Pipeline Fund 

Revenue Status v. Budget 
 Revenue for Q1 was $353K, falling short of plan by $3K (1%). This difference is primarily

due to reduced revenue from Fox Canyon GMA fees, arising from less than expected water
deliveries via the PTP Pipeline. Out of 1,154 AF delivered in the first quarter, 201 AF was
surface water.



FY 2025-26 First Quarter Financial Review 
July 1, 2025, through September 30, 2025 

25% of Fiscal Year Completed 

Page 15 of 19 

 Grant revenue was down by $25K due to a delay in funding for the PTP Recycled Water
Connection Capital Improvement Project (CIP), with anticipated receipt within this fiscal
year.

 Water deliveries totaled $216K and aligned with the budgeted figures for the First
Quarter, indicating actual consumption closely matched projections.

 Earnings from investments greatly offset budget deficit, surpassing expectations by $49K.
This is attributed to a higher balance in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF)
account during Q1.

Revenue Status v. Prior Year 
 Revenue for the First Quarter underrun ($786K) FY 2024-25, mainly attributed to

decreased rates from reduced Operation and Maintenance charges, along with a 164 AF
reduction in water deliveries from the previous year.

 Compared to prior year, Grant Revenue was down ($70K), mainly due to variations in grant
payment amounts, notably an SGM Grant payment received in July 2024.

 Earnings on Investments revenue is up $33K from last year as a result of a higher LAIF
balance.

 Other Revenue increased by $28K year-over-year, credited to higher Fox Canyon GMA
Fees resulting from an additional 156 AF of surface water deliveries in current year than in
FY 2024-25.

Appropriation/Expenditure Status v. Budget 
 Total Expenditures were $560K (24%) below budget, primarily due to a favorable variance

in Operating Expenditures totaling $442K (55%).
 Utility costs were $93.8K under projections, attributed to decreased electricity use for well

pumping due to heightened surface water deliveries.
 Maintenance was less than forecasted by $85K, from delays in repairing corroding turnouts

and replacing VFDs and motors.
 Additional savings in Materials and Supplies contributed to budget underrun, including a

$6.6K prorated refund for unused software, as well as underuse of Water Chemicals ($5K)
and Permits and Licenses ($2K).

 Insurance Expense partially offset savings, exceeding plan by $43K, mainly due to a larger
SDRMA payment made in July 2025 but budgeted for whole year.

 Contractual Services were $7.5K under budget, primarily due to savings of $5K in
Professional Fees. This was a result of reduced contractor support for PTP Turnout.

 Additionally, there were cost savings in Water Quality Analysis, although these expenses
are anticipated to rise later in the year.

 Overhead expenses were also less than expected by $46.6K.
 Capital Outlay underperformed expectations by $93K (73%) attributed to delays in

replacing El Rio pond inlet piping and moss screens.



FY 2025-26 First Quarter Financial Review 
July 1, 2025, through September 30, 2025 

25% of Fiscal Year Completed 

Page 16 of 19 

 CIP Transfers-Out were $1.3M in the First Quarter.
 Principal ($220K) for 2020 COP and Interfund Loan is budgeted as an expense but is

directly paid towards the liability.
 Personnel Costs were lower than projected ($22K), predominantly from less than

anticipated workload related to PTP activities and along with a vacant position in the O&M
Department.

Appropriation/Expenditure Status v. Prior Year 
 Total Expenditures decreased $131K (7%) year-over-year, primarily due to a $121K

reduction in Capital Outlay. The decline reflects PTP turnout valve replacements completed
in Q1 of the prior year.

 Transfers-Out for Capital Improvement Projects decreased $44K from FY 2024-25.
 Personnel Costs dropped $16K, as salaries decreased $21K due to reduced PTP Pipelines

activity, partially offset by a $6K increase in benefits.
 Operating Expenditures increased $49K, driven primarily by higher interest costs related

to the 2020 COP and Interfund Loan. General and Administrative Expenses rose $25K,
partially offset by a $25K reduction in Materials and Supplies from savings in Miscellaneous
Expenses ($10K) and Maintenance Costs ($10K).

Fund Balance 
 The projected ending undesignated working capital balance for FY 2025-26 is ($115K).
 The District’s reserve policy requires an undesignated balance of $1M for this fund which

is not expected to be met.



FY 2025-26 First Quarter Financial Review 
July 1, 2025, through September 30, 2025 

25% of Fiscal Year Completed 

Page 17 of 19 

State Water Fund 

Revenue Status v. Budget and v. Prior Year 
 Revenue for the first quarter was $58K, under budget by $126K (69%) due to property taxes not yet

received in the fiscal year. Offsetting the underrun was earnings on LAIF investment, $27K (89%)
over budget due to the higher interest rates received in September of $66K.

 Compared to FY 2024-25, overall revenue is up by $5K (9%), primarily due to earning and
investments.

Appropriation/Expenditure Status v. Budget and v. Prior Year 
 Total expenditure for the first quarter was $2M being over budget by $1M (97%). This over budget

is mainly driven by increased variable costs from State Water Purchases, $1.7M paid toward
Casitas contract for additional Table A water July 1, 2025.

 Compared to prior year, expenditures increased by $203K (11%), this resulting is from an increase
in Table A and supplemental water purchases in FY 2025-26.



FY 2025-26 First Quarter Financial Review 
July 1, 2025, through September 30, 2025 

25% of Fiscal Year Completed 

Page 18 of 19 

Fund Balance 
 The projected ending undesignated working capital balance for FY 25-26 is approximately $5.7M,

which is within the District’s fund reserve maximum of $7.3M.
 The entire fund balance is designated for the fixed and variable costs related to the District’s State

Water Project allocation of 5,000 acre feet per year plus allowable Table A water.



FY 2025-26 First Quarter Financial Review 
July 1, 2025, through September 30, 2025 

25% of Fiscal Year Completed 

Page 19 of 19 

Overhead Fund 

Appropriation/Expenditure Status v. Budget and v. Prior Year 
 Total Expenditures through Q1 amount to $1.13M, which is $1.23M (52%) below budget.
 Total Personnel Cost was under projection by approximately $292K (26%). This was driven by two

vacancies: the full-time Executive Assistant (Clerk of the Board), filled later in Q1, and the Senior
Technology Systems Specialist.

 Operating expenditure under plan $923K (75%) below budget, driven primarily by $808K in
Professional Fees savings. This reflects delayed Bond Management Services and lower-than-
anticipated Legal Counsel usage, both expected to increase later in the fiscal year.

 Safety Supplies are down ($38K) from a delay in Santa Cara Riverbed security enhancements.
 Additional savings include Office Expense ($37K), Maintenance ($18K), and Travel Expense

($16K).
 Total expenditure increased $49K (5%) year-over-year driven by modest increases in Personnel

costs ($21K) and Operating Expenditures ($28K), including Utilities ($11K), Office Expense ($10K),
and Maintenance ($8K).



STAFF REPORT 

To: UWCD Board of Directors 

Through: Mauricio Guardado, General Manager 

From: Tara Acosta, Executive Assistant/Clerk of the Board 

Date: December 19, 2025 (January 14, 2026, meeting) 

Agenda Item:   3.5 Adopt Resolution No. 2026-02 Approving the 2026 Board of 
Directors Meeting Schedule 
Motion Item 

Staff Recommendation: 
Adopt Resolution No. 2026-02 setting the 2026 Board of Directors meeting schedule. 

Discussion: 
The Board’s Policies and Procedures establishes its meeting date as the second 
Wednesday of each month. An adopted meeting schedule assists the Board and staff 
with advance planning and preparation of Board business and allows for public 
participation. The proposed schedule includes an adjusted November meeting on the 
third Wednesday due to a scheduling conflict with a national holiday (Veterans Day) and 
also notes that the Board will not meet regularly in August. With the adoption of this 
Resolution, there is no impact if the Board chooses to have a special meeting.  

Fiscal Impact 
There is no fiscal impact for this motion. 

Attachment(s): 
A – Resolution Establishing the 2026 Board of Directors Meeting Schedule including the 
Calendar 



ATTACHMENT A

RESOLUTION NO. 2026-02 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF UNITED WATER 
CONSERVATION DISTRICT SETTING A BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

SCHEDULE FOR CALENDAR YEAR 2026  

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of United Water Conservation District shall set 
an annual Board of Directors meeting calendar to establish dates and times assisting the 
Board and staff with advance planning and scheduling of City business; and  

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Board’s Policies and Procedures, the following 
calendar is established notwithstanding the scheduling of additional meetings as required 
upon proper notice under the Brown Act. 

BE IT RESOLVED, the Board of Directors of the United Water Conservation 
District does resolve as follows: 

Section 1.  The Board of Directors hereby establishes noon as the first open 
session regular meeting time for each regular meeting, executive (closed) sessions held 
at 12:05 p.m., and second open session held at 1:00 p.m. 

Section 2.  The Board of Directors establishes the following meeting schedule for 
calendar year, typically meeting the second Wednesday of each month and adjusted if 
needed due to dates that will cause quorum issues:  

2026 UWCD MEETING SCHEDULE 

January 14, 2026 
February 11, 2026 

March 11, 2026 
April 8, 2026 
May 13, 2026 
June 10, 2026 
July 8, 2025 

August - No Meeting 
September 9, 2026 
October 14, 2026 

November 18, 2026 (Third Wednesday) 
December 9, 2026 



Section 3.  With proper notice during the year, meetings may be cancelled, 
rescheduled, or added as necessary pursuant to California law and in compliance with 
the Brown Act. 

The foregoing Resolution was adopted by the Board of Directors of United Water 
Conservation District on January 14, 2026 by the following vote: 

Ayes: 

Noes: 

Absent: 

ATTEST: __________________________________ 
President    

ATTEST: __________________________________ 
Secretary/Treasurer 



To: 

Through:

From:

Date:

STAFF REPORT 

UWCD Board of Directors

Mauricio Guardado, General Manager 

Anthony A. Emmert, Assistant General Manager 
Bernard Riedel Jr., Senior Park Ranger 

December 23, 2025 (January 14, 2026, meeting) 

Agenda Item: 3.6 Adopt Resolution No. 2026-03 Designating the General  
Manager and/or Assistant General Manager as the District’s 
Authorized Agents for the Purposes of Obtaining Federal 
Assistance for the 2025/2026 Floating Restroom Grant 
Program 
Motion

Staff Recommendation:
Adopt Resolution No. 2026-03 designating the General Manager and/or Assistant 
General Manager as the District’s authorized agents for purposes of obtaining 
federal assistance provided by Federal U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service and 
sub-granted through the California State Parks Division of Boating and 
Waterways (DBW) for Fiscal Years 2025/2026 Floating Restroom Grant Program.  

Background:  
The Clean Vessel Act (CVA) program provides funding to state boating agencies such as 
United Water Conservation District (United) for the construction, renovation, operation, 
and maintenance of pump-out stations and waste reception facilities to meet the needs 
of recreational boaters. The program provides and protects the health and safety of 
waterways, sensitive fish habitat, and safe fishing and swimming areas free of pollution 
from recreational boats. 

In 2016, United applied for and was awarded two floating restrooms under the CVA grant 
program. In February 2017, United received and deployed the two units at Lake Piru. The 
conditions of the 2016 grant specified that during the first 10 years of deployment, United 
must place the floating restrooms away from land-based restrooms. Since receiving the 
two floating restrooms, United has positioned them away from the land-based restrooms, 
in compliance with the grant requirements. The grant-specified 10-year period will be 
completed in February 2027.  After that, United Water may relocate the older floating 
restrooms to any location that it wishes.  The two floating restrooms are still in good 
condition and serving boaters at Lake Piru.  When water levels are low, the land-based 
restrooms are some distance from the boat launches. Once the grant term for the existing 
restrooms is completed in February of 2027, United desires to relocate one or more of 
the existing floating restrooms nearer to the boat launch to make them more convenient 
for visitor use, while still supporting the clean water goal of the CVA grant program. 



Agenda Item: 3.6 Adopt Resolution No. 2026-03 Designating the General Manager   
and/or Assistant General Manager as the District’s Authorized 
Agents for Purposes of Obtaining Federal Assistance for the 
2025/2026 Floating Restroom Grant Program 
Motion

2 

With assistance from United’s Grant Task Force, the Parks and Recreation team has 
applied for the Fiscal Years 2025/2026 Floating Restroom Grant Program. If successful, 
the grant would provide United with a new Americans with Disabilities Act-compliant 
(ADA-compliant) floating restroom that would be deployed in a remote location of the lake 
for a period of at least ten years. 

Discussion: 
Staff propose that the General Manager and/or the Assistant General Manager be 
designated as authorized agents for all interactions with the DBW. This authorization will 
include providing responses to inquiries and documents to DBW. Authorizing two agents 
will significantly expedite timely responses to the DBW, which oftentimes requests 
responses with a short turnaround time. 

Mission-Related Goals:  
Obtaining new floating restrooms under the CVA grant program would allow staff to 
reposition the current floating bathrooms to the marina, making it more convenient for the 
boaters visiting Lake Piru, while supporting the mission objectives of the CVA grant 
program and ensuring the highest quality potable water is being produced at the Lake 
Piru water treatment plant.  

Fiscal Impact:   
The District would not incur any significant initial costs related to this resolution, as the 
entire effort of construction and delivery of the floating restroom unit would be covered by 
the grant. The District’s future Lake Piru maintenance budgets would be sufficient to cover 
supplies and maintenance for the new floating restrooms. The most significant continued 
cost related to these floating restrooms is emptying the 500-gallon holding tanks. Based 
on past usage, this needs to be done approximately three times a year at a cost of $875 
per restroom per occurrence. These continued service costs are also applicable to the 
land-based bathrooms. 

Attachment: 
Resolution – A resolution of the Board of Directors of United Water Conservation District 
designating authorized agents for California State Parks Division of Boating and 
Waterways for Fiscal Years 2025/2026 Floating Restroom Grant Program 



RESOLUTION NO. 2026-03 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF UNITED WATER 
CONSERVATION DISTRICT DESIGNATING THE GENERAL MANAGER AND/OR 
ASSISTANT GENERAL MANAGER AS THE DISTRICT’S AUTHORIZED AGENTS FOR 
PURPOSES OF OBTAINING FEDERAL ASSISTANCE PROVIDED BY FEDERAL U.S. 
FISH AND WILDLIFE SERVICE AND SUBGRANTED THROUGH THE CALIFORNIA 
STATE PARKS DIVISION OF BOATING AND WATERWAYS FOR FISCAL YEARS 
2025/2026 FLOATING RESTROOM GRANT PROGRAM 

WHEREAS, the United Water Conservation District (UWCD) has ownership and 
control of Piru Lake; and 

WHEREAS, the California State Parks Division of Boating and Waterways administers 
the federal CVA Grant Program on behalf of the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, funded by 
the Sport Fish Restoration and Boating Trust Fund to build and maintain sewage 
management infrastructure that aids recreational boaters; and 

WHEREAS, UWCD desires to undertake a Floating Restroom 2025-26 grant 
application for the purpose of providing services for the recreational boating population and 
to commit to provide clean, safe and enjoyable recreational boating on Piru Lake; and 

WHEREAS, the cost of the Floating Restroom 2025-26 project is approximately $0.00; 
and 

WHEREAS, the Board of UWCD believes and hereby determines it to be in the best 
interest of UWCD to authorize the General Manager and/or its Assistant General Manager 
to prepare, sign, and submit a grant application to the Division of Boating and Waterways 
requesting $0.00 for two (2) Clean Vessel Act (CVA) funded Floating Restrooms; and hereby 
authorizes the General Manager and/or its Assistant General Manager to execute a grant 
agreement with the California State Parks, Division of Boating and Waterways and any 
amendments to said grant agreement;  

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the UWCD hereby authorizes the 
General Manager and/or its Assistant General Manager to prepare, sign, and submit a grant 
application to the Division of Boating and Waterways requesting $0.00 for two (2) CVA 
funded Floating Restrooms; and hereby authorizes the General Manager and/or its 
Assistant General Manager to execute a grant agreement with the California State Parks, 
Division of Boating and Waterways and any amendments to said grant agreement. 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 14th day of January 2026. 

ATTACHMENT



Resolution No. 2026-03 
Page 2 

I, the undersigned, hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution No. 2026-03 was duly 
adopted by the Board of Directors of United Water Conservation District following a roll call 
vote: 

Ayes:  

Noes:  

Absent:  

Abstain: 

ATTEST: __________________________________ 
Lynn E. Maulhardt, President         

ATTEST: __________________________________ 
Gordon Kimball, Secretary/Treasurer 



To: 

Through: 

From: 

Date: 

STAFF REPORT 

UWCD Board of Directors

Mauricio Guardado, General Manager 
Anthony A. Emmert, Assistant General Manager 

Brian H. Zahn, Chief Financial Officer 
Sara Guzman, Finance Supervisor 

November 25, 2025 (January 14, 2026, meeting)

Agenda Item: 3.7 Penalty and Interest Waiver Request from Southland
Sod Farms 
Motion 

Recommendation: 
Approve a request from Southland Sod Farms to waive penalty and interest 
charges totaling $61,350.11 incurred from the billing period of July 1, 2024, 
through December 31, 2024. 

Discussion: 
Mr. Juan Prado, a representative from Southland Sod Farms, responded to 
correspondence from the District staff regarding a past-due balance. In his 
communication, Mr. Prado clarified that the delay in submitting the Semi-Annual 
Groundwater Production Statements were unintentional. He also outlined that he 
has taken proactive measures to ensure timely submissions in the future.  

Despite the delay in statement submission, Southland Sod Farms has 
demonstrated a consistent history of on-time payments and is current with all 
production charges. Notably, the company has not received a waiver for penalty 
and interest charges in the past three years; therefore, staff recommend that the 
Board approve the request for a waiver of the penalty and interest charges. 

Fiscal Impact: 
Because UWCD does not budget for interest and penalty revenues, approval of 
this settlement agreement will have no fiscal impact on the District’s current-year 
budget. 

Attachments: 
Written penalty and interest waiver request from Juan Prado, on behalf of 
Southland Sod Farms, summary of penalty and interest charges, and Semi-Annual 
Groundwater Production Statements for July 1, 2024, through December 31, 2024. 



REQUEST FOR WAIVER OF

PENALTY & INTEREST CHARGES

Southland Sod Farms has requested a waiver of penalty and interest charges

totaling $61.350.11 for the period from July 1. 2024. to December 31. 2024.

Juan Prado, the representative of the farm, explained that the delay in

submitting the Semi-Annual Groundwater Production Statements was

unintentional and assured that proactive measures have been taken for future

submissions. The farm has a strong history of timely payments and is current

with all production charges. They have not received any waivers for penalty and

interest charges in the past three years. Staff recommends that the Board

approve the waiver reguest.

P&l Waived within the last three years; Yes No X

Waiver request: 61,350.11

Approved Denied

(Signature: Date

Mauricio Guardado,|/3eneral Manager

Signature: y Date

Bn^rTZahn, Chief Financial Officer

ATTACHMENT



m Outlook

Request for Waiver of Late Fees

Fromjuan@sod.com <Juan@sod.com>

Date Thu 10/30/2025 10:33 AM

Wendy Sandoval <WendyS@unitedwater.org>

Nyvee De Leon <NyveeD@unitedwater.org>

To

Cc

|Proceed with caution. This email originated from outside the District.

Good morning, Wendy,

Iam writing in response to your letter dated October 1, 2025, regarding the outstanding balance of $80,137.83 for
Southland Sod Farms.

Isincerely apologize for the delay in payment. The delay was unintentional, and 1 have since taken steps to ensure

timely payments moving forward.

We have maintained an excellent payment history over the years, and take pride in being a reliable customer.

Irespectfully request a waiver of the late fees and interest charges associated with this balance.

Please let me know if any documentation or additional information would assist in this review.

I appreciate your time and consideration of this request.

Thank you for your understanding.

Sincerely,

Juan C Prado

This message was scanned by Microsoft.



Summary of Penalty and Interest Charges

Southland Sod Farms

Well

Number

GW 24-2

Penalty

Interest

Jul. - Sep. 2025

Account

Number
Total P&l

58.00 1,991.37

25.70

3,603.63

7,714.57

391.23

6,607.00

9,122.41

600-00010

600-00031

600-01370

600-01371

600-02140

600-02290

600-02310

600-02320

600-03480

600-03715

600-03720

600-03730

600-03740

600-03760

600-03810

01N22W12M01S

01N22W12N03S

02N22W31C02S

02N22W31N01S

01N22W24C03S

02N23W36H02S

01N22W25K02S

01N22W25K01S

01N22W24M03S

01N22W26D05S

01N22W26K04S

01N22W26M03S

01N22W26P02S

02N22W31D02S

01N22W26K03S

1,933.37

24.95

3,498.67

7,489.87

379.83

6,414.56

8,856.71

15.64

1,640.99

6,489.97

254.81

0.75

104.96

224.70

11.40

192.44

265.70

0.47 16.11

1,690.22

6,684.67

262.46

4,962.40

8,003.62

4,835.35

5,439.38

49.23

194.70

7.64

144.54

811.73

140.84

158.43

4,817,86

7,191.89

4,694.52

5.280.95

2,365.51 $$ 58,984.60 $ 61,350.11Totals:



RECEI\/F:D 

J I ( 

VNITll(II] WATE�t ()ON'S]iJ{VATJON llllSTJI.UC.I; 
I 70/ .\'. /.0111bard Street. Suite 100 Ox11arcl. C:I 9J()J()

I ... ..J 2 o 2u25 l'ho11e: (805) J ,--897-1 /;"mail: g11·reporti11g 111111itcd1rater.org 
SEMI-ANNUAL GROUND WATER PRODUCTION STATEME�T 

CHECI< . \�.:GJ i•l Reporting Period: 07/01/202-1 1 t(rolg!Cl<U�rD'202-I 600 0U0 I U I 0011060 SOl '11006 

S1atc Well '.'Jumbcr0lN22\Vl2M0ISState Recordation 1umber56 IJ7 I Well Operator (Mailing Address) 
SO THLAND SOD FAR1vlS PO BOX 579 PORT I IUENEME. C,\ 930-14-0579 

Well Owner: AG Lr\ND SERVICES INC Name of\Vcll: ITO I ORTHWell Use: AG Acres I rri!!aled: 0.00 Crops Grown: SOD 
1e1ep110nc: 
Email: 

Signed sm1crnc111 with mtvmcnl clue on or before: 01/31/2025. Late filings and pay1m:n1s subject 10 delinquent clrnrges. l'kase make a ropy for your recnrds. 
W,\TEll ,\IETEH 111: Meier J"ype/Scrial II: MCCROME !'Ell SERIAL /116-02255-08 Unit or Measure: /\F 

G.,'ti<e.t(,,,£ 897892 �To1ul Unit, x i\luh1phcr 0 0tll0 -;- D1v1dcr I � l'roducuon----- ----- ----D111e of 111st J/0111 meta c11/ibratill11 test: Meter photo required. WATER .\IETEll 112: Meler l'ypc/Scrial II: Unit of Measure: 
i\ktcr l(c"d l:nd111g _____ • lkg111n111g =Total Unus x �lult1phcr -;- 1)1l'1dcr � l'roducuon 
Dute of l11S1 jlow meter c11librntio11 test: 
1-:LE<.TRIC l'OWER ,\IETIIOll: ivlctcrTypc/Scri:11 Ii: Unit of�lcasurc: ----------------------- ------KWI I for six-month period (,·nt·lo,c cop, of SCE s1a1cmcnt) Total Unn, , �l11h1phcr = l'rodue11on -------Dm,: of last Southern California f:tli.rnn l.:Jjicicncy Test. ---------------

Tomi l'rod11c1io11 (Hound to 1hr 11c11rr,1 h1111drnl1h ,\F xxx .xx): 
:'\'O\:-i\G/0O� I ESTIC' l 'SE 
Number of' People: D , 0.2 per person or .50 minimum = Total Domrstir l's111-(t': ________ AF
l.iws1uck(11umbcr of'hc11d):D , 2,760 gallons pa head-;- 325.85 l(gallons in an AF), 
EXl:'.,\11'1'1O:',S: l1111ctiv,: Well □ 
TOT,\I. ,\(;ltl('t'I.Tt'IUI. \\'ATER IISAC;E: (t:; 8 _Cf7 , Rmc $280 J2 = 

--'��'-----TOTAi. NON-,\G/DO�IESTIC \\',\TElt 1 1SAGE: 
Total Prodncuon 
Tot:11 Producuon x R<1tc SJ 12 76 · 

Ct'IHtENT ('I l,\ltG ES: 

DEl.li',QtlENT l'EN,\I.T\ CIU!tGES: 
DELIN()l'ENT L\'TEHEST Cll,\ltCES: 
TOTAi. ,\�IOL 1NT E:\'CLOSED I',\ \'ABLE TO: 

kv'A 1n r"WJffe"

tJ. / 11 /1.� 
l'rC\'I0US llalancc Duc(i\dd) $ 695.83 

----------l'rcv1011s Crcd11(Suh1rac1) S 0.00 
If stme111e11t is µostmark,•d f!/tcr //! /(} !0!5 mid 11/�o of Current Cl111r;.:es S 

If payment is pos1111arkcd after OJ Of 1//!5 11dd /% of Total Clwr;.:es S I OJ �3.?i 

l '\:�":,::�:��'.1;;:1:::.:��::;:':.:'.;;1�:· ;:•;:'.r1;::;., ( t1 ?J � , �/:t $
-----------

I DECI.,\ RF under the pc1111l11c, of 1>crJ11� 1ha1 1h1> \\aler production staicmcnt has been ex.11111ncd by me and tc compklr �tah.·mcnt 
Date: 2 l l(>\ '2-� Sig11a111r,::: ___ 1...:�����=--l;'.�=::.=::���L.....----
This St11/t!llll!11t is 1101 c11111pletc 1111/en· si;.:11etl. 
·nh: prod11c1wn rh:11gL" dc1cnnml'd m 1h1� �Hlh.'mc1111cpri:1:crus ;1 chnrgc for pump111g ground \\3h.'r Umtcd \Vntl--r uses these funds 111 1b' 1111�!-ion to u:pkni�h ground\\ah:r throughou1 thc D1>tnc1 Scc11011 74508 of the Cnhlim110 Wnter Code grams:, \Voter Conscl'\ auon D1s1nc1 1he 11gh1 10 dmrgc for g1oundm11cr production a5 a means 10 co, er the co11 of g101111d\\:tler rcplc111:-il11m:r11 ,md St,·11on 75611 IC'-1UUC� 1.'ach opcrntor of each ,,a1cr prod11c11011 fac1ht� (\\c:ll 110 file \\ 11h th..: 1>1smct a s1a11.:mc01 pro, 1d111g producuon 111 1hc prcn·cding six month period There 1, no 11dd111onal 1ilmJ! ft."C 10 file 1h1:, Malcrncnt w11h U1111c.:d \V:ih:r pursu:mt to Cahfornm \\later Codc 5009 Upon good cause sho,,11. an amc.:ndc.:d st:ucmc.:nt Of\\:tlcr pro<lucllon ma� he tiled or a correction of 1hc recm<l� ma� be m�<lc Jt m1� ume pnor to the tin:tl date for filmg the next \ell\1•:mnual \\nlcr produc11on stnlcmcm pursu:tnt 10 Cahfomrn \\'01cr Code 7561 S



' 
I 

I _,.J 

: __ ,. :, .. f 
• 

" L,. ..
ONrr11•:U) VIATU�[t CONS];:tRVATION .11:.»Is·rnt1!CT 

1701 .\'. l.0111/wrcl Street. Suire 100 O.rnard. C.-1 93030 
!'hone: (805) 317-897,J l:'111ail: gll'repor1i11gla1111i1ecl,ra1er.org I 

SEMI-ANNUAL GROUND WATER PRODUCTION STATErENT 
..,,, - .. 

�tl-i 10'7.5

f;2_5 I-12. 
600 00031 1000080 SOl'002H Reporting Period: 07/01/20,2'.� tllr&ug�l�]�l/20_2_.:L.-2. 6.:::>L:> 7°/ 
St:itc Well Number O I 122\V 12NO,S 
Stale Rccordation I umber56 I 680 
Well Operator (Mailing Address) 

Well Owner: 
Name of Well: 

AG I.AND SERVICES INC 
ITOMAl1' 

SOUTHLAND SOD FARMS 
PO BOX 579 
PORT I JUE EME. CA 930-1-1-0579 

Well Use: /\Ci 

Acres Irrigated: 13 I .00 
Croos Grown: SOD 

l e1ep11one:

Email:  

Signed statement with pnvmcnt clue on or bcfl1rc: 01/31/2025. I .111c lilings and payment, s11bjcc1 10 ddin11uc111 drnrges. l'lca,c make a copy for yo11r records. 
\\ .-\TEil ;\IETEll 1/1: Meter Type/Serial#: SN: 891100-10 Unit nf Measure: AF 
�kier Read l,nd111g \ 0 ·W -IJegmnmg i26 lvtalUnn, Q_Ctlf- x:\lul11pher 00010 .,.!)1"1der I =Prrnluct1()11 . '2,C\4-

Date of fflst jlou· meter rnfibrntion ff.,t: 

______ -----

J\lctcr photo required. 
\\'ATER J\I F.TF.H 112: Meter rypc/Scrial /1: Unit of Measure: 
�kier Read Endmt: • lkgm11111g =Total ll1111s � M111!1pli<'r .,. D1\'1dcr 

------ ------ ------ ----

Date of (I/St jluu• meta mfibmtiu11 t,Jt: 

ELECTRIC l'UWl-:lt :\IETI 101): Meter rypo:/Scrial II: Unit of Measure: 
K WI I for si,-11101\lh pc110d {l'nclosc cop) of SCI: statement) To1al Unn, , �1ul11plier = Product 10n 
Date of /11.1·1 Sourltem C11/ifomi11 Edi.1·t111 Efficienq Te.1·1. ----------------

Total l'nnluclion (l{onnd In 1111· 111•:11·rsl hnndrcdlh AF �u.u): 

:-iO:-.'-.\G/IJO�1ESTIC l'SE 
Number of People: D x 0.2 per person or 50 m11111m1111 = Tot:d l>umcstit- l °Su!!e: _________ /\F 
l.ivcstock(numbcr ofheadJ:D x 2.760 gallons p,r h,ad + 325.851 (gallons in an i\F): Total i\un-AG l'sa!!e: _________ 1\F 

1-::XE:\flYrtO:-iS: ft111cri,·e Well □ 
TOTAL .\Gillet ·t.TI IIUI. W,\TEll l 'S,\(;1-:: 
TOT.-\ L :-iOi\-,\G/11O�1 ESTIC \\'.-\ TEil l 1SA(;E: 
Ct 'IHU::-iT CIIA H(; l·'.S: 

Total 1'11wl11c11c111 
I 0111I i'ruducuon 

Lc,v 1J 111 ,pe.,r f 1)/) 
2. I ii)-/ ,i., 5' 

, Rme S280 32 = 
., R,,te SJ I 2. 76 � 

s 24'].4� s _ __::;____,:c_.,JL...:_.;._;;___ 

l'rev1011s Balance D11c(i\dd) S 2.2-l -----------1' r C \'IO US Crccli1{Sub1rnc1) S 0.00 
HEt.1:-QL'E.Yl" l•E:-A I.T\ CllAHGES: (/ <t<lfe111e111 is 1m<1111arlwd after 01 /1) 1015 odd 10°0 of Currell/ Charges S 

-----=-
1,_rr-q _--,1::,

DEt.1:-QlT\T 1:-.'TEHEST Ctl.-\llGES: 

TOTAL .\�IOlXr E:\CLOSED I',\ YAIILE TU: 

lfpayme111 is pus1111orked ofter OJ OJ 2025 add 1 °0 of Tow/ Cltorges 
for eaclt 1110111ft rite s//1/e111e111 is past due 

C\ <{ 
l ·....-rrrn WAT EB CO'-SER\.,\TJON JJJSTJIJ<T 2----\ 

I DECI.ARE 1111ucr 1hc p,·11al11c, u( pcrJut, 1ha1 1h1� \\ alcr p1ml11c11011 ,1a1c111em ha, hccn cxa111111eu hy me ,met 10 

s 

s 

cornpktc stalcmcnt 
Dare: '2 \ \c>\ 2..S Sig11a111re .. · ___ .....l'--��:..l(!�=:e...::=-����.;:,,,cn�-----

Tltis S/(lfe111e111 is not complete 1111/ess sig11c1tl. 

I he proct11c11on ch:iri;c <h.:h:rrnmcd 111 tlm, o;.1a11.:mcn1 represent!, n chnrgc for pumping ground \\:llcr Un11cd \Vatcr u�c� 1h1:�c funds in II!-' 1111�b1on to n:plcmsh groumh,nh.:r thrnughout 1hc District Section 7-1508 of 1hc Cnlifomi:t \Vnh.:r Code gr�mt� u \Vntcr Comc1 vn11011 D1s1rict Ill\.' nght to chmgi.: for groundwater produc11on us a means to CO\ er thl.' cost of i;rcunah,ah.:r 1cpk111!<ihmc111 ,md Seel ion 75611 rc<1u1rc� each Of)Cfllll•r of each ,,·all'' prodm·11011 foc1ht� (\\di) to rile with 1hc D1litnc1 :i s1:1h:mcnt pro\'11J111g production in the prccccthni; s1, 111\Jllth 1>t:no<l I h,:rc 1s no add111on:il filing fee lo file 1h1:-i c;1n1eme111 '"11h U111h:d \Vatcr 1nm,unnt to C;1ltfor111n \Va1cr Code 5009 Upon good came �ho,,n. nn amended :-il.itcnu:111 of,\,UCr pro<lucllon ma� be filed 01 a cmrc1.:11011 ofthi: rcccud, ma.� he 111:Hk :u :111� lime p1101 10 the linal <lati.: for liltni:; lhL' nc"'l:t ,cm1-annunl ,,.11cr production s1:ttcmcnt pun-uanl to C::1hfom1a Wn1e1 Code 75u 18 

7 

l



I 

,. .. ,· I 

.c'? ;1 ·., .. �:I �.lf:JNITll �I) WAT] �II{ CONSIJt:IRVATION .nHrr1J ICT 
� ·.,. � - , •. ' 170 I :\". l.0111/Jard Srrcer. Suire 2(/(I 0.1·11e1rd. ( ·.-1 9JOJO "-1 · 

rtJ 2 O 2.0'£� 
l'ho11e: (805) J 17-897./ 1�·11wil: .�wrepor1i11g·a 1111i1edll'aler.nr� 

\1. r 1-H Zffl3 
SEMI-ANNUAL GROUND WATER PRODUCTION STATEMENT 

. d-<f/ $32• o,S
CHECK Al\'IUUN I· 'f' 

600 01370 1003230 SOI "(IOIII Reporting Period: 07/0 I/ 02tPrfllr�_1_�_l?�/2Q14_ .2.b 3-..0.l� I 
Slate Well umber 02 22\VJ I C02S 
Slate Recordation Number56 I 5-19 
Well Operator (i'vlailing Address) 

SOUTHL/\NDSODFARMS 
PO BOX 579 
PORT HUE1 EME, CA 93044-0579 

\Veil Owner: SOIJTI II./\ D SOD FARMS

Nnmc of\\/ell: (EAST) 
\\/ell Use: 
/\crcs lrri1.rntcd: 435.00 
Cro1>s Grown: SOD. VEGf::T/\f3LES 

I c1cp11onc: 

Email: 

Signed sm1cmcn1 with pavrncnt due 011 or before: 01/31/2025. I.ale filings :inti pa) mc111s subJccl 10 dclinqucm charges Please muke a copy for )Our recurds 

\\ ,\TER .\ltTER #I: Meler Typ.::/Scrial ;/: S 20052208-10 --------------------------- Unit orMcasun:: /\F 

Meter Read Encllllg '107054 - l,cgltln111g ___ 7_82_ 8_•1_8 =Total U1111, I 24-Si I � �t.,l11phcr 
_

o
_

.0
_
0
_
1_0 71)1v1dcr ___ _ Product1on \ 2.4 . g \

D,11,• of/11srj11J"' merer mlibmri/111 rest: 

\\"ATER .\IETER #2: i'vlctcr Typl!/Scrial fl: 

�kier Read Ending · Bcgmmng -----
DIiie of last flow merer calihmrio11 rrsr: 

ELtCTRIC l'O\\ EH .\IETIIOU: Meter Type/Serial II: 

Meter photo recpiirct.1. 

-Total Units x �1ult1pltcr 

K \VI I for SIX·lllOlllh pc nod (enclose CllP>' ot" SCI: Slalcmenl) Tomi lJ1111s x Mul11pl1er-------
Dare of/11sI S011Ihem C11/ifomi11 Edison £Jjicie11cy Tes/. ---------------

Unil or Measure: 

7 D1v1dcr = Produc11011 

Unit or ivkasurc: 

1)1, 1dtr = Prodm:11011 

Total l'rodurlion (Hound lo 1hr nrarr,t hullllrrdlh AF H>.l\): 

'i0.'i-.\C/00�1ESTIC l SE 

Numb.::r of People: D ),. 0.2 per person or 50 minimum= Tola I Domeslir l"sn,:r: ________ J\F 

Lives1ock(n11mbcr ol"head):D x 2.760 gallons per head "7" 325.S5 l(gallons in an J\F) T111al :'ioo-,\C: 1·s11,:!·: ________ J\F 

EXDWrlO:"/S: l11ae1il-e Well □ 
TOTAi. AGHICl'l.lTIUI. WATER L"SAGE: x Rate $280 32 

TOTAL NON-,\G/llO,\IES"I IC \\"ATER t SAGE: 

l"ot,1I l'rodue11011 

I otal l'rnt.lucuon ., Rah: $_j12 76-

$ ·?, 4 I ct f:¾, ;74-
S 

C'l'HHE\T CIUHGES: 

llEl.l:-;QL1E:'>T PE:'>AI.T\" C"l l,\l{GES: 

OEI.I\Ql'E:'>T I\TEREST Cl l,\IH"; ES: 

TOTAL A�IOL'i\T ENCLOSEO I',\ \"AHLE TO: 

t/r,,/1,s l'rcv1ou, llalancc Due(1\dd) 

l'rc, 1ou, Crcd11(Sul11racl) 

s 
s 

6.5-15.59 

0.00 
{fsw1e111<•1111.< po.,·tmarketl tl}tl!r (}] IIJ :!li:!5 111/d /O"o 0JC11rrem Cltt1rges S '.?zv\ &\ i,

$ 
_

_____ ..,__.,__� lf
paymem ispo.1·r,11arkedajit!1" OJ 0/ 2015 arid 1 °0 o/1"0111/ Cl111rues 
for each 1110111h rhe .Iw1e111e111 is fltlII due 

r:-nTED \\',\TEH CQNSEB\'AJIO:-1 PISTBJCT 

I DFCI./\RF under the penalties uf pt:rJury that this \later prod11c1io11 slatemcnl has hccn cxa111111rd by 111c and 10 the 
complete statcmenl 

Dale: 2 \ \ 0 ) 2. S Sig11at11re: _
_ 

__,i"""''\ll�ry;�::,.;;;=--"\�ri,gi;q;:,_.��J.-:----
This Sr11Ie111e111 is 1w1 comp/1!/I! 1111/ess signed. 

1 hL" produc11011 ch3rgc dctcnn111cd 111 1h1s sl;m:rm .. ·nt rcprcc:cnt� a ch.ugc 1(1r p11mp111g gwund ,,.11cr UIHtl..'J \\Inter m,I."� th1:�c lirnJ� 111 w; nm,s1on to rcpk111sh groumh,,11c1 1l11011ghuu1 1hc 
Di�tnct Scct1011 74508 of the C:tllfotnrn \Vn1cr Code gr;1111s a \\'atcr Con<.icn allon D1stncl the 1ii;ht 10 c.:hargc fur gruu11U,,a1L'I pro<luct1t111 a� :l mean� tu cm c1 1hc co�t of gnumd,,:ttcr 
rl.'plcnishmcnt :md Section 75611 n:qum:s each opr:r:11or of each ,,.11c1 pt0duct1on f11c1hty (\\ell) tu tile with lhL" D1stnct :a !iltllcn11.:n1 pro, 1ll111g pro<luc11011 1n 1hc prccccd111g :ti� 1110111h 
period rJ1crc 1s no ndd1t1011al Jilmg l\.·c to file this stnlcnh:111 ,, 11h l J1111cd \Vatcr pursuant to (";llifon11u \V:11cr Cmk 5009 LI pun goud cau,I.' shown. ;111 a111c11dcc.l ,11111:1111.·nt of ,,:Her 
production ma) bl." tiled or a cu11cc11011 of the. 1cconh IIHI) he 111:ulc at :m; 111ni.: pn<11 to 1hc 1iru1I d:ttc f'nr fil1111,; the 11c-..:1 'l'IIIH1111uml \\,tier prnducuon �1�1h:mcn1pu1,ua111 111 Cahforma 
\V:itcr Code 756 t 8 



., 
... 

i-\ C) o 1u1s
r i:."" r...

UNfl11�lll W.ATJEII{ CONND�IVATION UISTUtltr 
17(1/ ,\'. l.0111hard Srreer. Suire 200 Oxnard ( ·.·I 9JOJO 

l'lw11e: (805) 31 i-897-l ! l•:111ail: g111repor1i11g!t�1111i1edll'<11er.org 
SEMI-ANNUAL GROUND WATER PRODUCTION STATE ENT 

1 2 i='E8 101.:i 

CHEC: ,,'.:l,J1'' 
'i. '71.//313 · � y

600 01371 l003H0 SOl'00I I Rcponing Period: 07/01/20 -tCittfoGgh '.!._�:l I /2Q�1- 2B 2,0-/ '1 

Siate \Veil "lumber 02N22\V3 I NO IS 
Slate Rccordaiion Numbcr560932 
Well Operator (Mailing Address) 

SOUTHLA1 DSODFARMS 
PO BOX 579 
PORT I IUENEME, CA 93044-0579 

\Veil Owner: SOUTI II.AND SOD FARMS 
1amc of Well: TEAL CLUl3 

\Veil Use: AG 
Acres Irrigated: 435.00 
Cro1>s Grown: SOD. VEGETABLES 

I c1ep11onc: 

Email: 

Signed statement wi1h payment due on or before: 01/31/2025. I.aw filings and payments subjccl IO dclinqucm charges. l'lcasc make a copy for your rcconl,. 

\\',\TER .,11-:TEI{ 111: Meler TypdScrial #: SN: 20023001-10 llnil of Measure: AF 

· Bcg111n111g JJ5.1u�101al U1111, 2«, l lci X ,\luluphcr 00100 -;- Dl\·idcr I= l'roducuc•n z_co·1. /Ci 

Date of/11stjloll' meter mlihrt1tio11 test: 

----- --- ----

i\·lctcr photo required. 
\\'ATER :\IETER /12: Meter Typc/Serial If: Unit or i\ lcasun:: 

� letcr Read End mg - 13cg11111111g. =Total Un11s x i\luh,phcr l'roducuon 
----- -----

D111e oflastjlow 1111•turnlibmtiu11 trst: 

El.l::CTRIC 1'0\\'EI{ ,\I ETIIOU: Meter Type/Serial II: -----------------------
KWII for ix-month prnod (cnclo,c cop}· of'SCE stalcmcnt) Total Units x Muliipl1cr D1v1ckr 

Dme of last Southern California Erfo·o11 l:.fjicie11cy Test. 
---------------

Uni! or Measure: 

- l'roduct1011

Tolnl l ·'rodurliou (lfouud lo th(' 11r11n,1 h1111drrd1h AF \H.n): 
----------

;sOi'i-AC./llO,\IESTIC l'SE 

Number of Pcopk- D x 0.2 per person ,,r 50 mi nimum� Tut:1I llomrstic l'sai:c: ________ i\F

I I\ cstock(numhcr ofhcad):D , 2. 760 g11llo11� per he;ul-:- 325.851 (gallon, in an AF), T111:1 I  ;sun-,\C l sa�c: ________ !\F 

1-:xi::�11•nONS: /1111ctive Well D 
TOTAi. AGHICl'L'ITIUI. \\',\TEH l lS,\GE: 

TOTAi. ;sQN-AG/DO�IESTIC WATER I 'SAGE: 

Cl 'RHE:"/T CIIAHGES: 

Total l'roduc11011 

I otal l'roduc11011 

2 � ·1 , I 9 , Rate $280 32 -

x R.11c $312 76 -
s 7 4-, '6 9� .7 0 
s 

' 

l'rc, 11,u, l!alanc(' Duc(Add) S 1.-174.9-1 
----------

l'rc, mu, Crcdn(Sub1r:1c1) S 0.00 

DEl.t:\'QllE,'\T l'E:SAI.TY Cll,\llGES: 

llEl.l.'IQllE:"/T 1:-..:TEHEST Cl URGES: 

lf .1·1at1•111e111 is postmark<'d aft<'r 02 /1) 2025 at/ti 10"., 11JC11rre111 C/rnrg,:s $ 3:':1 ytJ_ 1J1
lfpoy1111•11t is pos1111ark<'d after 03 (// 2025 at/ti I 0;, of Total Charge.,· s 

/i>r each 111011th the stote111e11t is past due 

TOTAl. .\�IOtXr E:-CI.OSEn l'AY,\131.E TO; l'�ITFP WATUl ro�SE)l\lATIO'\ IHSTIU<T 

I DECLARE under !he 11c1mlt1cs of pcl)UI)' thal 1l11s "'Ila prud11c11011 statemclll ha, hem c,ammcd by me amt 10 c 
complete s1atc111c11t 

\ Dme: ? \ \ U _ 2 S-- Sig11ut11re:· __ _:L:=����=-=::...)�������---

This Statement is 1101 compll!te t111l.:ss signed. 

1 lu: pro<luc11on charge dc1cm1111cd 111 tl11s s1:111:111cn1 rcprr..-scnts a c:h:ngc for pumplllfi ground \\:lier Umtcd \Vatcr use� thc�c fumh 111 ti!,' 1111::.!iolOn to replenish groun<l\\:llcr throu�lhrnt the 

D1Mric1 �ctmn 1-isos of 1hc C;-ihforma \Vatcr Co<lc grnnb a \Vatcr Conscr\;Hlon n1:i-1r1c1 1hc right 10 charge for 1,1m111d \\:11cr produc11on as a mean� 10 co, er the cost or groundwater 
rcplcm�hmcnt :rnd Sccuon 75611 rct.1um.!S each opcrn1or of c;ich \\:tier production foc1ht) (\\ell) to tile" 11h 1hc l)1i,,1nc1 a .-.1:1tcnh,:11t pro\ 1d111g p1oduc11on 1n thc 1m,:cccd 111g :,.1:\ month 
pcrio<l I here 1s no a<ld111011nl fihni; fee 10 file this st01c:111c111 \\llh U111Icd \V::itcr pt.u�unnt to Cahfomrn \Va11.:r Code 5009 lJpon gond l.'Ull)t: �hO\\ll, :111 :1111cndc<l stalcnh:1\1 of \\!lier 
production may he lilcd nr a com •. -c11on of the h.'COld!t m.t� he.· m:tdc at om) 111111.: p11or to the linal date for filmg. 1hc ni.:,t ,c1111•:11111tml ,,ah:r producllon ,1�uc111cnt pur�unnt 10 Cahforma 

\Va1cr Code 75618 

i 



J / ..... ! .•�', 

.!;:,, I 
-'.�; ·�, UNflED WA11:ill- C"ONSERV.ATION DISTRI( 1'T 

_..., l O £.ULJ 
170 I N. Lombard Streat, Suite 200 Oxnard, CA 93030 \Phone: (805) 3 I 7-89741 £mail: gwreporti11g@11nitedwater.org d:B 'O��J 

�s.-i1. l :3SEMI-ANNUAL GROUND WATER PRODUCTION STATEM
,�:1::c,<

. .' 
·J.J•' 

600 02140 1005170 SOU0045 

State Well Number0IN22W24C03S 
State Recordation Number� 
Well Operator (Mailing Address) 

SOUTHLAND SOD FARMS 
PO BOX 579 
PORT HUENEME, CA 93044-0579 

_ Reporting Period: 07/0 l/2024 lflw>sg)KH?:.01/2024 ___ 

Well Owner: SOUTHLAND SQDFARMS 
Na.me of Well: TAYLOR MAIN WELL 
Well Use: AG 
Acres Irrigated: 97.00 
Crops Grown: SOD 

1e1ep110ne: 

Email: 

2.,E0)� 

,Signed suucnu:m with paymcm due on or before: 01/31/2025 Late filings w,d payments subject to delinquent charges. Please mnke n copy for your records. 

WATER METER Ill: Meter Type/Serial II: SN: 873453 -------------------------Unit ufMcusurc; AF 

Meter Read: Ending: • S5 5 :z. 7d-icginmng: 1541716 QTotul Units: \ "3$ S4-x l\lultiplicr; .001 + Divider; I• Production; \ �.SS 

Dale of last flaw lrU!ler calibration test: 
WATER METER 112: Meter Type/Serial II: 

----
Meter photo required. 

SN: 873498 Uuit of Mcusurc: AF ------------------------- -'-=-----
Meler Read: Ending: _____ - Beginning: __ O ____ 0Toud Units: _____ x Multiplier: ....,QQL + Divider: ____ g Production: ____ _ 

Dale of fast flow meier collbrollan test: 
ELECTRIC POWER METHOD: MctcrTypc/Scriul //: ----------------------
KWH for six-month period (enclose copy ofSCE SU!lcmelll}: Totnl Units: x Multiplier: ------
Dr,te of last S1mthem C11/ifomill t'1/iso11 Efjicie11cy Test: --------------

Divider: 

Unit of Mcusure: 

g Production: 

Tolol l'roductioo (Round to the ocar�t hundredth AF 1:u.11): ___ \�3�• _5_5 ____ _ 

NON-AG/DOMESTIC US£ 

Number of People: D x 0.2 per person or .50 minimum c Tutal Dume�tic Usage: ________ Af 

Livcstock(numbcr of hcnd):D x 2,760 gallons per hcud + 3 25,85 l(gullons in an AF) = Total Non-AG Usagc: ________ Af 

EXEMP11ONS: /1 111ctive Well □
TOTAL AGIUCULTUllAI. WATER USAGE: 

TOTAL NON-AG/DOMESTIC WATER USAGE: 

CURRENT CHARGES: 

Total Production 

·1 oUll Production 

x Rote: $280.32 Q 

)2cv 1d I Y\ µ. f (fr' 

/ I)._ 
Previous Balance Duc(Add) 

?- / fl-- 5 Previous Credit(Subtract) 

$ 1,778.79 

$---------0.00 
DELINQUENT PENALTY CIIAH.GES: lfstawmcm is postmarked after 02/10/2025 ntld JO% ofC11rre11t Charges S ______ 3..._3:._'.4'_,__, _S'_...3
DELINQUENT INTEREST ClL\RGES: 

TOTAL AMOUNT ENCLOSED l'AYABLt: TO: 

If payment is postmarked after 03/01/2025 111/cl /% ofTaial Charges S 
for each month the st11temen1 is past d11e ----------

� =}-0. s,; 
lJNlTEU WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT $

I DECLARE under the penalties of perjury lhat this water production stulcmcnl has been examined by me nnd 
complete statemcnL 

Date: / \ \..a L '2. s:: Sig11at11re: __ _\....::...;��-¥��=-������U..-----

This Sw1e111e111 is 11at complete 1111/ess signed. 

The production clmrgc dctc.-nnincd in lhis SU:ttcmcnt rc1Tc.scn1s u charge fur pumpmg uround w-...,Ler United \Vatcr uses these fwtds in its' mission to replenish ground,vutrr 1J11oughout the 
District Section 74508 of the Californi11 Water Code grants a Waler Conserv•lion Uistrict U1e right to charge for groundwater producuon as a means to cover U1c cost of groundwJter 
replenishment and Section 75611 requires C1eh opc:rator of ruch wutcr producuon facility ("1:11) to file with U1e Districl a Sllllcmcnt providing production in U1c precc:cding six monU, 
period There is no additional filing fee to lilc this statement w1Ut United Water pursuant 10 California Water Code 5009. Upon good cause sho"n, w, amended statement of \\'dlcr 
producuon may be liled or• correction ofU,e records may be mwlc al any time prior 10 Ute final dale for lilinu the next semi-annual w-Jler production sw1ement purswint 10 Cal1fon11u 
Waler Code 75618. 



.,•: I J 
•• -• "':C-

UNrru,:u WATll�IR CONS]�U{VATION ])ISTIRJCT 
170/ .\". Lo111harcl S1ree/, Suite 200 0.rnard. ( ._., 93/130 

RECEIVf:n 

i 7 ff:B lOZ5 
/'l,011e: (805) JI 7-897-1 /;'111ail: gll'repol'li11g 111111i1edwa1er.org, 

SEMI-ANNUAL GROUND WATER PRODUCTION STATEn�H��1:r< 
.. , .... "' lo s;: �'t)-� 1 

Reporting Period: 07/0 1ndJ41thro�g!U�/3 I /2Q.2-1 . 2._6::3 o,Gl (,OU 02290 1005450 SOL'OOJS 

Slate \\'ell Number 02N23W36H02S 
Stale Recordarion umber 561690 
Wt:11 Operntor (l'vtailing Address) 

SOUTI IL/\ND SOD FARMS 
PO BOX 579 
PORT HUENEME. CA 930-14-0579 

\Veil Owner: SOUTHLAND SOD F,\RtvlS 
Name of\Vcll: CONWAY SOUTH 
Well Use: /\G 
Acres lrri!!aled: 225.00 
Crops Grown: VEGETABLE 

I e1ep11one:  

Emai I:  

Sjgncd sra1e111cn1 wjth payment due on or before: 01/31/2025. I.ate filings and payments s11bjcc1 to delinquent churgcs. Please make a copy for your record·. 

WATER ,\I ETEI{ 111: Meier Type/Serial II: SN: 11-03349 llnit of'l'vlcasun:: AF 

O O I 00 -;- D1v1drr I = l'md11c11nn �kier Read E11d111g 0e,7Ck- - lleg1nn111g ____ .1J_·s_·2_.l -To1al l '1111> 2.2_8,Z3, :-.l11h1plaer 
---- -----

Dme of Inst flow meter c11/ibr111io11 test: 

\\',\TER ,\IETER 112: �Icier Type/Serial II: 

Meter Read· Endmg - Oeg111n111g =TOia! Unus 

i\lctcr photo required. 

, Mul11pllcr 

Unit or l'vlca,urc: 

.;.. D1v1der = l'rod11ct1011 
----- ----- ---- -----

D111r 11fl11s1jlow mr1,•r c11/ihr111io11 test: 

ELECTIUC 1'0\\'ER -'11•:TI IOD: Meter T) pc/Serial#: Unit or l'vkasurc: 
-----------------------

K \\'I I for sax-month pc nod (enclose cop> of SCI: statement) Total U1uts , 1\l11lt1pher D1,1der = l'roducuon 
-------

Dute 11/ last S1111rhem C11/ifomia Edison Effic:iency T,m. 
---------------

Tot n l l'rnd111·tio11 (Ho1111d to thr nearest huudrrdth ,\F �xx.n): L
L

. 2. � 5 
_______ ::;__ __ 

.\'O:'\-,\C/LJO�IESTIC' l'SE 

Number of Pcopk· D x 0.2 per person ,1r 50 m1n111u11n = Totul l1n111c,tic I ·�age: ________ ,\F 

l.ivcstock(number ol'head):D x 2,760 gallons per head.;.. 325.851 ()!allons in an i\F) • Total Non-,\G l 1sagc: ________ /\F 

EXDIPTIO:'\S: l1111ctil'e Well □
TOTAL AGRICTl.1TlUI. WATER tlSAGE: 

TOTAL :'\0:-S-AG/llO�IESTIC \\'ATE!{ I SM.I·.: 

Total l'rodueuon 

I oml l'roducuon 

L 2 '2 .� '.3 x Ral\' S280 32 = 

x Rate SJ I.:! 76 = 

Cl'llHE'iT CIIAHGES: 

1>1-:1.tNQl'E'iT PE;-,',\ I.TY ('I I,\ RG ES:

lll•:I.INQU::-T l.'\Tl•:1u-:ST CIIARGES: 

/2-W ifi I (I f-U� /V" 

1 I 11- I 1.-s
l're, 1011s 13alane,· D11e(J\dd) 

l'rcv1011s Crcdn(Subtrnct) 

lfsu,1<•111<•111 is 1w.w11ari-ed ci(la 01 /I} 1015 add 10°v 0JC11rrc111 Cltar;:es 

lfpay111e111 is //tJ.,111111rkecl after OJ 0/ 21125 mid l�o of7i>tal Charges 
for e11c/1 111011th the J/11te111e111 is past due 

TOTAi. AMOllt\T ENCLOSED l'A YABI.E TO: I ''\'(TEil W,\TER C'ONSFR\',\TION PISTRl<T 

I DECLARE under the pcnalues of p<:rJtH') 1ha1 1h1s \\,Iler producuon s1n1e111cnt hns been exa111111cd hy me and to 

s C94-, 14 5. 03

s 1.522.57 

s 0.00 

s l.oY ,q_ 
s 

co111pl�11..· ::,tntcmtlll 

Dare: 2 \ l<.)\ 2 S- Sig1111111re:: ___ !.,:�����=-������.L ___ _ 

This Sr11te111e111 is 11111 complete 1111/ess .,·iN11etl. 

I hc producuon chnrg.c <lc:11.·1m1ncd in th1� st:ltcmcrn h.:p11,;,i:111, ., charge for pumpmi; i;tound \,atcr l1111tcd \\ntcr u�c!!. thc!\c.* fun<l� m 11�· 1111 .. Mon 10 rcpkm:,h gtound\,atcr throughout 1hc
D1',tnc1 Sccuon 74508 of 1hc CJhfom1;1 \Vatcr Codc gr.ml:s, .1 \Vau.·r Conscr,,111011 D1;,1nc1 the ngiu to charge for groundw:ucr produc11on a� a mcnns 10 co,cr the cost of ground"nh:r 
rcpkm�hincnt and Sccllon 75611 rcqmrcs cnch operator of cach \\3lcr p1od11c11on foci lit� (\\ell} to file" 11h the 1)1�1r1ct a stntcmcnt llfO\ u.Jmg produc11on 111 the p1ccced111g ,1, month 
fk."r1od Then.· is no 1u.ld111tm11I film� foe 10 file 1}w, <ilntcn1 1:nt "1th lJn11cd \Va1cr pur!-uant to C:1hforn1a \V3tcr Code 5009 Upon good c;1u)c �hm,n. :m nmcndcd st�tcrm:nt ul ,,:111:r 
produl·11on may be filed m :1 co11cc1 1on of the ll'COfdli 111.1� he 111:tdc ;it ;rn� 111nc prior to the tinnl date for filrng 1hc nc\t scrm-nnnual \\;1h.:r prn<luct 1un :,t:ttcmcnt pur::,,unnt lu C:ahfo1111,1 
\V<11er Code 756 l S 



... J 20 2025
VNrn1;:n WATJl•JR CONSEKV.ATION]l)lSTIRlfT 

I 7() I ,\'. l.0111hard SI reel. Suite 100 0.rnard. C.-1 9 3030 
l'/1011e: (805) 3 / --89i-l l•:1110il: gll'rep11rti11g o 1111ited1ra/11r.org I 

SEMI-ANNUAL GROUND WATER PRODUCTION STATE
i��J"'r:." 

,_

Reporting Period: 07/0112og�ltif&t,i1r'f1i31120;2±. <,(Ill 0!310 I0U�H0 SOl'0008 

S1a1e Well Number O I 22W25K02S 
Sime Rccordalion Numbcr56 I 548 
\Veil Operator (Mailing Address) 

SOUTHLAND SOD FARMS 
PO IJOX 579 
PORT HUENEME. CA 93044-0579 

Well Owner: JOH F McGRATH 
Nameor\Vcll: /ii 
Well Use: AG 
Acres lrri1rnted: I 58.00 
Crops Grown: SOD 

1 e1ep11011c: 

            Email: 
Signed statement with payment clue on or before: 01/31/2025, I.ate filings and paymel\ls suhjccl Ill <ldinquent charges. l'Jcn,c make a cop� for y1111r record, 

WATER :\I ETER #I: :'l!ctcr Type/ 'crial ;i: S1 : 20180566 Unit or Measure: /\F 
--------------------------- -------

� lc t c r Read l:11d1ng z;Co.5 GI I O • Uq;11111111g ___ s_�'-1_'1_6_� -l'otal Unus � \5'i 4-'i? •: �luluplter _0_00_1_n � 1)1v1der ____ 1 = l'rodueunn -� \ 5 .9. 4 '8 

Dnte of 111st flow meter c11/ibr11tio11 test: Meter photo required. 

W,\ TF.R i\lETl::R #2: Meter Type/Serial#: Unit or l'vlcasurc: 

�Icier Read E11d111g · lkg,nning
----- -----

Dute of/11stj1011• meter c11/ibrflfio11 le�·,: 

-Total lJ11i1s , M11l t1pl1c1 - Protlucllon 

El.ECTIUC POWEi{ 1\IETIIOD: Meter Type/Serial Ii: Unit ur l 'vkasurc: -----------------------
K\\'11 for s"•111onth prnod (endosc copy ofSCE ,L,tcnll'nt) l'otal U1111s x 1-luh,plrcr DI\Jder l'rodue11011 

-------

Date of last Sa11them Califomia £tliso11 Efficiency TeJI. 

.\ON-A(;/llo�tESTIC L"SE 

---------------

�\c,J c\c::-,Total l'rmluction (Ruund lo thr nr:m·,c h1111drrd1h AF u.,.u): J ,_) -------�---

Number of Pco1ilc: D , 0.2 per person or .50 minimum� Total Domestic l'saJ!c: ________ /\F 

l.i,estock(numbcr ofhcad):D x 2.760 gallons per head+ 325.85 l(gallons in an /\F) = Tula I :"ion-.\G l SHJ!C: ________ AF 

EXE�tl'TIONS: /11octfre Well □
TOTAi. AGIUCLII.TlllUI. \\'ATER l'SAGE: 3 \ '.) ."'"\ s- x Rate $280 32 = 
TOT,\L NON-,\G/DO�tES-1 ll \\t\ t l·.I< l SA(;E: 

Total l'roduc11011 
I oml Prrn..luct1on ., Rat� $312 76 -

C!IRHE:'\T Cl URGES: 

DEU/\'Qt E:,(T l'EN,\LT, Cll,\HGES: 
llEI.INQt 'ENT 1/\'TEREST Cll,\ltGES: 

TOTAi. A�!OLINT E,\CI.OSl•:fl I',\ Y,\ULE TO: 

;2._ c.v 1) rr �-f CV' 

')../f:,.. /�-s: 
l'r<·,·1ous Ual:incc l>ue(i\cld) $ 3.208.00 

1'1ev1uu, Credu( ubtracl) S 
If Sfllll!/11('11/ i., 1m.,1111urketl q(ter n1 In ]015 111/d ,o�. 11JC11rrl!II/ ChllrJ:l!S s

/fpay111e111 is pos1111arked after OJ 0/ 10]5 odd/% of Tow/ Charges S 

---------
0.00 

for e11ch 1111111th the st111eme11/ is p11st due 
C-: (,, (' lQ 1. \ ----------

PIJ'rt-;p WATEB CONSEB\' 1\TJOi\' DISTIU<T 'O b ) 

I DECl.i\RE under the penalties of perJUJ) that 1h1s \\.iter produc11011 stntemem has heen e,am111cd hy me and 1 
complcll' statement 

Dt1 11!: 2-- \ \.0\ '2__ <; 

Thi.,· S1111e1111!llf is 1101 complete 1111/es.\ sig11ed. 

I hc p1oduc11011 ch�11gc Jc11.:1111111cd 111 1111:- :-IaIcmcI11Icprcscm:, a d1111g1.· fur pumprng ground \\;lier Urutccl \V:11a u,c:,, 1hcsc fund� 111 11s· 1111ssIon to rcph:111sh gro11ndwaIcr th1011gholll the 

DHilrict Sr..:ction 74508 of 1hc C:11ltfo111m \Vatcr Code grants a \\later Co11�crv11t1011 D1Mnct the nght to clrn1gc for g1oundwa1cr production as :1 mcan"i t(1 coH:r the cost of gro1111d,,a1c1 
rcplc.:nishmcnt and Scct1on 7 611 rcqu11cs each opcn11or of each \\':'.Itel flh)<luc.:11011 foc1li1� ( ,,ell} 10 file ,, 1th the l)i�t1 1ct ,1 ,1a1cmcnt 1no, 1dini; prod 11c11on 111 till' ph:cccdmg SI\'. month 
fk!nod ·nitre I� no .1dd111onal filing fr..: IO fik 1h1::, Matcrnc.:nt \\llh lJmtcd \\

l

ater pur�u:1111 to Callfomrn \Vn1c1 Code 5009 Upon good cause sho" n .. 111 :uncndcd stntcmc,11 or ":Iler 
produc11on rnay he li1cd or :1 <."OIIL'Ctton of the 1ccord5 111:1) be made .It nn, 11111c prior 10 the fin:il d:uc for filmy the nc!\t scm1•:m1111nl \\.tier p1oduL·t1on l-Ullcmcnt p111�unn1 to Cnhfornia 
Water Code 7561 X 



ON JTII �ll ..O �!ATJI �II{ CONSU �ll{V.I\TION II ]ISTlfUCT 
170/ X. Lo111hard Street. Suite 100 Oxnard. CA ?JOJO , 1 'j FF.8 tl, _, 

600 023211 I 00S4R0 SOl 'IIIIU? 

l'ho11e: (805) J ,--897./ L111ail: gll'reporti11g a 1111itedwa1er.01},; 

SEMI-ANNUAL GROUND WATER PRODUCTION STATEM9NT . I CHl::(;K ,.,· 

Reporting Period: 07/01/202-11tlrMM1 11 :ii:3))_202-1 

\ \o'P·o 18

S1a1e \Vell I umber O I l\'22\V25K0 IS 
State Rccordation Nurnbcr56 I 245 
Well Operator (Mailing Address) 

SOUTHLAND SOD FARMS 
PO BOX 579 
PORTH ENEYIE, CA 93044-0579 

Well Owner: .JOHN 1 7 McGRATH 
Name of Well: DOMESTIC 
Well Use: Ml 
Acres I rri!!atcd: 0.00 
Crops Grown: 

I e1ep11onc: 

Email: 

Signed s1n1cmcn1 with payment due on or before: 01/31/2025. Late filing" and paymenls s11hjcc110 dcli11q11c111 charges. Please make a copy !or �our rct:ords. 

\\',\TEil ,\IETEll /11: :vktcr Type/Serini II: 

�kier lkaJ l:ndrng · lkgmnlll!; -----
Dute of t11st jlo,v meter cnlibflltio11 test: 

\\',\TEil i\lETER 112: Mc1crTypc/Seria l ;/: 

Meler l(cad l:nchng • lkg111111ng -----
Dute of lri,r jlow met,•r ca/ibrario11 t,•.,·t: 

ELECTRIC 1'0\\'ER :'II ETIIOO: Meter Type/Serial :i: 

, \tulupher 

Meter photo required.

lo1al Units 

-----------------------

KWH for Sl\·lllOnlh period (enclose cop, of SCI: s1a1c111enl) To1al Un11, x �luh1phcr -------
Dale! of/11.1·1 So11tlter11 Califomia £diso11 EJ]iciem:y Test. 

---------------

D1v1dcr 

Uni, or Measure: 

1 - P1ncl11ctmn 

Unit or fvlcasurc: 

= 1'1odue11on 

Unit or Measure: 

= l'roduc11on 

To1al 1'ro1lur1ion (Hound lo 1hr 111·arrs1 hundrrdlh ,\F ,u.H): 

:-.ON-AGll)O�IESTIC' l'SE 

Number uf'l'copk· D , 0.2 per person 11r .50 111111im11111 = T111al Dumcs1ic l 0S:lJ!I': • � 1\F 

-----------

l.iws1ock(n11mbcr ui'head):D x 2.760 gallons per head-;. 325.851 (gallons in an 1\F), Total i\'1111-,\(; llsagc: ________ ;\F 

EXHHY l'IO:-.S: l11acti1·e Well □ 
TOT,\I. ACHICt'I.TIIIUI. WATEI( \ISAGE: x Ra1,· S280 32 = 

TOTAi. :-ION-AG/llO�I ESTIC \\ AT En t ·s.,t:E: 

·1 owl l'rnduc11on 

I 01JI l'roduc11on 

Cl'ltRE!\T Cl URGES: 

llEl.l:\'QL E:\'T l'E:\'Al.'n CIIAllGES: 

DEI.INQl �::->T li\'TEHEST CIIAltGES: 

TOT,\I. A�IOL'NT ENCI.OSEIJ I',\ \',\ULE TO: 

l'rcv1ous Balance Duc(Add) 

l'rcvrous C1cd11(Sub1rac1) 

If slalem,mt is po.,tmarked n(t,•r 02 /0 2025 add /0°. of Currell/ Cltrtr{:l!S 

l
f
paymellf is pos1111arkC'd afta 03 0/ 2025 at/ti !

0u of Tola/ Clwri:es 
for eaclt 1111111tlt lite s1111e111e111 is past due 

llNITEP W,\TEB C'ONSFHVATIQN l>ISTBl<'T 

1 DECLARE under 1hc pcnuhrcs or perJury 1ha1 1l11s \\nler producuon ,1a1cmc111 lliLS been exam med hy me ;md 10 

s 

s �S0.6P, 

s 10.-10 

s 0.00 

s l �. it?Y
s 

s \Co!c- 'l)S 
l �')... q2._

complete s1n1cmc111 
( Dale: 2 \ { (..) _ '2. C:: Sigmmm:: ___ .!......�=�==--�==�=a...J-___ _

Thi., Stnlc111e11t i., 1111/ cu111p/e1c 1111/e.u �ig11ed. 

The produc11on clmrgc Jctcrn111 1cd in tlm, stnicmcnt rcprc�cn1, n ch,:ugc rm 1rnmp111g ground \\-:lla Un11cd \Vntcr u�, . ._ these funds 11111�· m1ss101110 rcph:msh gro11nth\alc1 throughout the 
D1stnct Scct1on 74508 of the Cahforn1a \Vatcr Code grnnH. a \Vatl'r Con!>cl\ a11on o,�tnct 1hc right to ch:ugc for groundwater production :1-; n means to co, er 1hi: cost of ground\\atcr 
rcpk111.;h1m:nt and Scct1on 75611 rcqum.:s each OJX"r:llor of c:1ch \\,Her pro<lucltun fuc1ht) (,,ell) to file ,, 1th lhc Dn,tnct a !tl�llcrm:nt pro, 1dmi; produc11on 111 thc prccccding 'ii'< month 
pcno<l I here 1s no :td(htmn:11 tiling fee to tile this st:itcml·nl \\ 11h Unucd \V.111.:r pu�u:mt to California \\later Code �{)(}() Upon �ood cause sho,,n. an anh.:mk<l �latcmcnt of ,,atcr 
produc:11011 nm� bl· filec.J ot :t cnm.:cllon of the tcl·ord� ma� he made at itn) 11111e pnor 101hc finul date for lilmg 1hc nc,1 c.enu�:11111u:1l ,\nh:r pro<luctlon �l:\h.'mcnl pur:-un111 10 t"nhforma 
Water Code 7561 S 



RECEIVED 
·1

J !-: � 
UNITUQI}) WKl1l�lll CONSJl•:lllVATJON]l})ISTRlr!�T FE8 107.1 

,� ,, 
·-.·? ... 17111 .\". /,ombard Street. Suite 2(/(I 0.rnard, CA 9JOJO 

\ 
.J 

l'ho11e: (805) J 17-897./ I f111ail: gwreporti11g'rD1111i1edwa1er.org . 
1
.
\t) eeS 2. \SEMI-ANNUAL GROUND WATER PRODUCTION STATEMENif , 1 •• J '-

I�'.�·=•�'.( r'O· 2._Q,3:)7°1 
Reporting Period: 07/01/202¼ lhrouglfT27.H /to2,f-600 03�80 I 007800 SOI ·11012 

State Well I umber O I N22W24tvl03S 
Slate Recordation I urnber56 I 579 
Well Operator (Mailing Address) 

SOUTHLAND SOD FARMS 
PO BOX 579 
PORT HUENEME, CA 93044-0579 

Well Owner: SOUTHLAND SOD FARMS
Name of Well: SASAKI 
Well Use: AG 
Acres Irrigated: 80.00 
Crops Grown: SOD 

1e1ephone: 

Email: 
Signed statement with pa1•mcnt due on or before: 01/31/2025. L:Hc filings and payments subject to cklinquent charges. Pk:l�c make a copy for your records. 

W:\TtR �I tTtR /II: Meter Type/Serini II: MCCRO�ETER FLOW COM 2002300 I Unit or i'vkasurc: 1\F 

l\-lcter Read· Ending -i I 4- I LI- . llcg111111ng: 25560 =Towl U,111> 5'? Sl.J - ' Multiplier 0.0 I 00 -:- Divider I � l'rod11.-1ic,r1· c; e c; ----- ----
D11te of/11stjlow meter c11/ibrntio11 test: .\'Jeter photo required. 
W,\TER �IETl::R #2: Meter Type/Serial II: 

Meter Read· End111g - lkg111111ng =Total Units , Muluplicr ----- ----- -----
Date of 111st flow meter mlibratio11 test: 

ELtCTRIC l'UWER �IETIIOD: Meter Type/Seria l II: 

K\VII for six-month period (enclose copy ot"SCE staternelll)' Total Units. x l\lult,phcr -------
Date of last So111/rem C:11/ifomia Edison £/jiciene,t· Test. 

Unit or Measure: 

= l'roducuon. 

Unit or Me asure: 

D1v1dcr. = l'rod11c11on 

Total Production (Round to the u1·11rcst hunclrrclth .-\F xxx.�x): Se,, C� 4-_____ ......;......;; __ 
NON-AG/DO;\IESTIC IISE 

Number of Peopk: D x 0.2 per person or .50 minimum = Totnl Du111cstir l;SllJ!C: ________ i\F 

Livcstock(n11111ber ofhend):D x 2.760 gallons per head-:- 325.85 l(gallon, in a n  AF): Total i'ion-AG l ·�:lJ!C: ________ i\F 

EXE;\IPTIOi'iS: l1111cti1·e Well □
TOTAi. .-\GRICIJI.Tl lll1\I. W,\TER US.-\GE: 

TOTAi. NOi\'-,\G/DO;\IESTIC \\'ATER LISAl;Jo:: 
Tomi l 'rod11c1io11 
Tomi Produc11on 

x l(a1c: $280 32 = 
, Rate S, 12 76 = 

Cl llrnEi\'T Cll,\RGES: 

l>EI.INQLIENT l'Ei\'/\ I.TY Cl l,\RGES: 
01·:I.INQUENT li'"'fEREST CIIARGES:

TOTAi. /\�IOUi'"T ENCLOStO PAY.-\BI.E TO: 

Thi.1· St11te111e11t is 11/Jt complete 1111/e.,., signed. 

/4v ,). '"' p-U5'1Y'

? / I' / 1,.) 
l'rc\'IOIIS llalancc Duc(,\dd) 

l'rc\'1011s Crcdu(Subtrnct) 
((stat1•1111•111 is postmarked ,,fi,•r 011//J 2015 111/tl Ill"{, 11fC11rre111 Charge.,· 

(f"pny111e11t is postmarked (!fier OJdl/12025 adtl /% of 7ilftll Charges 

for /!I/Ch 1/1/)/1/h lilt! S/1/(l!l/l/!III is pas/ due 

l"NITFP WATER CONSFRVATIO:\' PISTR)CT 

$ 
$ 

$ 

$ 
$ 

$ 

-178.28 

0.00 

\lal-J{Ltf 

The prod11c1ion chari;c ch:h!nnmt.-<l in thts st.11cnh.'.nt ri..•pn:st:nts a chnrge for pumpmg ground water Umtcd \Valer uses thc�c funds 111 us' mission 10 rcpk·m!>h groundwa1cr 1hroughou1 the 
D1stric.:1 Section 74508 of 1hc Califomia \Vatcr Cmk i;r.tnl!i a \Vatcr Con.scrva1ion Distncl the ri�ht 10 charg\.' for gn.H111d,,n1cr production as a mc:tn!-1 10 cm er 1hc cos1 of groumh,a1cr 
rcplcmshmcnt ;md Section 75611 rC<Juircs each opcr.uor of c:ich w:ucr produc11on focil11y (,,di) to file with 1hc D1stnct a stntcmcnt pro, 1d1ng production 1n the prcc\.-cding sb. month 
period There 1s no add111onnl fihng foe to fit\.' 1h1s statcmcnl ,,11h Un11cd \Vatcr lHusuont to C:nlifon11a \V.ucr Code 5009. Upon good c.·ausc �h0\\11. an ;uncndeJ slatemcnl of waler 
producuon ma� b"· fth:d or n corn:ction of the n.-cmdi.. 111:t} be made at ;my time pnor to 1hc ftn:11 <late for filing the next scn11•annunl water production stalcmcnt pursu3n110 Califonua 
Wmcr Code 7561 S 



---------

RECEIVFri 
. . I 

ONrl11(11) WAT.ll�IR CONSEll{VATl()N :r»LSTl!tl(�T 
170/ X. l.0111hard Street, Suite 100 Oxnard. CA 93030 I 

/'/,one: (805) JI i-W/7./ !•:mail .. �wreporti11g 111t11ited,rater.urg 
SEMI-ANNUAL GROUND WATER PRODUCTION STATEM NT 

I f ;:-EH 202� 

600 03715 10118<,IIS SOl'0fl�0 

State Well 1umber O I 1 22\V26D05S 

Staie Recordation Numbcr562099 
Well Operator (Mailing Address) 

SOUTHLAND SOD FARMS 
PO BOX 579 
PORT HUENEME. C/\ 93044-0579 

CHE..,,, .... .lv,.. r� 

Rcporling Period: 07/01/202 (i'Jl"/:mfgll 121J 1/202.J 

Well Owner: SOUTHI.A D SOD FARMS 

Name of Well: CALLE S 
Well Use: AG 
Acres lrri!!.alcd: 592.00 
Cro1)s Grown: SOD 

I elephone:  

Email: 

4 (L) 4 q� I. &-r

e3DM J 

Signed statement with pavmcnt due on or before: 01/31/2025. L:lle filings nnd payments subject to delinquent charges. Please make a copy for your records. 

\\'.\TEI{ .\IETEI{ Ill: Meter !')pc/Serial//: MCCROMETER 2021072-1-10 U1111 ol' 1'1casurc: ,\F 

Meter Read l·.nd111g �(c; '-j ff 2JJ · ikg11111111g 

IJ111c of /11s1 flow 11u•1cr calibr111io11 1,•.fl: 

-----v-..----------:--:-',,(
86�6J0 ro1"I Urnts � x t\luluplter. 0 0010 -;- D" 1der � 

Meter photo required. 

I = l'roJ11c11nn 

\\'ATER METER 112: Meler rypc/Scrial II: �"'-\�-\-�..;;--�_Z�c�·�l�D�l�Q�S7-;,�--------------Unit ofM..:asurc: Af=-
Mctcr Read End mg 2. 7:, I �; 2- • lkgmnmg &, =Tot:11 Unns 2-3 \ S 2 , � t11!11phcr - 0 l -;- D1\ldcr = l'roduc11on 2. 'S \ S 2-
Dare of /asr jl11ll' melcr c11/ibr111io11 lrsl: 

t-:1.l�CTRIC l'O\\'ER .\IETIIOD: Meter Type/Serial Ii: Unit or Measure: -----------------------
KW! I for s1x-1110111h pcnod (rnclosc copy ofSCE stutement) fotal Uni1s 

_
_____

_ 
x 1'l11h1phcr 1)1v11lcr = Prod11c11011 

Date of last Southern California Edi!i011 EjJiciency Test. ---------------

Total Prutluc1io11 (ltoun,I 111 lhc 11carcs1 hundn·l11h AF ll.\.H): 

:\'O1'-AGmO�IE 'TIC l'SE 

Number of l'cuplc: D � 0.2 per person or .�0 minimum� Total nnmcstit I s11�1·: 2-'3 I · S 2 /\F 

l.1vcstock(11u1111Jcr ofhcadJ:D x 2.760 gallons per hcad-;- 325.85 l(gallons in an /\F) 0 Totnl :'1011-.-\G l'sul!c: ________ /\F 

E:>:nll'TIO:-iS: lnactfre Well □ 
TOTAi. ,\GHICTI.TURAI. \\',\TElt l'S,\GE: 

TOT,\I. :-iON-AG/IJO.\IES'l ll' WAI EH l S,\l;I•:: 

Ct lHHENT CII.-\HGES: 

Tntul l'roducuon 

l'oml Pro<lucuon 

-Z.. � \ · S 2... , l{ate S280 32 -

t{,,v I A. I YI �.f t,v, 

rJ.-/ I'). /?.s;
l'rcv,ous llulancc Due( Add) 

l'rc1·1ou, Cred11(Su1J1r,1c1) 

DEL.l'.\Ql'Ei\'T Pl·:N,\I.TY CIIAHGES: lj.,·l(11e111e111 ispos1111<wkeda/1cr O! /(I 1025111/d JO•• afCurre111 Clrnrges S 

81.98 

DEl.l'.\Ql'E'.\T 1:-iTE!lEST C'll.-\llGES: ((pay111e111 is po.m11arked,1/1cr IJJ Of 1025 at/ti,�. ofT0111/ Clrnr::es 
s-------'"'-........ ..__,__ 

for e11clt 11w1111t lite stn1e111c111 is pnst due 

TOTAi. ,\.\tOl':-iT E1'Cl.O!-;Ell P,\ \'ABLE TO: lli\'fTFH WATER CONSEHVATION J)ISTHWr 

Tit is Slllll!/11/!/I( is 1101 COIIIJJlel<! II 11/ess signet/. 

I hl' production ch:ugc dch:11111ncJ in tho, s1:ucmen1 rcpu:,cnl!i> :s charge for pumping ground ,,atcr Unth.:d \Vnh.·r u�r.:s 1h1.:sc funds in IH,' m,�..,1011 10 n:pkm)h groun<lwnh.:r 1hroui;hout 1h1.• 
D1:itnc1 Sccuon 7-1508 of 1hc Cnl,fornm \Vntcr Code grmH:, n \V:11c, Conscn ,111011 D1stnc1 the.: 11�ht to charge fo, gruund\\':1tcr pro<luc11011 m, a mc;m:, 10 co, er the cost of grot111U,,:11t.:1 
rcplc111�hnH:n1 and Scct1011 75611 1cc1u11c� cm:h opcra10r of each waler pioduc11011 fucihty (well) tn rile with the D1�t11c1 a s1:11c111c111 p1m 1thng prmh1c1u1n in 1hc p1ccccding �I'= 1110111h 
J'k.'t1od rhcrc l!, nu add11101ml tiltng frc 10 file th1� �1;1tc111cn1 ,, 1th Umtcd \V:111.:r pursu:rnt to (.':1hforn1:1 \V:lll.!r Code 5009 Upon good c:iu.,c !-!ho" n. an mm.:ndcd stmi.:mcnl or \,atcr 
prodllcllon llHI} Uc likd or a com.:cllon of the record� ma� he m:1dc at any t11111.: pnor to 1hc linal date for filing the nc:<1 scmi-;mnunl \\,th:r produc11on slnh:mcnl pursuan1 10 Cali 10rn1;-i 
l\'a1cr Code 75618 



, r ., . .... 

\ RECf:.I\JI:: 

: ' . 
UNfl11•Jl)) WATH�IR CONSERVATION .ll)HST.lt lCT ; l="E8 1U7'J170 I .\'. l.0111bard Street. Suite 100 Ox11ard. C.-1 <JJ/)3/1 • · ·• 

/'/io11e: (805) JI 7-897./ /:'111oil: gwreporti11g'ij,1111itedll'oter.orp ,1 2 u o. \ \ SEMI-ANNUAL GROUND WATER PRODUCTION STAT
�

ti�:r, .... , : ':b S "'U· 

(,00 03720 IOOHGIO SlWUOIS C!➔EC� 'O· 2f:35z:n \ 
Reporting Period: 07/0l/_02::J7hrotig111273"1/2024 

State \Veil 1umber O I N22W26K0-IS 
S1a1e Reeorclation Numbcr56 I 573 
Well Operator (Mailing Address) 

SOUTHLAND SOD FARMS PO BOX 579 PORT HUENEME. CA 930-1-1-0579 

\Veil Owner: I ame or Well: Well Use: 
SOIJTHLAN11 SOD FARMS 
EDISO, 3 AG Acres lrril.!alcd: 0.00 Cro1)s Grown: SOD 

t CICphOne: 
 Email:

Signed s1a1c111c111 wi1h pnvine111 due on or before: 0 l/3 I /2025. Late filings and payments subje�t IO delinquent clrnrges Please mnkc a copy for your records. 
\\',\TEI{ ;\I ETEI{ 111: Meter l'ypc/Scrial II: MCCIWMETEll srn II 11-01271-05 Unit ol"ivlcasurc: AF 
Meier Read l:ndmg Y c1 (p 7 0 - 13cg11111111g ·IOSSO -Tulul Urnh t:j 09 0 x M111!1phcr O 0010 -;- D!l'!ckr I = Produc1io11: q Q"[ 

- ----- ----
DIiie of 111st jloov 11i,/1•r c11/ibmtio11 lest: 

\\'.-\TER ;\IETER 112: 1\.lc1cr Type/Serial II: 
hk1cr Rend. l:mhng - lkg1nn111g. ----- -----
Dute uf last j/1111· meter rnlilm11i1111 1est: 

ELl::lTlllC l'OWEH 1\IETIIOU: Meter Typc/Scrial /;: 

Meter photo required. 

=Tolal U1111s x hluh1phcr -;- D1\'lckr 

-----------------------
K \\'I I for S!X·lllOlllh pc, 10d (enclose cop)' of SCE Sl:IIC111Clll) Tomi Unils x Mull1phcr -------
Date af /11.w Southern California Edison J:'ffic:iem:y 7i!SI. ---------------

Unit of i\kasurc: 
- l'roduc11011

Uni1 or 1\lkasurc: 
= Production 

Total l'roduclion (Hound 10 lht 11rnre,1 h11ndrcd1h AF .,n.��): 

\O:\'-AG/DO,\IESTIC l'SE 
Number of People: D � 0.2 per person or 50 minimum = Total Domestic l'sagc: ________ 1\F
l.ives1nch(n11111hcr ofhead):D x 2.760 gallons per head-;- 325.85 l(gallons in an AF)' 

EXDtl'TIONS: ll111cti1•e Well □ 
TOTAL AGHIClll.Tl'IUI. WATER USAGE: 
TOTAL NO'\-,\G/llO,\IESTIC \\',\TEH l'S,\(;E: 
CTRHE'\T CIIAHGES: 

To1al l'roduct1on 
I oiai l'roduc11011 

Total :-ion-,\(; l 1sagc: ________ i\F 

x Ruic S280 32 = $ 

� V 1J It\ Pf.511"' 
J--{(}-/4) 

l'rcv1011, llalancc D11c(1\dd) S (l.00 

llEt.1:\'Ql'J,:;q· n:;-,;,\l,T\' ('11,\nGES: 
l>F.I.INQL'ENT l:'\TEREST Cll,\RGES:

----------l'revmus l'rcdil(Sub1rnct) S (l.00 

l
f

swte111e11t ispostmorket!,ifrer 02 /I) 202511dtl /1/
0

., of Currell/ C/111r;:es S 
/fpoy111e111 is pos1111arkl•tl afier OJ OJ 2025 at/ti l�o of Total Cl111r;:es S '25 4-� 

for each mtmth the su11e111e111 is p11s1 d11e -----------
1-S l-/, '? I TOT.-\1.,\�IOL l:'\T ENC'I.OSED PAYAlll.l·:TO: l'Nrn:n WATER CONSFR\',\TJO'> PISTBI<T s 

I DECLARE under the pcnah1cs of perjury 1ha11111s \\11lcr produc11011 sia1cmclll hns been ""'mmcd h) me ai 
complete slnh.:mcn1 

Date: 2 \ \0 ( 2 � Sig1u1111re:_.....l...=����,,,.::::::._���5d\�al�------
Tlris Slllle111e111 is 1101 complete 1111/ess sig11t!tl. 
I he produc11on ch:ug"· dc1\.'11111ncd 1111h1s :,.latcrm:nt n.!prcscnb a charge ft1r pumpmg g1uund ,,atcr Umh:d \.\':th:r usc:i. 1hc�c fu,uh m ll!<-0 1111.!i�um 10 rcpli.:msh ground,\::th:r 1l11oughout 1h1.· 
District &.-ction 7-�508 of 1hc C.:1hforn1a \Vatcr COlk gr.ml::, a \ViHcr Co11scf\at1011 D1:M1c1 1hc right to cha1gc for grournJ\\alcr produc11u11 U.!i a mcnns 10 cover 1111.: cost of i;1lllllldwa1c1 
rcpkmshmcnt and Sccllon 75611 1cqu1rcs each opcr:11or of c:,ch water producuon foc,luy (,,ell) to fill!' ,,·1th the Di�lnct :t stntcrm:lll pro\ 1t.hng produrtion 111 the prerceding s1, 1110111h 
pcnod There 1s no odd111onul filing fee 10 file this �1r11cmcn1 ,,11h Unucd \Vatcr pur,uant h) C:ihfornm \Vntcr Code 5009 Upon good c;iusc !,hO\\ll, rm amended slnh:mcnt uf,,,11cr 
prmJuc11on ma) be fikd or a co11cctum uf1h1.• rcconJ, nmy he made utan� tnnc. pnnr to the final d:111: for filmg thc nc�t ,cmi.11111111al \\3h.:r prod1u.·11on st:ttl·menl p111sunn1 to C:1hfurma 
IV:ner Code 75618 



ONIT]•JI} WATOillt CONSD�RVATION ll)IST�ICT 1701 X. l.a111bard S1ree1 . .'i11i1e 100 Oxnard ( · .. / 93/JJ(/ \ !'hone: (805) 317-897-1 l•:111ail: gwreporling g)111iledwa1er.ol I. r f-H lO]S 
Q-f'i SEMI-ANNUAL GROUND WATER PRODUCTION STAT

_j 
MENT t�O 3�\.1- 'O 

1

600 03730 1008620 S0l;OOl6 Rcporting Peri od: 07/01/?.01 �f' $(\:'J2!3l/2024 2f330"7'1 
State Well Number0IN22W 26M03S 
State Recordation Numbcr561203 
Well Operator (Mailing Address) 

SOUTHLAND SOD rARMS 
PO BOX 579 
PORT HUE EME. CA 9304-1-0579 

Well Owner: SOLJTI II.AN';) sem f-"/t!UvfS'
Name of Well: EDISO 1 !;J 
Well Use: AG 
Acres Irrigated: 76.00 
Crops Grown: SOD 

I e1cp110ne: 
Email: 

Signed s1atcmc111 wilh paymcpl due on or before: 01/31/2025. Lale filings and paymenls subjccl to tkl111quen1 charges. Please make a copy for your records. 
\\ ATER .\I ETtR Ill: Meier Type/Serial;;: \\/TR SPECli\L TIES 20082092-08 

---------------------------

�kier Read l:nd1ng 't s·s"'l. 100 lkg11111111g. 
Dme of l11lt flow n1t•ter calibrntio11 test: 

\\'ATER :'IIETER 112: Meier l'ypc/Scrinl 11: 
�kier Read Endmg \ S97 3 · llcg11111111g 
D111e 1,J !list jlo"' meta c11/ibrntio11 test: 

EI.EtTHlC 1'O\\'tH i\lETllOU: Meler l'ypc/Scrial 11: 
-----------------------

K \V I I for '1X•mon1h period (cnclus,· copy ofSCl: sw1emcn1) Tomi Unns. _______ x Mu\uphcr Dl\'Hkr 
/Jate of laM Sou/hem California Edison /;jjicienq Te.1·1.

---------------

Unil or t-. tcasure: AF 

Unil or Mcu,urc: 
= J>rod11ct1<>n 

Tn1al Production (l{uund lo the nearc,1 hundredth ,\F ux.xx): ___ \..:.·_7-'--'\..:._8::;_]:_,__ __ _ 
NO'--AC/llO,\IESTIC I SE 
Number of l'copk: D � 0.2 pa person or 50 111inin111111 = Toi al Domestic l 'sngc: ________ AF 
l.il'cs1ock(11umhcr ofhcad):D x 2.760 gallo11s per head-,- 325.85 l(gallons in an Al')' Tolal ',1111-AG t·sagc: _______ _ i\F 

EXDll'TIO'.'iS: /1wc.1ii-e Well □ 
TOTAi. AGRICl'I.Tl'IUL \\'ATER l'SAGE: \ 7 \ · 't: T x Rme S280 32 = 
IO I A I. NOf\-,\Gt0O�I E:ffl(' \\ ATER USAGE: 

·101al J>rod11C11011 
·1 olul Producl1\.lll 

Cl 'IHUXI' Cl IAHGES: 

DEl.l:\'Qllt•:'-T Pl ''.:\'AI.T\' C'll,\HGES: 
DELl'-QU:.'iT L'iTEREST CIIARGES: 

Prev1ous llnlnncc Duc(/\dd) 
J>rev1011, Crcd11( Suh1racl) 

lfstateme,u is postmarked n.fter II! /11 !11!5 (1(/d IO"u 0JC11rre111 Ch11r;:11s 

(fpay111e111 is pos1111arked afier OJ II I !O! 5 add I O o 11/ Tow/ Chnr;:es 

far each 1110111h the s1111e111e111 is past due 

$ 
s 

s 

s 

s 

s 

TOTAi. ,\�IOIJ'-T EM'I.OSEII I',\ \'AUU: TO: uwrrn \\'ATER co:-.SER\'AT!ON !)(STRICT l/ '[{==l, � $

I DECl.,\RE under lhc penalties of perjury 1ha1 tl11, \\,lier prrnlueunn sta1c111c111 ha, hccn e,a111111cd hy me and 

4-ZJli.Cc.,o
✓ 

2.206.27 
o.uo

98'l=t-� 

--=::,...-::,--:,::,,,-�::;:-:::,;--
complclc s1a1emcn1 . 

1 
. 

Date: 7 I Lc l. '2....k:::. Sig1111/11re: __ ..1..:=lla,.��....:::::::....����,:,D:.16_L_ ___ _ 
This S1111e111e111 is 1101 comp/etc 1111/l!ss signed. 

I he produc11on charge dc.•1cr111111cd Ill 1111) statcmcru rcprc'-Clll" J ch:ugc for pumping ground w:11cr l Jmtcd \\l :i11:r uses lhc�c fund� m tt)' 1111ss1on 10 replenish ground\\,1h.:r throughout 1hc Distric1 Secuon 74508 of 1hc Cahfornio Wmcr Code gr.1111s n W:uer Con,cl"\ntion D1s1ncl the 11gh1 to ch.irgc for ground"mcr pro<luc11011 ns a means 10 co, er 1he cosl of gro1111dwa1cr rcpkn1�h111c11l and Section 75611 rcqum:� each u1>cra1or of '-'ach ,,:11cr p1o<lrn.:tio11 fac1lit)' (\\di) tu fik \\ 11h 1hc D1stnl·t a !'llalc111c111 prov1d111g production in lht.: p1cc:ccd111g !'II\ 111011th pcnod There 1s 110 :1dcl1t1011al lil111i; fee to file 1hh s1a1c111cnt \\Ith lJnitc<l \Vatcr pmsunnt 10 C:tlifornm \V:,tcr Code SU09 lJpon good cause shown, an :um.!1Hkd Malcmcnt ofw:11cr piu<lurt,on 111:l) be lilc<l or n corrc:c11011 of the rcco,ds llltl) he mndc �It :m� 111nc prior to lhr..: linnl 4.fatc for ntmg lhi.: n1."<I i.;cm1-:11111u:il water pro<luct1on :,tatc1111..·111p110,uun1 10 C:1iiforn1:1 Waler Code 75618 



UNlTJIQJ)J 'WATJl��� (()!»NNll•:Ut'VATIONI DIST.QUCT 
170/ N. Lombard Street, Suite 200 Ox11arcl, CA 93030 

Pho11c: (805) 317-8974 I Email: gwrepol'li11g@1111itedwoter.org 
SEMI-ANNUAL GROUND WATER PRODUCTION STATEMENT 

600 03740 IUOHGJU !.OlJ00l7 

Stute Well Numbcr:0!N22W26P02S 
State Recordation Number .5.ill11
Well Operntor (Moiling Address) 

SOUTHLAND SOD FARtvlS 
PO BOX 579 
PORT HUENEME, CA 930114-0579 

Reponing Period: 07/0 I /20211 1hrough 12/31/2024 

Well Owner: SQlJTI 11,ANP S(JI> Fi\llMS 
Nnmc of Well: EDISON 7 
Well Use: AG. 
Acres lrri).(Rtcd: l:11.l)Q 
Crops Grown: SOD, VEGETABLES 

I elephone: 

Sjyucd 5uucmcm wilb pavms:111 due; nn pr before· UI/Jl/2025 

Email: 

I me filings nntl puymcms subjcc1 10 dclinq11cn1 churgcs. Plcusc make n cop)' for your, ccords. 

WATER METER Ill: lvfcccrTyr,c/Scrial II: SN: 20073148 lJnic ofMcosurc: AF ------------------------- ------
�Icier llcud F.nd,n�. \CJ .• \7 £2 "/ · Ocgmning: R2127 I •Tolnl tJ1111s 7.Stv5fl(,; x Muhiplicr O 0010 + Di\'1dcr: I = l'roduc11011 2 s0.s·s�.- ----- ----
Dnte of/astf/011• meter cnllbrntlo11 test: 

WATER 1111ffER 112: Meter Typc/Scriul II: Unit nfMcusun:: 
------------------------- ------

Meler Rend. Ending· - Ocginninir 0To1nl llni1s· x M11l1iplicr. ----- ----- ----- -;- Divider: ____ = Produc1iow ____ _ 

/)me uf 111st j/011' mt.fer cnllhrnt/011 test: 

ELECTRIC POW�R METHOD: Meler Type/Serial#: _
__

________
_______

___ Unit of Measure: _ ___ _ 

KWH for si�-111on1h period (<11closc copy ofSCE stn1cmcn1J· Tn1nl \Jni1s: x Muhiphcr ------
Dall! of 111st So11them Cnlifomln £1/l.1·1111 Efflc/�119• Te.1·1: -------------

Divider. � Production: 

'l'n111I l'r11,lu,·1!1111 (llou111I lu 11,., ncur,•,1 h1111d1"ccllh ,\ F xxx.xx): 25 �. S ·:::;.
f ,q Id in � J tffl ?- I l:J-. /1-,,; -�c....:.....:..-'--l,--

No:-.-AGroorn:snc usE �a,�t .:fl: tJM!l,- iJO ?-,<;(P. :(' 
Number of Pcor,lc: I I x 0.2 per person or .50 111inim11111 = '1'01111 Dorn est le ll•u�e: ________ ,\F 

Livcs1ock(n11mbcrnl'hcnd):D x 2,760 gallons per hcud + 325,RS l(gnllons in an AF)• Tol:il 1'1111-AG Usagc: ________ AF 

CXt:MPTIONS: luactii•c Jlle/1 □ 
TOTAi. ,\(;1un11.TtJJlAI. WATER IISAGE: 

�\t'·)Y:, 
7 ,· I C, ·7-, -:; ([.), :J .• � Rrnc $2MO 32 -

TOTAi. NON-A<:IIHlMK5TIC WATEII IISAGE: 

T,llnl l'rod11c1ion 

Tomi Prod11c1 ion x llolc S312 76 � 

CIIJUlENT C:11,\llGES: 

DELJN(JUENT t•ENAI.TV CIJAIICES: 

0£LJNQUt:1'•r INTEIIEST CIIAHGES: 

TOTAL,\MOUNT ENCLOSEI> l'AV.-\ULETO: 

------

l'rcvlous n1111111cc Duc(AdJ) 

Previous Crcdi1(S11b1rncl) 
�( stn1<•111e111,. postmarked 11/lcr 02//012025 mltl 10% o/C11rre111 Charges 

If µnymrlll is postmarked ajl,r 0310)/2025 at/ti I% nf To/11/ C/111r1:es 
for ench 11w11tl, the ,·1111e111e111 Is p11s1 1/11e 

l/NITFU WA'l'tm CQNSb'fl\lATIQN Ullffl\U-1' 

I DECLARE under lhc pcnnhics or' perjury lhUl 1111s wolcr produc11on s1111c111cn1 lut1 been examined O)' me und In 1h 
complete slnlcrm:111 

/)ate: ':.L;/ / t;/} ', , 

This S1111e111ent Is 1101 complete 1111/en· sl1:11�tl. 

I 

s; ·7 I 9 2 /. 7-0 
$ ---------

$ 2,751).41 ----------
$ Sl, oss '71 ()ilfc'cl 
$ -::/ (q/. � 

The produc11011 cluugc J�tc1m1ncd in this �t.1trmrnt 1cprc,.c111s tt chugc (or pumpmg ground ,i..ur.r United Water UJCJ these fund.c: in ttJ' m1u1on to ,cpk111sh crounJw,ucr thrnughuul the 

nu1uc1 Sccuou 7-l'SOR nf the Callfon111\ \Vntcr l'utlc gunts :s \Viucr Cnnscr\lallon Oist11c11hc ri9ht tu duugc for groundw;itcr production as o. ntCilnJ to co\1cr the coil of grnundw.11cr 
replcmshmcnl ,uhl s�1mn 7561 I 1cquirc1 each u11ie1,uu1 ,1r rJch \\",11�r prnduruon fac1hcy ('-"'CII) to file w1U, the D1\1rict a ic-talemcnl lK(1Vlllmg 11roducc1on m thr l"C1.ccJmK \I);. 111011th 
p:rioJ There 11 U<l .ttM111onnl fihng fee to file 1111,. �tl\lcmc111 wnh I rn11cd \Vaitr 1)Ur,u11n1 to C'.shfomu1 WMcr Code SOOCJ lJpnn J\UOll C.llL\C sho\\11, 11n amended .11.itcmcnl 111 \\11lc1 
J'lrnduclton rnoy be tiled or a cortccllon of1hc records nu\)' be nrnJc 01 ,my 11111c pt101 to lhc fin:tl dntc fur tiling the nc�I jCfnl•Jnnual ,w1rr production suucmcnt pwsuant ltl Calflorma 
Wn1c, Code 75618 



RECEIVED 

, � ', .. ·' ONlTll�II) WAl1EU{ CONSll•:ll(VA TION Jl]LSTJltlfT 
/ 70/ .\'. l.0111hard Slreel. Suite 200 0.ward. C.·I 9JOJO 

1 2 FEB 202'.l f.\'.. • 

.,.; •: !'hull(!' (805) J / 7-897./ L111oil: g11•repor1i11g a 1111i1edwater org 
SEMI-ANNUAL GROUND WATER PRODUCTION STATE

j;
ENT . 4101\t'S'". q� 

600 03760 I fJ0H720 SOl"U022 CHECK ,...r.Kiu,·ff p 

J Reporting Period: 07/01/2 341tffiu{(gl\MJ.U31/202-l 2B,3::),0
, 
_ _ State Well umber 02N22W3 I D02S State Rccordation Numbcr56 I 740 Well Operator (Mailing Address) 

SOUTHLAND SOD FARMS PO BOX 579 PORT HUENEME. CA 93044-0579 

\\/ell Owner: SOUTHLAND SOD FARMS 1 ame of'\Vcll: GONZALES (\VEST) Well Use: AG Acres Irrigated: 435.00 Crops Grown: SOD, VEGETABLES 
I elephonc:  
Email:  Signed s1a1crncnt wil11 pavmcnt due on or before: 01/31/2025. I.me filings and paymcnls snhjccl 10 dclinquc111 charges. Please make a cop� for your records. 

WATER ,\IETElt #1: MclcrTypc/Scrial II: MCCROMETER SIN 15·1�007-10 Unil or Measure: J\ F 
Meter Read l:ndmg 2<::i31 cjo· 13cgmrnng 
D11tc ofltistj/01v meter c11/ibrntio11 test: \\',\TEI{ \IETElt #2: Meler l'ypc/Scrial II: 
� Icier Read l:nd mg • lkg11111111g 

186%2U =Imai l.,1111, 11o1L f1°(), :--:uluph�r C.COIU -:- D1\'1dcr I= l'r"d11r11n11 \\y 7. 4] ----i\lctcr photo rcc1uirc<l. Unil or Measure: 
=Tolal Unns x �lult1phcr = l'roduc11011 ----- -----Dme of fti.w JI""' me/er ,·11/ibm1io11 res/: EI.ECTIU<.' 1'0\\'ER i\lETIIOIJ: Meler Type/Serial II: Uni1 or l'vlcnsun.:: -----------------------KWI I fm '"•1110111h pcnod (enclose cop) of SCI: ,1jlt111c111) T111al lJ1u1, , �luluphcr I)" ulcr = l'roduc11u11 -------Dall! of l,w S11111/11.!r11 C11/if11r11ia Edison Efficiency Tes 1. ---------------

Tohtl l'rodurlion (Round lo lhr 11carcs1 hundrrdlh AF Hx.,x): 
:XO:-i-AGmO.\tESTIC l'SE 
Number or People: D x U.2 per person or .50 minimum= Total l>orn,,s1il- l 1sagc: ________ i\F 
l.1vcs1ock(numbcr orhcnd):D x 2. 760 gallon, per hi:ml-:- 325.851 (gallon, in an :\ F) • Tu1al ;\"on-,\{.; r,agr: ________ AF 
EXDWTIO�S: Inactive Well □ TOTAL At;tUC't'I.TllHAL \\',\TER L'SAGF.: TOTAL :XO:X-AG/00.\IF.STIC \\'ATEH l'SAGE: (TIUU::\T C-11,\HGES: 

Tow! l'roduc11011 l'otnl l'ro<lucllon \(.Q"-7, ,\.\, 1 , Ra1c. S2HO 32 • ., Ralc S31: 76 S 4(o1C\ Lj 5: 1'1 
s 

l'rc1•1ous Ualancc Duc(Add) S 1.020.80 ---------1' r C \' IO II> C1cdn(Suh1rac1) $ 0.00 ll El.l;\Ql 'i-:-;T l'EI\',\ I.T\ C'II,\ RCES: DELJ;-;QUE:'\T l:'\TEREST Cll,\ltCES: (f.wwe111<•111 ispo.,tmarketlafier fJ2/01015 I/lid /()0
(, 0JC11rre111 Charge.,· S lfpayme111 is postmarked (!{ter 03 0/ 1015 add/% o/T111al Charges S y \,q L./. S1-

TOTAL ,\.\IOt :XT E:'\CLOSED l'A \'A 111.E TU: 
for each 1110111h !he s1111e1111!11/ is pas/ due ----------

q lg q4. s--i
tlNfTl•:n WATFB, CONSEHVXrJOi\' llISTR!<T s 

I Dl:Cli\RI: under the pcnal11c, or pc1Jury that 1!11, water producllon ,1a1e111e111 h,ts heen cxam111cd h) me and 1 complete stnlcmc:nt Dale: '2.. \_ \ () I 2 S:: SiJ.111a111re: __ --1L-�=:J(=""-=--¥===��cn-v-----
Thi., S1111e111e111 is 1101 co111ple1e 1111/ess �"igned. 
I he produc1iu11 dwrgc <lch.:r111111ccJ in 1l11:,. �t:11cmcn1 rcp1c:-.c11t, :1 charge l(lf pumpmg ground \\Iller lJnih.'d \Va1cr u,c!- 1hc:sc. funds 111 11s' 1111�!-i1on 10 1cph:111:,h grou11dw:1tcr throughout the D1s1nct !icrlmn 74508 of the Cohfomm \Vutcr CoJc grant!\ a \V:1tcr Conscf'\ auon Distm:t the right 10 charge for groundwah.:r prn<luc11011 ns :i llh.':ln-.; to CO\Cf the cost of t,;tound ,,a1cr 1cpk111shmcnt nnd Scc11on 75611 rcquuc:,. cnch opcrarm of 1.•ach ,,:ucr producuon fac1l11� ( ,,ell) to file ,, 11h the Dislncl a. stah;mcnt pro, 1d1ng pro<luc11un 111 1111: prccccding ,,� month p.:nod I here 1s no add111onal filmy fee to lilc th1s !i.l:t.tcmcnt ,,nh lJn11cd \\later pursuant to Cah1om1a \V:Hcr Code 5009 Upon good cau�c sho ,,n . .,111 nmcndcd statement of \\Oler pmducuon ma) be filed or 3 conccuon ofth� 11.-cords mo.� he made at .m� tune p11or to the final date for filmi; the nc,t !'!CITit•annunl w;:itcr produr11on ,1:sh.::ment pursuant to Cahform:1 Water Code n6 l 8 



ONJTED WATEK CONS
l

lQIWATIONUISTllUCT 
I 701 :\". /,0111/Jarcl S1reel. S11i1e 200 O.rnarcl. C:I 93030 

f'l,011e: (8115) 317-81)7./ 1:·111ail: }:!wrepor1i11g'11;1111i1eclwa/er.org 
SEMI-ANNUAL GROUND WATER PRODUCTION STATEMENT <:p53, 23�,01I i-. � .. 

600 038111 I OOHH90 SOL 10031 Rcponing Period: 07/01/202-1 fo�itgli'.l2/JJJ202L..q_ {6Zi)l 11\ 

Stale \Veil Number O I 22\\1261-:0JS 
State Recordation 'umber56 I 793 
Well Operator (Mailing Address) 

Well Owner: 
Name of Well: 

RAYMONDE SWIFT 
#2 AR OLD RD 

SOUTI !LAND SOD FARMS 
PO BOX 579 
PORT I IUENEME. CA 930-14-0579 

Well Use: r\G 
Acres lrri!rnted: 116.00 
Crops Grown: VEG ET Al3LE 

I c1ept1011c: 

Signed 

Email: 

statement with pavmcnt due 011 or before: 0 I /31/2025. I ale filing, aml pa� ments ,ubjcct to ddinquent charges. Please make a cop� for �our records. 

WATER :\JETER 111: Meter Type/Serial ti: \V'I R SPECIAi.TiES 873533-8 ---------------------------
� lc t er Read l:ndmg \ I-\� Lj<i;'C01kg1nn111g 12%4 IU �Tomi Unns \ £,tZf1 t\ �luhtpher O 0010 .,.. U•v1der 

nit of Measure: ;\ F 

l'roductmn \ i � . 6 9----

Date of l11Stjlow meter calibmti,111 te,r: 

\\',\T[R :\11-:Tlm 112: Meter rypc/Scrinl ti: 
i\•lctcr 11hotn rcq u ired. 

=Total Umts , i\lulttpher i\k1er Read Fml111g _____ - llegmnmg 
----- -----

Dur,• nf last flow m1.•t,•r calibr11tlo11 rest: 

El.t-:CTRIC POWEi{ ,1tTIIOL>: Meter Type/Serial II: 

!,;\V I I for st,-munth period (enclose cop) of SCF -t,llemenll Toial IJ1111s � �tult1pher 

Date of last Suri/hem Calif11r11i11 l:."di.1·011 Efjicie11q T<!It. ---------------

Unit or i'>lcasurc: 

+ D1vHler - Production 

Unit or \lcasurc: 

= l'rc�luc11on 

\Q0_'7q / Total l'n11!11ctiu11 (Round lo the ncarrsl h1111tlrcd1h .\F �n.u): UC.. ;) 
---=--------

.'iOi\'-AG/DO.\I ESTIC I 'SE 

Number uf' l'euplc: D x 0.2 per person or .50 minin111111 = Total llo111cstic t lsugc: ________ 1\1' 

l.l\cstoek(numher ofhcad):D x 2.760 gallons per head+ 325.85 l(gallons in an 1\F) Totnl :'ion-AG l'saj!c: ________ AF

EXE�ll'T!O:'iS: l1111cti11e Well □ 
TOTAi. AGR!Ctll.Ttlll.-\L W,\TER t·SA(;E: 

TOTAi. '1O'1-,\G/DO,\IESTIC \\'A'I Elt tlSAGE: 

To1al l'rmlucunn 

l'oml P1udw.:110n :\ Rat� SJ I� 76 

Cl'lllUXl' Cl l,\llGES: 

l>El.1:-,'QIIENT PEN,\ I.TY Cl l,\RC:ES: 

DEl.l:'iQl'E:'iT l:'iTEREST ('11,\llCES: 

&v I/� (V\ f-f¥fl
Y' 

Q / J'J-I/J._5
l'rc,·tou, llaluncc Duc(t\dd) 

l'reviuu, l'red11(S11btract) 
/f.1·1t11t•1111•111 is posmwrkf'd '!fi,•r OJ JI) 21125 mid/{)% 0JC11rre111 Clt11rgf's 

lfpay111e111 is po.m11arked after 03 () I 2()] 5 add I O o of Total C/111ri:es 
far enclt 1110111ft rite stateme/11 is past due 

TOTAL A�lOl':'i'I' E,'iCI.OSEll l'A \'Alli.I-: TO: llNl'l'l•:1> \l'ATrn CONSEIWATIOi" PISTRWI' 

I DECLARE under lhe pcnaluc, of pcrJUI) 1ha1 1l11s \\slier pro<l11ct1<111 slatemcnl ha, hem cxa111111cd h)' me ,111d 10 I 

s 

s 
$ 

s 

s 

G '2, 3 D '1. 4S 

-128.59 

0.00 

<;2 so, tf/: 

co111plc1c SlalC111Clll 

Date: '2 \ \.0 ( '2 S: Sii::11at11re:· ___ _1_:_�����=j;������.J_ ____ _ 
Tltis S1111f!111e111 is 11111 cr1111plete 1111/ess sig11erl. 

I he prodm.:t1un charge Jc1cnmni •. -d m 1h1, c;;1a1cmcnt rcpn.:�c111, ., ch;1rgc for pu111p111g ground ,,:11cr Un11cd \Va1cr m,c!, thc!II..' funds in 1h' nll)Slun 10 rcph:m�h groumh,.:llcr lhroughout thi.' 
D1Mrict Sccuon 74508 of the Cahfomm \Vatcr Code grants n \\later Conscn allon Dhtnct 1hc nght to charge for groundw�ncr produc11011 as a means 10 co, er the cost of groumh,ah:1 
n:plcm�hmcnt :m<l Sccuon 75611 rcquuc,- each Ofk!ramr of c..•ach ,,-.11cr production foc1l11� ,,,ell) to file ,, 1th the D1s1nct n S13tcmcnt pro, 1dmg produc11on m thl.' prl!CC'\!tlmg !r-lX month 
pc:nod fhl!rc 1s no :1dd111onal fihng IC1! 10 tile 1h1� st�1cmcnl \\llh Unu�d \\'n1cr pursuant to Cnl1fomia \V:ucr Code 5009 Upon good cause �hO\\n, nn amended s1:1tcinc111 of"alcr 
producuon may ht.· filc:tl or n l'Orrcct1on of the records 1ml} be madr.: at nn� 11111c r,1101 to 1hc final dntc for filint; the next scn11•n1111u:1I \\,UCr production st:llcmcnt pursunnt to c�1l i forn111 
Water Code 7561 X 



To:

Through: 

From: 

Date: 

STAFF REPORT 

UWCD Board of Directors 

Mauricio Guardado, General Manager 
Dr. Maryam Bral, Assistant General Manager 

Craig Morgan, Chief Operations Officer   
Randy Castañeda, Operations Supervisor - Water Treatment  
Ed Reese, Control Systems Supervisor  
J.D. Smallwood, Operations Supervisor - Water Distribution

December 16, 2025 (January 14, 2026, meeting) 

Agenda Item:  4.1 Operations and Maintenance Department Monthly Report  
Information item 

Staff Recommendation: 
Receive this summary report from the Operations and Maintenance Department 
regarding its activities for November 2025, as well as a presentation of its highlights.  

1. Major Facilities Update
 Santa Felicia Dam

o On November 1, 2025, Lake Piru level was 972.6’ and on November 30, 2025,
the lake level increased to 994.3’ due to increased inflows caused by the 7.73”
of rain received in the month of November.

o The annual Conservation Release ramp-down was completed within
compliance on November 2, 2025. Flows have now been reduced to the
minimum Habitat Flow requirement of 7+ cubic feet per second (cfs).

o Santa Felicia Dam outflows varied between 14 cfs and 7 cfs as part of the
Conservation Release ramp-down procedure.

o SFD’s monthly inspection was completed and submitted for the month of
November.

o The monthly siren test was successfully completed on November 7, 2025. All
systems operated as expected, and no issues were observed during the test.

 Freeman Diversion, Saticoy, and El Rio Recharge Facilities
o Various maintenance activities and inspections are being conducted

throughout the Saticoy Facility in preparation for winter storm events,
supporting operational readiness and system reliability.

o The annual Desilting Project began on October 27, 2025, and concluded on
November 12, 2025. The project was curtailed due to an early-season heavy
storm event; however, O&M staff successfully removed approximately 23,139
cubic yards of material from the Desilting Basin within the shortened timeframe.



4.1 Operations and Maintenance Department Monthly Report  
Information Item 

2 

o Storm diversions are being conducted at the Freeman Diversion in response to
early-season storm events.

o Sediment flush operations are being conducted at the Freeman Diversion in
response to multiple storm events occurring throughout the month of
November.

o Static groundwater levels (distance to water - from the well pad to the water
table):

* Static groundwater levels are typically recorded in the last week of the month.
This table represents data in the month of November.

 Oxnard Hueneme Delivery System
o El Rio operators assisted with the Desilting Project.
o El Rio staff went through troubleshooting procedures to address miscellaneous

fault conditions with Fe/Mn Plant.
o El Rio staff addressed maintenance issues at UWCD Headquarters building.
o El Rio operators performed annual oil sampling and oil filter change outs on all

four standby Gas Engines.
o Staff continued to route new water and electrical lines to the new El Rio storage

shed.
o El Rio operators completed the excavation and exposure of Fe/Mn Plant 20”

backwash water line for future hot-tap service.
o El Rio operators began increased disinfection levels in OH Pipeline upon

PHWA’s request as they transitioned from using their typical treatment plant
and started to primarily supply the City of Port Hueneme through UWCD/PHWA
emergency connection on Pleasant Valley Road.

 Pleasant Valley County Water District
o Water supply demand was met with surface water from Freeman Diversion.

 Pumping Trough Pipeline
o El Rio operators performed monthly inspections and start-ups of emergency

generators at all five PTP well sites and PTP reservoir.
o El Rio staff replaced the defective check valve on PTP Well 1 discharge

manifold.
o El Rio staff monitored Rice Avenue Bridge construction work near PTP Well 4.

 Control Systems
o Deployed the first trial run of the Ignition Alarming Notification System

successfully.

Facility 2025* 2024 2023 
Saticoy 28’ 37’ 28’
El Rio 69’ 56’ 71’
PTP  62’-105’ 65’-105’ 80’-111’ 



4.1 Operations and Maintenance Department Monthly Report  
Information Item 

3 

o Provided Operations staff and leadership with training for the Ignition Alarm
Notification System.

o Responded to and repaired the SFD Lower Access Gate.
o OH Well #8 meter installation was completed.
o Staff installed a new sump pump at HCV.
o Completed electrical installation for the new El Rio storage building.

 Lake Piru Water Treatment Plant
o All the chlorine residuals and turbidity readings for the Lake Piru Water

Treatment Plant (LPWTP) were within proper ranges in the month of
November.

o Monthly pH, turbidity, and coliform samples were obtained from the treatment
plant as part of the Long-Term 2 Enhanced Surface Water Treatment Rule
compliance monitoring. The results were favorable, with another passing
grade.

o On November 11, 2025, Operations and Maintenance staff successfully
completed a media change-out for both Stage 1 and Stage 2 vessels at the
LPWTP. The work included inspection and repair of various associated
components as needed to ensure continued system performance.

2. Operations and Maintenance Treatment Compliance Projects Update
 El Rio staff completed the monthly OH System Surface Water Treatment Rule

Report and emailed SWRCB DDW.
 El Rio staff completed the monthly SWRCB Safer Clearinghouse Drought

Tolerance Report.
 El Rio operators performed monthly safety checks of OH Clear Wells 1 and 2.
 El Rio operators obtained monthly static water levels for OH, PTP and Saticoy

wells.
 El Rio operators obtained quarterly Stage 2 Disinfection/Disinfection By-products

samples from OH Pipeline monitoring stations.

3. Safety and Training
 El Rio operators went through in-house SCBA/B-Kit training.
 El Rio staff conducted in-house Forklift Safety training.
 El Rio, Saticoy, and SFD operators performed a monthly safety check of onsite

Automated External Defibrillators.
 El Rio operators verified and calibrated chlorine, aqua ammonia and natural gas

leak detectors.
 El Rio operators completed required HAZWOPER online courses.

Attachment:  
Operations Log for November 2025 



SFD El. Stor. Surface Evap. Inflow 
Balance

Outflow 
USGS

Hydro Rain 
106E

River Diverted Fish*** 
Facility

Bypass 
Channel

Crest El Rio Noble/ 
Rose

Piru T.I.D. P.T.P. L.P. Saticoy 
Wells

Total Cl2

Ft. A/F Acres Inches Av. CFS Av. CFS Kw Inches Av. CFS Av. CFS Av. CFS Av. CFS Av. CFS Av. CFS Misc CFS† Weir CFS Av. CFS Av. CFS A/F A/F A/F % A/F A/F A/F Lbs.

A/F* 12003 306 14,930 2.83 11,978 10,654 412 853 3,994 1050 0.0 1,195 397 798 0.0 4 1,019 8,520
11/1/25 972.60 11981 443 0.153 8 18.1 0 0.00 59 52 7 0 0 19.19 15 0 0 0.0 36.7 16.9 19.8 0.19 0.0 0.0 29.4 209

11/2/25 972.60 11981 443 0.131 11 9.95 0 0.00 53 46 7 0 0 26.05 7 0 0 0.0 26.7 18.5 21.1 0.23 0.0 0.0 25.5 181

11/3/25 972.60 11981 443 0.121 9 7.51 0 0.00 51 44 7 0 0 22.62 2 0 0 0.0 38.2 7.5 22.8 0.26 0.0 0.0 32.5 241

11/4/25 972.70 12026 444 0.111 31 7.4 0 0.00 47 40 7 0 0 14.93 7 0 0 0.0 35.4 22.8 19.8 0.25 0.0 0.0 28.8 292

11/5/25 973.05 12181 446 0.099 87 7.41 0 0.00 43 36 7 0 0 13.74 5 0 0 0.0 33.3 19.5 19.4 0.27 0.0 0.0 32.8 356

11/6/25 973.60 12428 449 0.127 133 7.44 0 0.00 43 36 7 0 0 13.22 8 0 0 0.0 27.7 16.6 19.8 0.28 0.0 0.0 26.8 261

11/7/25 974.10 12653 452 0.131 122 7.46 0 0.00 42 35 7 0 0 8.45 10 0 0 0.0 32.9 9.6 22.4 0.32 0.0 0.0 31.1 2226

11/8/25 974.80 12972 456 0.127 170 7.48 0 0.00 43 36 7 0 0 10.51 10 0 0 0.0 29.9 14.2 19.1 0.27 0.0 0.0 26.5 199

11/9/25 975.40 13247 461 0.123 148 7.51 0 0.00 45 38 7 0 0 20.29 9 0 0 0.0 16.7 10.5 22.4 0.30 0.0 0.0 21.1 160

11/10/25 975.95 13502 464 0.151 138 7.53 0 0.00 45 38 7 0 0 21.67 9 0 0 0.0 14.1 6.3 3.9 0.05 0.0 0.0 28.6 212

11/11/25 976.50 13759 468 0.146 139 7.55 0 0.00 42 35 7 0 0 11.51 12 0 0 0.0 22.5 14.2 11.5 0.17 0.0 0.0 29.0 223

11/12/25 977.19 14084 473 0.133 173 7.48 0 0.00 45 38 7 0 0 17.1 17 0 0 0.0 6.8 14.2 0.1 0.00 0.0 0.0 23.9 228

11/13/25 977.88 14412 478 0.077 174 7.56 0 0.00 48 41 7 0 0 23.57 16 0 0 0.0 2.7 2.7 0.0 0.00 0.0 0.0 35.3 315

11/14/25 978.25 14590 481 0.044 98 7.59 0 0.86 262 70 4.4 187.6 0 18.19 52 0 0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.00 0.0 0.0 37.1 348

11/15/25 978.90 14905 486 0.033 167 7.64 0 1.90 1206 128 3.5 727.4 347.4 4.45 123 0 0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.00 0.0 0.0 33.7 233

11/16/25 981.22 16055 504 0.044 589 7.71 0 2.71 1003 333 7 0 663.5 78.01 98 156.94 117.14 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.00 0.0 0.0 35.5 247

11/17/25 982.51 16712 513 0.020 339 7.46 0 0.25 840 280 5.9 208.8 344.6 86.08 27 166.88 104.91 0.0 0.3 0.3 0.0 0.00 0.0 0.0 40.6 274

11/18/25 985.19 18116 533 0.082 717 7.4 0 1.21 888 305 7 0 575.5 68.2 29 207.35 193.94 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.00 0.0 0.0 37.4 384

11/19/25 987.38 19302 550 0.070 607 7.47 0 0.00 492 304 7 0 181.7 88.88 16 198.27 130.1 0.0 1.8 1.8 0.0 0.00 0.0 0.0 37.9 412

11/20/25 988.72 20047 562 0.049 384 7.51 0 0.00 414 307 6.3 51.1 49.4 106.99 10 189.56 16 0.0 0.2 0.2 0.0 0.00 0.0 0.0 36.0 281

11/21/25 989.53 20506 570 0.060 240 7.54 0 0.75 653 356 7 0 289.8 102.9 25 227.86 29.43 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.00 0.0 0.0 36.3 282

11/22/25 990.22 20902 576 0.064 208 7.56 0 0.05 497 300 6.2 66.5 124.2 85.58 11 202.22 45.15 0.0 2.0 2.0 0.0 0.00 0.0 0.0 35.8 278

11/23/25 991.06 21391 585 0.112 256 7.57 0 0.00 328 311 7 0 9.3 89.99 14 207.19 38.59 0.0 0.6 0.6 0.0 0.00 0.0 0.0 35.2 256

11/24/25 991.81 21833 593 0.063 232 7.58 0 0.00 277 270 7 0 0 96.73 14 156.62 41.76 0.0 6.2 6.2 0.0 0.00 0.0 0.0 39.2 357

11/25/25 992.34 22151 600 0.077 169 7.52 0 0.00 261 254 7 0 0 82.54 47 119.71 0 0.0 10.1 10.1 0.0 0.00 0.0 0.0 36.2 394

11/26/25 992.74 22394 606 0.084 131 7.28 0 0.00 238 211 6.4 21.1 0 87.43 42 77.2 0 0.0 7.9 7.9 0.0 0.00 0.0 0.0 39.5 352

11/27/25 993.08 22602 612 0.091 114 7.29 0 0.00 222 215 7 0 0 91.58 48 71.67 0 0.0 6.4 6.4 0.0 0.00 0.0 0.0 37.0 285

11/28/25 993.36 22775 617 0.095 96 7.3 0 0.00 204 197 7 0 0 70.5 54 65.85 0 0.0 12.3 12.3 0.0 0.00 0.0 0.0 37.6 285

11/29/25 993.51 22868 620 0.097 56 7.3 0 0.00 189 182 7 0 0 112.48 8 55.4 0 0.0 12.0 12.0 0.0 0.00 0.0 0.0 36.9 295

11/30/25 993.66 22962 623 0.068 56 7.31 0 0.00 182 175 7.1 0 0 120.81 7 45.33 0 0.0 2.6 2.6 0.0 0.00 0.0 0.0 35.9 287

TOTAL CFS 5802 237 7.73 8760 4711 201 1263 2585 1614 754 2148 717 0.0

AVERAGE CFS 193 8 292 157 7 42 86 54 25 72 24 0.0

TOTAL A/F 11488 470 17344 9328 398 2500 5119 3196 1492 4253 1420 0.0 386 236 202 0 0.0 999 10353

MONTHLY REVENUE TO DATE (approx.) $0 K

AVERAGE A/F 383 16 578 311 13 83 171 107 50 142 47 0.0 13 8 7 9% 0 0.0 33 345

WATER YEAR TOTALS A/F 11,794 15,400 10.56 29,322 19,981 809 3,353 5,119 7,190 2,469 0.0 1,581 633 1,000 0 4 2,019 18,873
* Input total A/F previous month
** Daily averages imported from Ranch Systems 
***Fish facility flows include Denil fishladder, aux pipe and smolt bypass pipe
† Includes Ponds A, C, E, and I overflows, temporary storage in the desilting basin and Pond B, JLB diversions, losses between meters.  Negatives mean prior storage from pond B or desilting basin is discharging to other metered sources.

11,214

FREEMAN DIVERSION**SANTA FELICIA DAM

DATE

OPERATIONS LOG v 10/7/21 Showing November 2025 Reads

Saticoy Facility PVCWD

O-HIRRIGATIONRECHARGE

5469

ATTACHMENT



To:

Through:

From: 

Date: 

STAFF REPORT 

UWCD Board of Directors 

Mauricio Guardado, General Manager 
Anthony A. Emmert, Assistant General Manager 

Bernard Riedel Jr., Senior Park Ranger 

December 29, 2025 (January 14, 2026, meeting) 

Agenda Item:   4.2  Recreation Department Monthly Report
       Information Item  

Staff Recommendation:  
Review this monthly report from the Recreation Department of its activities for November 
as well as receive a verbal presentation of its highlights for December 2025. 

Discussion:  
Staff completed clearing the debris along the shoreline at the Marina following the 
conclusion of the Fall conservation release. Rainstorms in early November raised the lake 
level sufficiently to allow the repositioning of the courtesy docks and reopening the lake 
to recreational boating on November 18th after being closed for the previous six weeks. 
Staff decorated one of the rental pontoon boats and participated as the United Water 
entrant in the Santa Paula Christmas parade. This was the first of three Christmas 
parades in which LPRA staff are participating. 

Slow season projects staff are working on include: coordinating the logistics of a 5K run 
and 1K fun run/walk at the LPRA on March 28, 2026, identifying areas within the LPRA 
where additional hiking trails can be established, and exploring the possibility of hosting 
movie nights at the LPRA Day Use Park during the summer months. 

Staff Tasks and Activity Highlights 
November 4: The Juan Fernandez boat launch ramp was used as the setting for a small 
film production. 

Staff Training/Meetings/Events 
November 19: Full time LPRA staff members attended a SFD Emergency Action Plan 
Overview hosted by Tony Huynh and Adrian Quiroz.   
November 28: LPRA staff attended the Santa Paula Christmas parade. 



4.2 Recreation Department Monthly Report  
 Information Item 

2 

* It should be noted that the above figures have not been verified by the District’s Finance
Department.

2025 Total Visitation Figures
Month # People # Vehicles # Vessels Pets   

January 1,952 649 76 3 
February 3,203 1,141 189 12 

March 5,958 3,526 763 22 
April   8,906  2,823 618 22 
May 12,266 3,563 651 8 
June 14,366 4,083 916 12 
July 19,565 4,873 930 11 

August 13,732 3,765 699 20 
September 6,684 2,125 523 7 

October 5,044 1,325 77 0
November 3,325 478 34 0 

Total 95,001 28,351 5,476 117

Incidents 
There are no incidents to report. 

Citations/Enforcement Summary 
No citations were issued. It should be noted that Ranger staff issued verbal warnings for 
violations of District ordinances and state laws. 

Grants 
Staff are working on a CDFW grant opportunity for two new ADA compliant floating 
bathrooms. 

2025 Day Use/Other Revenue Recap and Comparison 
2025 Day Use/Other Revenue (Jan 1 – Nov 30) $528,998 

2025 Boat Rental Revenue (Jan 1 – Nov 30) $35,549 
2024 Day Use/Other Revenue (Jan 1 – Nov 30) $516,871 
Total Revenue Increase/Decrease from Prior Year $12,127
Annual Increase/Decrease % 2.3%

2025 Camping Revenue (Jan 1 – Nov 30) $553,758 
2024 Camping Revenue (Jan 1 – Nov 30) $550,173 
Total Revenue Increase/Decrease from Prior Year $3,585
Annual Increase/Decrease in % 0.7%

2025 All Revenue (Jan 1 – Nov 30) $1,082,756 
2024 All Revenue (Jan 1 – Nov 30) $1,067,044 
Total Revenue Increase from Prior Year $15,712
Annual Increase/Decrease in % 1.5% 



STAFF REPORT 

To: UWCD Board of Directors 

Through: Mauricio Guardado, General Manager 
Dr. Maryam Bral, Assistant General Manager 

From: Dr. Bram Sercu, Water Resources Supervisor  
Dr. Jason Sun, Supervisory Water Resources Engineer 

Date: December 29, 2025 (January 14, 2026, meeting) 

Agenda Item:  4.3  Water Resources Department Monthly Report and Update on 
Activities of Local Groundwater Sustainability Agencies (GSAs) 
Information Item  

Staff Recommendation: 
Receive a report on Water Resources Department activities for the month of December 
2025, including a summary of the activities of the Santa Paula Basin Technical Advisory 
Committee and three local Groundwater Sustainability Agencies (GSA): Fox Canyon 
Groundwater Management Agency (FCGMA), Fillmore and Piru Basins GSA (FPBGSA), 
and Mound Basin GSA (MBGSA).  

Discussion: 
Staff Activities 
Notable activities conducted by staff during the month included the following: 

• Groundwater Modeling:
o Staff are supporting the GSP modeling simulations for FPBGSA
o Staff are importing the FPBGSA groundwater model into MODFLOW-USG to

improve computational efficiency.
o Staff are converting the implementation of the recharge package from Fortran

to Python.
o Staff coordinated with MBGSA on the GSP simulation scenarios.

• Water Resources:
o Staff finalized the draft roadmap report for the Database Management System

update project and are planning potential next steps.



4.3 Water Resources Department Monthly Report and Update on Activities of 
Local Groundwater Sustainability Agencies 
Information Item 

2 

o Staff supported the Finance Department with developing guidelines for the
District’s groundwater customer metering policy.

o Staff coordinated and participated in the OH workgroup meeting to discuss
evaluations of the OH system.

o Staff finalized an internal review draft of the 5-year update to United’s Santa
Clara River Watershed Sanitary Survey, as required by the State Division of
Drinking Water (DDW).

o Staff continued preparation of the Santa Paula Basin (adjudicated) annual
report for CY and WY 2024.

o Staff continued preparation of the 2026 Urban Water Management Plan for OH
System.

• Hydrology:
o Staff assisted with planning and coordination of diversions and recharge

operations during December storms.
o Staff measured Santa Clara River surface water conditions before the

December storms.
o Staff continued to explore and coordinate supplemental SWP purchase

opportunities.

o Staff assisted with evaluating the design of the modified fish passage and
Freeman Diversion system.

o Staff assisted with evaluating operations modeling for the HCP.

• Hydrogeology:
o Staff participated in the planning and execution of Phase 1 of the EBB Water

Project at Navy Base Ventura County (NBVC) Point Mugu, including the
following activities:
o Coordinated with IT department and FGL to update the water quality

database for reporting EBB sampling data to the State.
o Planning for geotechnical site work and installation of piezometers.
o Quarterly sampling monitoring wells.

o Staff assisted Engineering with work plan review for rehabilitation and
redevelopment of Wells OH 17, 13, and 14.

o Staff are preparing a work plan for a groundwater transport study at the
Saticoy recharge basins, including tracer testing and groundwater modeling.

o Staff conducted routine collection of groundwater elevation and quality data
throughout the District’s service area, following up with quality control,



4.3 Water Resources Department Monthly Report and Update on Activities of 
Local Groundwater Sustainability Agencies 
Information Item 

3 

analysis, and reporting activities required to support water resources 
management by United and other entities within our service area. 

• Outreach and Education: Santa Paula Isbell MS classroom presentations and
Freeman visit, AWA bus tour at Freeman, OUHSD STEAM day.

Fox Canyon Groundwater Management Agency 
Staff participated in the FCGMA’s groundwater sustainability planning and 
implementation efforts in the Oxnard and Pleasant Valley Basins and meet periodically 
with FCGMA staff and other stakeholders to evaluate groundwater conditions and discuss 
water-supply projects that support a sustainable, resilient water-supply portfolio for the 
region. Notable activities include: 

• Staff submitted OPV Allocation Ordinance Additional Reporting Requirements
Reports for UWCD Agriculture and M&I wells and in-lieu deliveries.

• Staff provided data evaluations to the LPV Watermaster to support its adjustments
to basin assessments for water right holders also paying an assessment to United.

Staff also attended the FCGMA special Board meeting on December 12, which included 
the following notable agenda topics: 

• The Board approved the 2026 schedules for Regular Board Meetings, Special
Board Meetings and Committee meetings.

• The Board discussed litigations in closed session.
Fillmore and Piru Basins Groundwater Sustainability Agency 
Staff participated in FPBGSA activities supporting SGMA compliance and GSP 
implementation for the Fillmore and Piru basins.  
Board of Directors meetings – The FPBGSA regular Board meeting on December 11 was 
cancelled. 
Mound Basin Groundwater Sustainability Agency 
Staff participated in MBGSA activities supporting SGMA compliance and GSP 
implementation for the Mound basin. Staff also attended and, where appropriate, 
contributed to MBGSA Board and Committee meetings, as follows: 
Board of Directors meeting – The MBGSA regular Board meeting was held on December 
18 and included a GSP public workshop. The meeting included the following notable 
agenda topics: 

• The Executive Director presented an update of the periodic evaluation report that
is due by November 18, 2026, and updates that are being considered.

• The GSA consultant presented an evaluation of interconnected surface water,
including monitoring data to demonstrate that shallow alluvial deposits are
hydraulically disconnected from the deeper principal aquifers.



4.3 Water Resources Department Monthly Report and Update on Activities of 
Local Groundwater Sustainability Agencies 
Information Item 

4 

Santa Paula Basin Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) 
Staff participated in the Santa Paula Basin TAC in support of the Santa Paula Basin 
Judgment and in conformance with SGMA reporting requirements for adjudicated basins, 
as follows: 

• Staff continued preparation of the WY and CY 2024 Santa Paula Basin annual
report.

• Staff participated in a TAC meeting to discuss Agricultural Well Permit Applications
and basin pumping trends.



To:

Through:

STAFF REPORT 

UWCD Board of Directors 

Mauricio Guardado, General Manager 
Anthony A. Emmert, Assistant General Manager 

From: 

Date: 

Josh Perez, Chief Human Resources Officer 
Brian H. Zahn, Chief Financial Officer 
Tony Huynh, Risk and Safety Manager 
Zachary Plummer, Technology Systems Manager 
Jackie Lozano, Senior Administrative Assistant 

December 29, 2025 (January 14, 2026, meeting) 

Agenda Item:   4.4  Administrative Services Department Monthly Report
       Information Item  

Staff Recommendation:  
Review this monthly report from the Administrative Services Department for its activities 
for November as well as receive a verbal presentation of its highlights for December 2025. 

Discussion: 

Finance 
 Financial Audit’s – complete.
 Annual Comprehensive Financial Report – published.
 Budget Strategies – meeting with Executive Board January 12, 2026.
 Budget Templates – sending out in December 2025.
 AR Workshop – scheduled for January 21, 2026.
 Changing Groundwater Billing Period – GW Billing to match water year.

Administrative Services 
 Provided administrative assistance for drafting, finalizing, distributing/posting

materials, and room set up for the following meetings:  Finance and Audit Committee
(Nov. 3), Engineering and Operations Committee (Nov. 6),  Executive Committee
(Nov. 10), Board of Directors (Nov. 12), as well as the Mound Basin Ground Water
Sustainability Agency meeting (Nov. 20) held at the County of Ventura.

 Coordinated with staff by providing support for the UWCD All Staff (Nov. 5) and
Safety (Nov. 18) meetings.

 Coordinated logistical support with room and beverage setup for the following
outside agency meetings: AWA Board (Nov. 6), and AWA WaterWise Breakfast and
VC CWA (Nov. 20).



4.4 Administrative Services Department Monthly Report  
 Information Item 

2 

Human Resources 
 Working on recruitment for the following position:

o Senior Hydrogeologist
 Set to post Part Time Seasonal Park Ranger position in mid-January.
 Chief Human Resources Officer attended the ACWA Conference in San Diego

(December 2 through 4, 2025) learning about several new employment law changes
slated for 2026 and listening to panels on key topics regarding water operations and
water policy.

 Implemented California’s 2026 Minimum Wage Law which impacted several part
time District positions.

 Onboarded three Part Time Environmental Services Field Assistants.
 A new Technology Systems Intern is set to onboard on January 5, 2026.
 Procured service awards for Board and General Manager presentation to staff.
 Out-processed several part time staff members at the Lake and held exit interviews.

This is a regular part of the process.

Risk and Safety Management 

 In coordination with Finance, submitted 2023 Winter Storms Disaster Recovery
Closeout documentation for all projects except for the large debris removal effort.
This project remains in final stages of FEMA review, but a new case manager was
assigned. Two million dollars is anticipated to be released once this is completed.

 Supported Engineering Department with submission of Annual Security Compliance
Certification to FERC.

 Also, supported Engineering with Annual SFD Saticoy Duty Operator Dam Safety
Crossover Training.

 Oversaw physical installation of the Dam Siren Replacement located above Fire
Station 28 in Piru, CA.

 Coordinated with Capital Industrial (formerly Zee Medical) and District staff for the
Annual First Aid Refill of First Aid Kits in District vehicles and cabinets at District
facilities.

 Coordinated elevator and fire contractors testing requirement per Cal/OSHA Order
to receive new permit.

Information Technology 

System Maintenance and Cybersecurity 
 During December, Technology Systems initiated the procurement process for three

24-port network switches to be installed at the Lake Piru facilities. These switches
will replace existing equipment that has reached end of manufacturer support and is
currently operating on outdated software.

 Over the past six months, phishing simulation attempts have demonstrated a clear
and sustained reduction in user susceptibility to phishing attacks. Performance has



4.4 Administrative Services Department Monthly Report  
 Information Item 

3 

remained well below industry benchmarks for similarly sized government 
organizations. Early simulations showed higher interaction rates, which is typical 
when establishing a baseline. Subsequent campaigns demonstrate consistent 
improvement, with fewer risky actions and increased reporting of suspicious 
messages. High-risk behaviors such as entering data, enabling attachments, or 
responding to simulated phishing messages have remained rare. 

 As of the most recent campaign:
o The District has an average phishing susceptibility rate of 3.2%, compared to an

industry benchmark of 19.3%.
o The most recent campaign resulted in a 0% susceptibility rate.
o Employees are significantly more likely to report suspicious messages than

interact with them.
o These results indicate that the phishing simulation and training program is

effectively reinforcing awareness and safe behavior, contributing to reduced
organizational risk over time. This is especially critical since attacks of this type
are increasing in number and complexity across the globe because of Artificial
Intelligence proliferation making them more realistic.

Technological Equipment Life Cycle – Deployment Progress 
 While there is no immediate indication of active risk, replacing unsupported

equipment aligns with Technology Systems best practice of addressing systems that
are no longer maintained or updated by vendors. This proactive approach helps
reduce long-term security exposure and operational risk.

Field Support, Automation, and Workflow Improvements  
 Coordinated secure remote access to support Ventura County Watershed Protection

District and Law enforcement partners while maintaining appropriate access
controls.

 Activated and validated FirstNet service for the Operations and Maintenance alerting
system to support reliable, priority communications for critical notifications.

 Processed employee onboarding and offboarding requests, ensuring timely setup
and removal of user accounts, devices, and access in accordance with District
standards.

 Completed monitor transfers and peripheral allocation for staff to maintain
workstation functionality and proper asset use.

 Reviewed and identified updates needed for the District phone system’s holiday
programming in preparation for the 2026 calendar year.

 Provided technical assistance to the Control Systems team during a wide-area
network outage caused by a power supply failure at the Torrey Mountain site, a
remote facility operated by Ventura County Network Operations Group

Infrastructure and System Optimization Initiatives 
 Continued planning and configuration work on firewall infrastructure in preparation

for the upcoming deployment and improved network reliability.



4.4 Administrative Services Department Monthly Report  
 Information Item 

4 

 Advanced work on Board Room speaker system installation, including coordination,
validation, and readiness planning.

 Performed server upgrade activities to maintain system reliability and ensure
systems remain current with supported operating system versions.

 Evaluated subscription options for software to assess licensing needs and cost
considerations for District usage moving forward.

 Deployed new computers for executive and administrative staff, including the
General Manager and an accounting staff member, to maintain performance,
security, and hardware standards.

 Initiated deployment of a new computer for the Public Outreach and External Affairs
Manager, with configuration and readiness to work underway and scheduled for
completion before January.

 Collaborated with Water Resources staff to develop the initial version of the Water
Quality Lab reporting database, establishing a foundation for structured reporting
and future enhancements.

 Improved internal user account creation tools to better handle unique or non-
standard account needs while maintaining security and administrative efficiency.

 Met with external district vendor to request and review alternative reporting formats
to better align with Water Resources data requirements.

 Participated in cross-departmental review of the final Document Management
System (DMS) report draft, providing technical input before finalization.

Meeting and Event Support 
 Assisted in support of the Board meeting held in the District Boardroom

Facilities and User Support 
 Provisioned and deployed end-user equipment as needed, including configuration

and readiness for daily operational use.
 Addressed routine end-user support requests, including workstation setup, wireless

connectivity issues, and general troubleshooting.
 Assisted with general operational support activities as needed to ensure continuity

of daily operations throughout the month.

Upcoming Projects 
 The new network switches referenced for Lake Piru will aid in improving visibility into

network activity and simplify day-to-day management. Expected benefits include
improved monitoring, more reliable operation, and faster troubleshooting when
issues arise.

 The selected hardware also follows the same general design used at other District
locations but represents a newer generation with enhanced capabilities. It also
provides sufficient capacity for near-term growth in District use for future
infrastructure changes, including potential network consolidation associated with the
Santa Felicia Dam Safety Improvement project.



To:

Through:

STAFF REPORT 

UWCD Board of Directors 

Mauricio Guardado, General Manager 
Anthony A. Emmert, Assistant General Manager 

From: 

Date: 

Tara Mulally, Public Outreach and External Affairs Manager 

December 29, 2025 (January 14, 2026, meeting) 

Agenda Item:   4.5  Public Outreach and External Affairs Department Monthly 
Report

       Information Item  

Staff Recommendation:  
Review this monthly report from the Public Outreach and External Affairs Department of 
its activities for November as well as receive a verbal presentation of its highlights for 
December 2025. 

Discussion: 

Outreach Events and Tours 

Beginning in January, quarterly tours will be offered to provide stakeholders with direct 
opportunities to learn about District operations, initiatives, and accomplishments. This 
consistent schedule will strengthen relationships, showcase transparency, and highlight 
the value of the UWCD’s work in the community. 

Completed Events and Tours 

 AWA Holiday Event (December 9)
 Piru Christmas Parade and Festival (December 13)
 Isbell Middle School Diversion Tour (December 16)
 AWA Diversion Tour (December 16)

Upcoming Tours 

 January Quarterly Tour (January 28)

Upcoming Events 

 Native Plant Fest (January 24)
 Boys and Girls Club Annual Auction and Dinner (February 7)



4.5 Public Outreach and External Affairs Department Monthly Report  
 Information Item 

2 

 Annual Communications Plan 

Now in the fourth month of implementation, the Annual Communications Plan continues 
to deliver measurable progress and build momentum across key outreach areas. What 
began as a strategic framework aligned with the Board’s priorities is now actively guiding 
a more coordinated, proactive approach to District communications. 

Significant progress has been made in several core areas: 

 Paid Media and Advertising: The District’s annual media buy has been fully
strategized and developed. Implementation is scheduled to begin at the end of
January, marking a major upcoming milestone in expanding reach and awareness.

 Tours: Outreach through the District’s email distribution has generated strong
interest, with 15 registrants confirmed for the January tour, demonstrating
growing demand for educational and stakeholder engagement opportunities.

 Events Outreach: Visibility and participation at community events continue to
grow. Notably, the District was invited to participate in Native Plant Fest as a direct
result of its presence in the Oxnard Christmas Parade, reflecting increased
recognition and community connection.

These advancements reflect ongoing staff collaboration and continued refinement of 
priorities outlined in the Communications Plan. A detailed timeline of milestones and next 
steps remains in active use, and this December update captures both recent 
accomplishments and near-term actions that will carry momentum into the new year. 

Completed November Initiatives include: 

 Ad Buy Plan Created
 Initial Concepts Developed and Approved
 Quarterly Tour Launched
 Updated PowerPoint Template Launched

Upcoming December/January Initiatives include: 

 Funding Educational Campaign Launch
 Lake Piru 5K Marketing
 Fleet Logos (progress continues)
 End of Year Report Card

Social Media Analytics Brief, Findings and Considerations 

Social media performance strengthened in December as recent adjustments to our 
approach began delivering measurable gains. Targeted post promotion supported 



4.5 Public Outreach and External Affairs Department Monthly Report  
 Information Item 

3 

broader message visibility, contributing to a 98% increase in Facebook views and 3,050 
new viewers. 

Overall, these results demonstrate growing reach, improved targeting, and a stronger 
foundation for expanded paid media efforts launching later this winter. 

United Water Conservation District Social Media Platforms 

Facebook Likes: 659 (Net Increase of 79 Followers) 
LinkedIn Followers: 467 (Net Increase of 19 Followers) 
Instagram Followers: 9 
Nextdoor Interactions: 44 

Lake Piru Social Media Platforms 

Facebook Followers: 2,676 (Net Increase of 252 Followers) 
Instagram Followers: 1,387 (Net Increase of 89 Followers) 

January Posting Plans and Tactics 

For January, our social media strategy focuses on targeted amplification, consistent 
storytelling, and community engagement across key platforms to expand reach, 
strengthen credibility, and drive participation. 

 Launch targeted post boosting on Facebook to expand the reach of high-priority
messages, beginning with tour promotion and educational content, using
geographic targeting within the District’s service area and tracking engagement
metrics to establish baseline paid media performance.

 Leverage Facebook’s strong organic momentum by prioritizing high-performing
visuals and timely posts, repurposing proven content for amplification, and
maintaining a consistent posting cadence to sustain recent gains in visibility and
audience reach.

 Use LinkedIn to reinforce professional credibility and transparency through
focused project updates, educational insights, and leadership or staff perspectives
that support continued follower growth and stakeholder engagement.

 Build consistency on Instagram as a visual storytelling platform by posting regularly
with strong imagery tied to infrastructure, landscapes, and people, cross-posting
select content while adapting captions to fit a more concise, visual-first audience.

 Strengthen neighborhood-level communication on Nextdoor by sharing locally
relevant updates, tour invitations, and community-facing information in a service-
oriented tone that encourages interaction and trust.



STAFF REPORT 

To:

Through: 

From:

Date: 

UWCD Board of Directors 

Mauricio Guardado, General Manager 
Dr. Maryam Bral, Assistant General Manager 

Robert Richardson, Engineering Manager 

December 29, 2025 (January 14, 2026, meeting) 

Agenda Item:  4.6 Engineering Department Monthly Report  
Information item 

Staff Recommendation: 
Receive this summary report from the Engineering Department regarding its activities for 
November 2025, as well as receive a presentation of its highlights. Please refer to the 
end of the report for a list of acronyms.  

Discussion: 
Santa Felicia Dam Safety Improvement Project 

 FERC Compliance:
o November 3: FERC notified the District that the 2027 Part 12D Inspection

Report is due on November 3, 2027, and requested an initial kick-off call
within 30 days. Staff coordinated with FERC to schedule the 2027 SFD Part
12D Initial Conference Call for December 2, 2025.

o November 10: Staff received a draft 2025 SFD Survey Monitoring Report
from ECG.

o November 19: Engineering Staff provided EAP overview training to Lake
Piru Park Rangers (see Figure 1).

o Staff continued preparation of the end-of-year FERC Reports (ASCC,
DSSMR, EAP Status Report, ODSP and Annual CDSE Report), as well as
implementing internal EAP binder updates.

 Outlet Works Improvement Project:
o November 6: Staff submitted comments (District and BV) to GEI on the ICF

Structural Stability Analysis.
o November 18: Staff presented to the VC Board of Supervisors on the SFD

SIP, during which the Board adopted a resolution supporting the project
(see Figure 2).

o November 25: Staff e-filed a request with FERC for an extension of time to
close any remaining BOC comments on the SFD OW Project by BOC



4.6 Engineering Department Monthly Report  
Information Item 

2 

Meeting No. 11, which had been rescheduled from November 3-4, 2025, to 
March 25–26, 2026. 

 Grants – See the Grants section as part of this report.
 Please see the Monthly Environmental Services Department Report for updates

on the Project’s environmental compliance and permitting process.

Lake Piru Recreation Area FIP 
 Lake Piru Campground and Recreation Area Renovations:

o Water Treatment Plant Improvements:
 Staff conducted LPWTP site visits with prospective system integrators to

discuss potential I&C upgrade needs and design services for the project.
 Staff received a proposal from a prospective firm for a turbidity curtain for

the pump barge.
 Staff provided comments to Stantec on their proposal for the LPWTP

Improvement Project.
o Restroom Improvements:
 Staff received two quotes from environmental testing companies for

lead/asbestos testing for the LOG and Oak Lane restrooms.
 Lake Piru Asphalt

o Staff completed 65% design documents in support of the Lake Piru Boating
Access Enhancement grant application.

o Grants – See the Grants section as part of this report.

Freeman Diversion Expansion 
 Staff continued to meet with its design team (NHC and GEI) and technical advisors

to advance the design and data needs related to the MSHCP.
 November 13: Staff conducted a site visit with GEI to support the 30% design

effort for the Improved Denil. Six key staff members from GEI joined four United
staff members for an extensive site walk of the existing Freeman Facility and
related infrastructure.

 Please see the Monthly Environmental Services Department Report for updates
on the Project’s environmental compliance and permitting process.

Freeman Conveyance System Upgrade – Freeman to Ferro 
 November 19: Staff met with the new project manager from HDR to establish a

schedule for preparing the permit submittal package to Caltrans.

El Rio 
 November 4: Engineering Staff and O&M conducted a site walk regarding a

proposed 6" water line for Clearwell No. 2 washdown and a future storage building.
 Staff prepared preliminary plans for the proposed 6” water line.

OH Pipeline 
 November 5: Staff held a kick-off meeting to prepare the 2025 UWMP.



4.6 Engineering Department Monthly Report  
Information Item 

3 

 November 19: Staff participated in the Vineyard Avenue MWC Consolidation
Monthly Project Meeting and Staff is working with their consultant (NV5) on
pending RFIs.

 Staff drafted a notice-to-test BPA letter in compliance with new cross-connection
control regulations and coordinated with O&M on issuance to users in December.

OH Well Replacement 
 November 7: Staff directed the consultant to begin work on Well 17 Rehabilitation

Design. The contract with Kyle Groundwater, Inc. (Kyle) was executed on
November 5, 2025.

 November 17: Staff kicked off the Well 17 Rehabilitation Project with Kyle to
address high turbidity issues detected in Well 17.

Pleasant Valley Pipeline 
 November 7: Staff provided a response to Costco’s consultant, Kimley-Horn,

regarding the latest design package and timeline. Staff met with Kimely-Horn to
discuss pipe loading calculations and agreed to make corrections to the
calculations.

 Staff reached out to Faring Capital and the City of Camarillo for an update on the
Envision Auto Center Project. The design development team responded with a
design package and requested the District’s feedback.

Pumping Trough Pipeline 
 November 4: Engineering Staff conducted a site walk with O&M regarding a

proposed communications conduit across Ventura Road for the PTP Mainline
Meter located east of Central Avenue that measures surface water deliveries to
the PTP System.

 Staff prepared preliminary plans of the proposed communications conduit for
submittal of a permit application to the City of Camarillo. Staff also drafted a utility
request.

Rice Avenue Grade Separation Project and Impact on PTP 
 Staff continued to monitor construction progress. The Contractor continues to build

the earthen embankment east of PTP Well No. 4 and anticipates constructing piles
for the bridge embankment supports over Fifth Street between late 2025 and early
2026. District Staff anticipate conducting a land survey in 2026 of the area south
of PTP Well No. 4 which was identified as future access to the well site.

PTP Recycled Water Connection – Laguna Road Pipeline Project 
 November 24: Staff met with Toro regarding pressure testing of the newly installed

flow meter.



4.6 Engineering Department Monthly Report  
Information Item 

4 

 November 18: Staff held a coordination meeting with the City of Oxnard and
PVCWD on proposed short-term recycled water delivery through PVCWD to the
PTP system.

 November 20: Staff held a coordination meeting with LARWQCB Staff regarding
proposed short-term recycled water delivery to the PTP system.

Extraction Barrier and Brackish Water Treatment Project 
 November 3: Staff received a request from NBVC regarding the expiring Phase

1A license agreement which authorizes access for land surveying, geotechnical
exploration, and environmental surveying.  Staff discussed a potential two-year
extension with NBVC Staff.

 November 19: Staff held a meeting with NBVC’s CSO, PWO, and ED. Staff
provided project background, project status, and a financial summary. The CSO
and PWO agreed to elevate the priority of review and approval of the Phase 1A
and 1B SARs.

 Staff received a new RFI from the NBVC RPM related to the Phase 1A SAR. Staff
began preparing responses.

 Staff continued to coordinate with P2S on K/J’s review of the power study and
additional information needs.

 K/J completed review of the draft geotechnical report and provided comments to
Earth Systems. A meeting is scheduled to identify information needs to advance
to the 60% design.

 Grants – See the Grants section as part of this report.

Asset Management/CMMS System 
 Staff continued to compile information related to the PV Pipeline for the asset

registry.
 Staff worked with its consultant, HDR, to develop a scope of work for the next stage

of OH Pipeline condition assessments and cathodic protection system
improvements.

Utility Requests 
 Staff responded to three (3) Utility Requests.

Grants 
 DWR:

o DWR Dam Safety and Climate Resilience Local Assistance Program
 November 13:  Staff held a Project Grant Funding Coordination

Meeting with Cal Strat. The solicitation will be tentatively released at
the end of 2025, or the beginning of 2026.

 Cal OES:
o FEMA:

 HMGP – SFD SIP Projects (Outlet Works Improvement Project):



4.6 Engineering Department Monthly Report  
Information Item 

5 

 Staff continued working on a response to Cal OES’ sub-
application RFIs for the HMGP grant application in
coordination with BV and GEI. The RFI due date was
extended by Cal OES to November 21 and was submitted by
the deadline.

 SWRCB:
o GWGP – EBB WTP:

 November 12: Staff submitted the SWRCB invoice and progress
report No. 5.

 November 18: Staff submitted the revised labor certification for
Invoice No. 5.

 CDFW:
o Boating Access Grant Program – Lake Piru:

 November 7: Staff submitted a grant application for pavement
rehabilitation in the Marina area in the amount of $363,000 with a
total estimated project cost of $484,000. There is a 25% local cost
match requirement for the grant. Award announcements are
anticipated in Summer 2026.

 DBW
o Floating Restroom Program Grant – Lake Piru

 November 24: Staff held a meeting with DBW Staff regarding the
Floating Restroom Program Grant opportunity. Grant applications
are due on December 19, 2025.

Professional Development (Conferences, Trainings, Webinars) 
 November 13:  Staff attended the APWA Luncheon “Update on the Las Virgenes-

Triunfo Pure Water Project."
 November 13:  Sonja Flores attended the PPIC Water Conference Webinar titled

“California Water and a Changing Federal Partnership.”
 November 21:  Staff attended the AWA Waterwise Breakfast featuring an “Annual

Update from the General Managers" presentation.

Public Outreach Activities 
 November 19: Staff attended a tour of CMWD's Salinity Management Pipeline,

which included stops at the Hueneme Pier outfall, Hueneme Road pressure-
reducing station, and South Lewis Road break tank. The tour included a
presentation on the design, permitting, and construction process, including future
expansion plans.

 November 19: Staff provided a tour of the Fe/Mn Treatment Plant to DWR and
CMWD Staff (see Figure 3). The tour is provided as a post-construction follow-up
to the IRWM P1R1 grant.



4.6 Engineering Department Monthly Report  
Information Item 

6 

Figure 1 - November 19, 2025 - Adrian Quiroz providing an EAP overview to LPRA 
Park Rangers. 

Figure 2 - November 18, 2025 - Maryam Bral presenting the SFD SIP to the VC Board 
of Supervisors. 



4.6 Engineering Department Monthly Report  
Information Item 

7 

Figure 3 - November 19, 2025 - Robert Richardson providing a tour of the Fe/Mn 
Treatment Plant to DWR and CMWD Staff. 

This space is intentionally left blank. 



4.6 Engineering Department Monthly Report  
Information Item 

8 

Acronym Index 

Acronym Definition
AALRR Atkinson, Andelson, Loya, Ruud & Romo Law Firm 
APWA American Public Works Association 
ASCC Annual Security Compliance Certification 
AWA Association of Water Agencies 
BCA Benefit-Cost Analysis
BOC Board of Consultants 
BOD Board of Directors 
BPA Backflow Prevention Assembly 
BV Black & Veatch 

CAD Computer-Aided Design
Cal OES California Governor's Office of Emergency Services 
Cal Strat California Strategies 
Caltrans California Department of Transportation 
CDFW California Department of Fish and Wildlife 
CDSE Chief Dam Safety Engineer 
CMMS Computerized Maintenance Management System 
CMWD Calleguas Municipal Water District 
CSO Chief Staff Officer
DBW Division of Boating and Waterways 

DSSMR Dam Safety Surveillance and Monitoring Report 
DWR California Department of Water Resources 
EAP Emergency Action Plan 
ECG Encompass Consulting Group 
ED Executive Director

ESD Environmental Services Department 
Fe/Mn Iron and Manganese 
FEMA Federal Emergency Management Agency 
FERC Federal Regulatory Commission 

FIP Facility Improvement Project  
GEI GEI Consultants
GIS Geographic Information Systems 

GWGP Groundwater Grant Program  
HDR HDR Consultants, Inc. 

HMGP Hazard Mitigation Grant Program 
I&C Instrumentation and Control 
ICF Intake Control Facility 

IRWM Integrated Water Management Plan 



4.6 Engineering Department Monthly Report  
Information Item 

9 

Acronym Definition
K/J Kennedy Jenks Consultants, Inc. 

LARWQCB Los Angeles Regional Water Quality Control Board 
LOG Lower Olive Grove 
LPRA Lake Piru Recreation Area 

LPWTP Lake Piru Water Treatment Plant 
MSHCP Multiple Species Habitat Conservation Plan 
MWC Mutal Water Company 
NBVC Naval Base Ventura County  
NHC Northwest Hydraulic Consultants 
NV5 Nv5 Global, Inc. 

ODSP Owners Dam Safety Program 
O&M Operations and Maintenance 
OH Oxnard Hueneme
OW Outlet Works
P2S P2S Engineering, Inc. 
P&ID Piping and Instrumentation Diagram 
PPIC Public Policy Institute of California 
PTP Pumping Trough Pipeline 
PV Pleasant Valley

PVCWD Pleasant Valley County Water District 
PWO Public Works Officer 
RDML Rear Admiral

RFI Request for Information 
RPM Real Property Manager
SAR Site Approval Request 
SFD Santa Felicia Dam 
SIP Safety Improvement Plan 

SWRCB State Water Resources Control Board  
Toro Toro Enterprises, Inc.  

UWMP Urban Water Management Plan 
VC Ventura County



STAFF REPORT 

To: UWCD Board of Directors 

Through: Mauricio Guardado, General Manager 
Anthony A. Emmert, Assistant General Manager 
Dr. Maryam Bral, Assistant General Manager 

From: Marissa Caringella, Environmental Services Manager  

Date: December 16, 2025 (January 14, 2026, meeting) 

Agenda Item: 4.7 Environmental Services Department Monthly Report  
 Information Item

Staff Recommendation: 
Review this staff report from the Environmental Services Department (ES) staff regarding its 
activities for the month of November 2025.  

Discussion: 
1. Santa Felicia Project Operations and Federal Energy Regulatory Commission License

Support

Water Release Plan and Water Release and Ramping Rate Implementation Plan

Under the Water Release Plan and the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC)
license for the Santa Felicia Project, United is required to make certain water releases from
the Santa Felicia Dam for steelhead habitat and migration when specific triggers are met.
Triggers for habitat water releases are based on cumulative rainfall within the water year.
The measured cumulative rainfall for the 2025 water year did not exceed the triggers for
enhanced water releases; therefore, the minimum required habitat water release between
June 1 through October 1, 2025, was seven cubic feet per second. Beginning October 2,
2025, the minimum required water release will continue to be seven cubic feet per second
through January 1, 2026.

Historic Properties Management Plan (HPMP)

On November 18, 2025, ES staff followed the October 2025 HPMP Annual Report submittal
with a supplemental status update. United informed FERC that no comments or meeting
requests were received, thus finalizing the 2025 Annual Reporting Process. The HPMP
Annual Report documented all work conducted under the HPMP within the reporting period
(October 1, 2024, through September 30, 2025), including built environment property



4.7 Environmental Services Department Monthly Report  
Information Item

2 

findings, activity specific cultural resource surveys, a summary of conducted screened 
activities, and a summary of exempt work activities conducted utilizing cultural resource 
avoidance and mitigation measures. In addition, on November 12, 2025, ES staff 
accompanied a contracted cultural expert to conduct cultural surveys as part of United’s 
FERC compliance. The cultural team surveyed for cultural and historical resources at the 
Lake Piru Recreation Area and Santa Felicia Dam. The surveys will be incorporated into the 
2026 HPMP annual report. 

2. Increased State Water Project Imports from Pyramid Lake to Lake Piru

In June 2025, ES staff collaborated with the Department of Water Resources (DWR) to
finalize and submit United's request for a variance to DWR and Los Angeles Department of
Water and Power’s FERC license for Pyramid Lake to allow increased State Water Project
(SWP) imports from Pyramid Dam to Lake Piru. ES staff and DWR also prepared a request
for a temporary amendment to the Clean Water Act 401 Water Quality Certification (WQC)
from the State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB). Both the FERC temporary
variance request and the SWRCB temporary amendment to the 401 WQC were submitted
to the respective agencies by DWR on June 30, 2025, and approval is pending.

On September 5, 2025, FERC filed an information request asking for analysis of nine
additional species and consultation with the USFWS, California Department of Fish and
Wildlife (CDFW), and the U.S. Forest Service (USFS) on the variance request. On October
30, 2025, the additional species analysis and documentation of consultation with the
USFWS, USFS, and CDFW were submitted to FERC, fulfilling FERC’s request for
information.

On October 8, 2025, FERC issued a Notice of Intent (NOI) to prepare a National
Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) Environmental Assessment (EA) for the proposed
temporary variance. Per the NOI, FERC plans to issue the EA by December 15, 2025.
During the month of November, following the end of the federal government shutdown, staff
coordinated with FERC regarding timing of the NEPA EA. FERC staff indicated that no
additional information was needed and the EA was in review internally within their agency.

3. Freeman Diversion Operations

During the month of November 2025, ES staff supported Freeman Diversion operations and
maintenance activities by coordinating with resource agencies as needed, conducting pre-
construction surveys, and providing on-site biological monitoring. ES staff supported
Operations and Maintenance staff with planning and operational responses to several storm
systems, cumulatively resulting in an extremely wet November (second wettest on record
at Oxnard Airport gage; wettest on record for portions of Los Angeles and Santa Barbara
Counties).

On November 24, 2025, ES staff accompanied CDFW staff during monthly surveys
upstream and downstream of the Freeman Diversion. No O. mykiss were observed.



4.7 Environmental Services Department Monthly Report  
Information Item

3 

4. Multiple Species Habitat Conservation Plan

On September 10, 2025, Judge Carter issued an Opinion in the Wishtoyo et al. v. United
Water case. United staff is coordinating with legal counsel to ensure compliance with the
Opinion.

On November 6, 2025, legal counsel submitted an ex parte application to Judge Carter to
extend all deadlines in the September 10, 2025, Opinion (Dkt 693) by 60 days due to the
federal government shutdown. Wishtoyo opposed United's application and on November
10, 2025, Judge Carter issued an order denying the application. Due to the denial of the ex
parte application, and in accordance with the requirements of the September 10, 2025,
Court Order, on November 10, 2025, United submitted a request to the U.S. Army Corps of
Engineers for initiation of ESA Section 7 consultation for construction of the Hardened
Ramp fish passage design.

On November 13, 2025, ES staff met with CDFW staff to discuss permitting processes to
support the January 8, 2025, permit deadlines in the September 10, 2025, Opinion.

On November 13, 2025, ES, Engineering, and O&M staff hosted a tour of the Freeman
Diversion headworks for the GEI engineering design team currently working on the
Improved Denil design.

On November 24, 2025, staff and executive management held an internal workshop on the
proposed Multiple Species Habitat Conservation Plan in preparation for the January 8,
2025, application deadlines.

5. Extraction Barrier and Brackish Water Treatment Project (EBB Water Project)

On November 19, 2025, ES staff accompanied the Engineering dept on a tour of Calleguas
Municipal Water District’s Salinity Management Pipeline. The tour was relevant to design
and permitting for Phase 2 of the EBB Water Project.

6. Quagga Mussel Management

Throughout the month of November 2025, ES staff continued conducting quagga mussel
monitoring activities on Lake Piru, lower Piru Creek, and the spillway pool in accordance
with the Quagga Mussel Monitoring and Control Plan. ES staff also continued quagga
mussel veliger (larva) sampling in the United’s lower system. On November 31, 2025,
District staff attended a regular coordination meeting with Pleasant Valley County Water
District.

7. Grant Efforts

In November 2025, ES staff supported Engineering and the Grant Task Force by completing
environmental materials for the Lake Piru Boating Access Enhancement Project. United is
applying for funding for the Project under the CDFW FY 2026–27 Boating Access Grant



4.7 Environmental Services Department Monthly Report  
Information Item

4 

Program. United submitted an application on November 7, 2025. CDFW will announce 
selections in early summer 2026. 

8. Sustainable Groundwater Management Act

On November 6, 2025, ES staff completed environmental DNA sampling at the East Grove
groundwater dependent ecosystem. This sampling was conducted in accordance with the
East Grove Groundwater Dependent Ecosystem Aquatic Study Plan on behalf of the
Fillmore Piru Basins GSA. Samples were sent to CSU Humbolt to be analyzed
(metabarcoding) for a wide variety of native and non-native fish species.

9. Miscellaneous

On November 14, 2025, ES staff attended the 2025 Annual Wildlife Symposium hosted by
the California Central Coast Chapter of The Wildlife Society and presented a poster on
Pacific Lamprey in the Santa Clara River at the Symposium.

On November 20, 2025, ES staff attended the WaterWise presentation, “The Big Three:
Annual Update from the General Managers.”

On November 20, 2025, ES staff attended Nossaman's 2025 Environmental Law & Policy
Seminar in Costa Mesa. Key topics presented included CEQA Reforms and NEPA
Rollback, CEQA Mitigation & CESA Permitting, and ESA, CESA, and CWA Permitting
Developments.

On November 28, 2025, ES staff participated in United’s float at the Santa Paula 75th Annual
Holiday Parade.

During the month of November, ES and Human Resources staff interviewed candidates for
the part-time ES Field Assistant position. Three candidates were selected and will start on
December 16, 2025.



STAFF REPORT 

To:

Through: 

From:

Date:

UWCD Board of Directors 

Mauricio Guardado, General Manager 
Dr. Maryam Bral, Assistant General Manager 

Robert Richardson, Engineering Manager 
Nathan Summerville, Senior Engineer 

December 29, 2025 (January 14, 2026, meeting) 

Agenda Item:  5.1 Indemnification Agreement by and between United Water
Conservation District and Costco Wholesale Corporation
Motion

Staff Recommendation:
Authorize the General Manager to execute the Indemnification Agreement 
by and between United Water Conservation District and Costco Wholesale 
Corporation related to the Pleasant Valley Pipeline facility near Springville Drive in 
the City of Camarillo.  

Background:  
United Water Conservation District operates the Pleasant Valley (PV) Pipeline 
to deliver non-potable surface water for agricultural irrigation as part of a broader 
strategy to reduce groundwater pumping and to mitigate the effects of seawater 
intrusion in the Oxnard Basin. The PV Pipeline was constructed in 1956, and 
portions of the facility were realigned in 2011 to accommodate the construction 
of the Springville Drive Interchange. As part of the realignment, the District holds an 
easement granted by the City of Camarillo to access, operate, maintain, and repair 
the underground facility within the easement area. The existing legal document 
requires express written consent from the District before any work within the 
easement area may take place. Costco Wholesale Corporation (Costco) contacted the 
District to request a letter of non-interference related to a proposed development that is 
situated in the City of Camarillo, bounded by United States Route 101 to the 
north, Springville Drive to the west, Ventura Boulevard to the south, and existing 
commercial development to the east.  

Discussion: 
Based on District Staff’s detailed review and subsequent discussion with the 
City of Camarillo and Costco’s development team, a suite of design changes 
and administrative actions was implemented to fully mitigate the impact to the 
District’s PV Pipeline.  



Agenda Item:  5.1 Indemnification Agreement by and between United Water
Conservation District and Costco Wholesale Corporation  
Motion 

2 

Costco made several design changes to the development plans to address the District’s 
concerns. This included relocating all parking stalls, structures, lights, storm drains, and 
retaining walls outside of the District easement and redesigning the easement area with 
non-vegetative ground cover and compacted base to preserve the District’s easement 
access. Additionally, landscaping in the vicinity was modified to avoid tree roots near the 
underground pipeline. Costco also agreed to fund a pre-development and post-
development video survey of the pipeline to document its condition before and after active 
construction. An agreement to reimburse the District’s inspection costs up to $65,400 was 
executed with Costco on August 27, 2025. The agreement for reimbursement of the post-
development inspection cost is pending. The pre-development video survey was 
completed on September 15, 2025. 

To mitigate potential liability associated with a commercial development adjacent to the 
PV Pipeline, an Indemnification Agreement was negotiated between the District and 
Costco. District legal counsel assisted with the development and review of the agreement. 
The agreement protects the District from any actions related to Costco’s development 
activities and ongoing operations that may impact the operation and maintenance of the 
District’s PV Pipeline.  

Additional easement for access for future repairs or replacement of the PV Pipeline was 
also negotiated, which is discussed in more detail under a separate Motion Item 3.2. 

Mission Goal:  
This agreement meets Mission-Related Goal B, System Reliability, and Mission 
Supportive Goal D, Fiscal Responsibility. 

Fiscal Impact:  
There is no cost to the District for this agreement. 

Attachment:  
Indemnification Agreement by and between United Water Conservation District and 
Costco Wholesale Corporation 



ATTACHMENT



































STAFF REPORT 

To:

Through: 

From:

Date: 

UWCD Board of Directors 

Mauricio Guardado, General Manager 
Dr. Maryam Bral, Assistant General Manager 

Robert Richardson, Engineering Manager 
Nathan Summerville, Senior Engineer 

December 29, 2025 (January 14, 2026, meeting) 

Agenda Item:  5.2 Permanent Access Easement from Costco Wholesale  
Corporation for the Pleasant Valley Pipeline 

 Motion

Staff Recommendation:
Authorize the General Manager to sign and record the Permanent Access 
Easement granted by Costco Wholesale Corporation related to the Pleasant Valley 
Pipeline facility near Springville Drive in the City of Camarillo.  

Background:  
United Water Conservation District operates the Pleasant Valley (PV) Pipeline to deliver 
non-potable surface water for agricultural irrigation as part of a broader strategy to reduce 
groundwater pumping and mitigate effects of seawater intrusion in the Oxnard Basin. The 
PV Pipeline was constructed in 1956, and portions of the facility were realigned in 
2011 to accommodate the construction of the Springville Drive Interchange. As 
part of the realignment, the District holds an easement granted by the City of 
Camarillo to access, operate, maintain, and repair the underground facility within 
the easement area. The existing legal document requires expressed written consent 
from the District before any work within the easement area may take place. 
Costco Wholesale Corporation (Costco) contacted the District to request a letter 
of non-interference related to a proposed development that is situated in the City 
of Camarillo, bounded by United States Route 101 to the north, Springville Drive 
to the west, Ventura Boulevard to the south, and existing commercial development 
to the east.  

Discussion: 
The existing easement granted by the City of Camarillo is generally 15 feet wide to 
accommodate the 54-inch diameter PV Pipeline. For future repair or replacement 
activities, this would not be sufficient right-of-way to effectively excavate and work on the 
facility. To address the lack of space and prepare for future work, a variable width 



Agenda Item:  5.2 Permanent Access Easement from Costco Wholesale 
Corporation for the Pleasant Valley Pipeline
Motion 

2 

easement approximately 50 feet wide has been negotiated along the northern edge of the 
development across the full length of the District’s facility within the portion of property 
owned by Costco. The new easement granted by Costco will provide the District with 
sufficient access for operation and maintenance purposes and will prohibit Costco from 
constructing future obstructions (e.g. buildings, fences, walls, structures) in the easement 
area adjacent to the pipeline. The new easement is depicted in Exhibits B and C under 
the Attachment. District legal counsel assisted in the development of the easement 
language. If the easement is accepted by the Board of Directors, the Attachment will be 
recorded with the Ventura County Recorder's Office.  

Mission Goal:  
This agreement meets Mission-Related Goal B, System Reliability, and Mission 
Supportive Goal D, Fiscal Responsibility. 

Fiscal Impact:  
There is no cost to the District for this easement. 

Attachment:  
Grant of Permanent Access Easement from Costco Wholesale Corporation 



ATTACHMENT







PUBLIC AGENCY CERTIFICATE OF ACCEPTANCE 

 

Pursuant to the provisions of Government Code sec�on 27281, this is to cer�fy that the interest 
in real property conveyed by the Grant of Permanent Access Easement dated 
___________,____, 202_, from Costco Wholesale Corporation, a Washington corpora�on 
("Grantor"), to the UNITED WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT ("Grantee"), is hereby accepted by 
the undersigned officer on behalf of the UNITED WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT, pursuant to 
authority conferred by Board ac�on dated ___________,____, 202_, and the Grantee consents 
to recorda�on thereof by its duly authorized officer. 

 

DATED: _______________    UNITED WATER CONSERVATION  

 

       By: 

       

       Its: 












	2.5 Election of Officers
	2.6 Board Members' Activity Reports
	2.7 General Manager's Report
	2.8 Staff Service Awards
	2.9 Financial Report Presentation Information
	3.1 Approve the Minutes
	3.2 Hydrolic Conditions Montly Report
	3.3 Investment Monthly Report for November 2025
	3.4 Fiscal Year 2025-2026 First Quarter Financial Report
	3.5 Adopt Resolution No. 2026-02 Approving the 2026 Board of Directors Meeting Schedule
	3.6 Adopt Resolution No. 2026-03 Designating the General Manager and/or Assistant General Manger as the District's Authorized Agents for the Purposes of Obtaining Federal Assistance for the 2025/2026 Floating Restroom Grant Program
	3.7 Penalty and Interest Waiver Request from Southland Sod Farms
	4.1 Operation and Maintenance Department Monthly Report
	4.2 Recreation Department Montly Report
	4.3 Water Resources Department Monthly Report and Update on Activities of Local Groundwater Sustainability Agencies
	4.4 Administrative Services Department Monthly Report
	4.5 Public Outreach and External Affairs Department Monthly Report
	4.6 Engineering Department Monthly Report
	4.7 Environmental Services Department Monthly Report
	5.1 Indemnification Agreement by and between United Water Conservation District and Costco Wholesale Corporation
	5.2 Permanent Access Easement from Costco Wholesale Corporation for the Pleasant Valley Pipeline



